








 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 4A 
 
TITLE:   
Mayor’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Power Point Presentation 

Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mayor’s Report
November 13, 2018



Latest Activities
October 12 - 26

Events in 2018: 316  

BEDC Coffee Chat

Interviewed by Gabriel

Inspire, Empower & Thrive : 
Family Crisis Luncheon

Building Bastrop 
Open House:
Bastrop DNA 
Analysis

Chairman McCaul

Early Voting 
Started: Oct 22
Election Nov 6

Vacation



Planned Events
October 26 – November 13

• October 31 – Bastrop Halloween Bash at Mayfest Park 5-8 pm (Thanks YMCA)
• November 1 - Farm Street Opry
• November 2

• Arbor Day Event at Bob Bryant Park
• First Friday Art Walk

• November 3 – BCHS Community Wide Garage Sale
• November 6 – ELECTION Day!  
• November 7 – Chamber Luncheon
• November 8

• Capital of Texas Roofing Ribbon Cutting
• 2nd Annual Boards, Commissions & Volunteer Appreciation Banquet

• November 10 – 13th Annual Veteran’s Day Car Show (Thanks Bastrop Area Cruisers)
• November 13 – City Council Meeting



Upcoming Events & City Meetings

• November 14 – Community Support Meeting
• November 15/16 – TML TEDC Training
• November 15 – Special City Council Work Session
• November 19 – BEDC Monthly Meeting
• November 22 – Happy Thanksgiving!
• November 27 – City Council Meeting



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018      AGENDA ITEM:  4B 
 
TITLE:   
Councilmembers’ Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
   Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 4C 
 
TITLE:   
City Manager’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 4D 
 
TITLE: 
A proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizing November 5-9, 2018, 
as Municipal Court Week. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Kimberly Walters, Administrator 
Patsy Paranich, Juvenile Case Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
Municipal Courts, City Councils, and communities throughout Texas are showing appreciation for 
the dedicated Municipal Judges, court clerks, court administrators, prosecutors, bailiffs, and 
warrant officers who comprise the Texas Municipal Courts from November 5-9, 2018.  Municipal 
Court Week is a great time to not only recognize how much municipal courts do, but to share with 
the public the important role that local courts and their personnel play in the criminal justice system 
and the community.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proclamation for Municipal Court Week 
 
 



 

 

roclamation 

 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Court of the City of Bastrop, a time honored and vital part of local 
government, has existed since 1832; and 
 
WHEREAS, more people, citizens and non-citizens alike, come in personal contact with municipal 
courts than all other Texas courts combined; and 
 
WHEREAS, public impression of the entire Texas judicial system is largely dependent upon the 
public’s experience in municipal court; and 
 
WHEREAS, Municipal Judges and court support personnel have pledged to be ever mindful of their 
neutrality and impartiality, rendering equal service to all, and conform to the standards set by the 
Canons of Judicial Conduct; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Courts play a significant role in preserving the quality of life in Texas 
communities through the adjudication of traffic offenses, ensuring a high level of traffic safety for our 
citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Courts serve as the local justice center for the enforcement of local 
ordinances and fine-only state offenses that protect the peace and dignity of our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Judges and Clerks continually strive to improve the administration of 
justice through participation in judicial education programs, seminars, workshops and the annual 
meetings of their state and local professional organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is most appropriate that we recognize the accomplishments of the 916 Texas Municipal 
Courts, and salute their critical role in preserving public safety, protecting the quality of life in Texas 
communities, and deterring future criminal behavior. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Connie Schroeder, Mayor of the City of Bastrop, do hereby proclaim the 5th-
9th of November 2018 as Municipal Court Week and do hereby call upon community members to 
join us in the recognition of the personnel serving the Bastrop Municipal Court for their vital service 
and dedication to our community. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Official Seal of the City of 
Bastrop, Texas to be affixed this 13th day of November, 2018. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 6A 
 
TITLE: 
Receive presentation from Bastrop Housing Authority on their 2018 Annual Report. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 2017 Annual Audit for Bastrop Housing Authority 
• 2017 Annual Report for Bastrop Housing Authority 

 
 























































































































 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 6B 
 
TITLE: 
Provide Update on FY 2018 Organizational Work Plan Accomplishments & Discuss FY 2019 
Organizational Work Plan. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
 
HISTORY/BACKGROUND: 
The City Manager is required to give a semi-annual update of the Organizational Work Plan 
annually in May and a year-end update of the Organizational Work Plan annually in November as 
a part of her annual performance review.  This update will serve as the year-end update. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• FY 2018 Work Plan Accomplishments 
• FY 2019 Work Plan 
• Comprehensive Plan Update 

 
 
 



3 

2 

1 

Policy & Operational FY 2018 Strategic Review 
 
The City Council adopted nine (9) focus areas to provide structure around how organizational 
resources should be allocated to achieve their Vision.  A Five (5) Year Operational Workplan was 
created in September 2017 and built around these nine (9) areas. This FY2018 – FY 2022 Work 
Plan contains 186 items, of which 113 items or 61% were placed in FY 2018.   
 
In FY 2018, 65 items were completed, 33 items are in progress, and 20 received no action.  There 
were five (5) items moved up from future years.  So, of the 61% or 113 items included in the FY 
2018 work plan, 87% of these items were completed or in-progress.   
 
Outlined below is a summary highlighting many of the OUTSTANDING FY 2018 Work Plan accomplishments, which 
underscores the strong partnership between policy and operations.  

 

 

Authentic Bastrop FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Hired Go Collaborative to conduct a Cultural Arts Masterplan.  

Expected completion – January 2019. 

■ Provided coordination/logistical support for 50+ special events. 

■ Addressed public concern about roaming chickens/roosters by 

hiring a trapper, removing 93 chickens/roosters by year-end, and 

repealing the chicken sanctuary. 

■ Completed design for a skate park. 

■ Completed Delgado Park – Phase 1. 

 
Maintain and enhance our 
historic community feel by 
leveraging the combination of 
community, cultural, and 
recreational assets that make 
Bastrop a special place to live 
and work. 

 

 

Communication FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Established City’s communication vision and goals and 

increased social media engagement by 93%. 

■ Implemented customer portal to access individual utility billing 

information. 

■ Prepared FY 2019 budget for Distinguished Budget 

Presentation award. 

■ Improved visual experience to viewers watching Council 

meetings. 

■ Held joint workshops with City Council and active boards and 

commissions. 

 
Support and enhance open 
two-way communication 
between the City and Its 
residents and businesses 

 

 Community Safety FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Conducted over 2,350 hours of emergency management 

training organization-wide. 

■ Created and implemented a Crisis Communication Plan. 

■ Completed FEMA Shelter, located at 1206 Linden. 

■ Installed new street signage with hundred block identification. 

■ Implemented rights-of-Way mowing contract. 

■ Completed Well J at XS Ranch. 

■ Awarded professional service agreement for design and 

construction management of a new wastewater treatment plant. 

■ Awarded professional service agreement for design and 

construction management of a new water treatment plant. 

 
Keep citizens, businesses, 
and visitors safe. 

FY 2018 Achievements 



FY 2018 Achievements 

4 

5 

6 

 
 
 
 Economic Vitality FY 2018 Achievements: 

■ Held quarterly meetings with BP&L Community Support 

groups. 

■ Prepared Certification of Obligation Sale of $4.7 million with no 

tax increase. 

■ Developed $63 million Capital Improvement Program to 

address essential water, wastewater, streets, and drainage 

needs and commitments for trails by prior Councils. 

■ Increased FY2018 Convention Center rentals by 50% over 

FY2017. 

■ Approved contract with Visit Bastrop to promote tourism in the 

City of Bastrop. 

■ Partnered through Main Street with the Chamber and BEDC to 

launch an annual training calendar and resource opportunities – 

300 participants completed at least 1 offering. 

 

 
Create sustainability by 
leveraging infrastructure 
renewals and investment, 
enhancing public/private 
partnerships, and fostering an 
inclusive and diverse 
environment that encourages 
entrepreneurial ventures and 
tourism. 

 
 

 

Fiscal Responsibility FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Conducted ground-truthing sonar on west section of Fairview 

Cemetery. 

■ Saved $100,000 in Year 1 in health claims through Compass 

Medical Services, with a 13:1 return-on-investment. 

■ Received less than 25 Workers’ Compensation claims with less 

than five (5) loss-time claims. 

■ Updated City’s Catastrophic Sick Leave Policy. 

■ Had 49 submittals in Engineering Request for Qualification 

process, which resulted in 12 engineering firms being added to 

the List of Qualified Engineers in eight (8) categories. 

■ Created Hospitality & Downtown Department to coordinate 

community resources, enhance citizens’ understanding of value, 

and leverage the visitors’ experience. 

■ Completed Pavement Condition Impact Study and developed 

and funded 1st two (2) years of street maintenance program. 

 
Prepare and manage budget; 
fiduciary responsibility. 
 

 
 

 

Manage Growth FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Drafted new Subdivision Ordinance. 

■ Hired Simplecity Design to begin process of “coding DNA” of 

downtown Bastrop. 

 

 
Plan for and manage growth, 
development, and 
redevelopment to maintain 
Bastrop’s authentic feel and 
character. 

 
 



FY 2018 Achievements 

8 

9 

7 

 
 
 

 

Multi-Modal Mobility FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Approved Interlocal Agreement with CARTS. 

■ Hired MWM Design to design State Park Trail. 

■ Awarded contract for concrete contractor to complete gaps in 

sidewalks for traffic safety in Downtown. 

 

 
Improved mobility for all 
modes of transit to integrate 
the community through 
connectivity. 
 

 
 
 Organizational 

Excellence 

FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Implemented Neogov Software to improve employee 

onboarding and online job applications. 

■ Implemented Tyler Technology Police Records Management 

System, Police Computer Aided Dispatch, and Municipal Court 

software 

■ Held 1st Annual Boards & Commission & Volunteer Banquet. 

■ Held 1st Annual Boards, Commissions, and Volunteer Fair. 

■ Implemented a Citizen Input Survey on capital improvements, 

programs, and services. 

■ Participated in NIBBLES Backpack program building food bags 

feeding 100 food insecure BISD students each weekend during 

school year. 

■ Established 10-year maintenance program for water and 

wastewater infrastructure replacement. 

■ Completed Year 1 of testing 56,000 feet of sewer lines for 

Inflow & Infiltration, identifying and repairing 166 deficiencies – 

(Item moved up from FY 2019.) 

■ Revised City’s Board & Commission Application. 

■ Hired Assistant Director of Public Works. 

■ Developed Emergency Management Plan Readiness Levels.  

 
Organize governance; 
progressive operational 
policies and procedures; 
employee and citizen 
volunteer recognition. 
. 

 
 

 

Unique Environment FY 2018 Achievements: 
■ Coordinated an Adopt-a-Street program with Keep Bastrop 

County Beautiful, which has adopted out 12 streets. 

■ Improved Christmas Lighting in Downtown and Fisherman’s 

Park. 

■ Awarded professional service agreement for design and 

construction management for structural rehabilitation of the Old 

Iron Bridge. (Item moved up from FY 2019.) 

 
Continue beautification of 
natural areas, parks, river, and 
landscape. 

 
 



Strategic Focus - FY 2019 
The FY 2019 Organizational Work Plan contains 84 items considered “in-progress” in FY 
2018, identified organizational “game changers” that correct manual time-consuming 
processes, all significant Innovation Fund items budgeted in FY 2019, and all ancillary 
items associated with the management of the Capital Improvement Program.  There are 
multiple items included in this workplan that will take several years to complete and 
will be carried-over in future years. 
 

Authentic Bastrop 
Maintain and enhance our historic community feel by leveraging the 

combination of community, cultural and recreational assets that make Bastrop a 
special place to live and work. 

AB #1 Complete Main Street Rehabilitation Project-CIP Street Project. (Comp Plan 6.3) 

AB #2 Complete Old Iron Bridge Rehabilitation Project – CIP Street Project. (Comp Plan 7.1.3) 

AB #3 Obtain Certified Local Government designation.  (Comp Plan 4.5.1) 

AB #4 Continue to facilitate downtown incentive grant program. (Comp Plan 8.1.6) 

AB #5 Continue relocation program of chickens/roosters in downtown Bastrop. 

AB #6 Develop a plan for private initiative to program and operate the City’s rodeo arena. 
(Comp 7.2.2) 

AB #7 Build Phase I of Skate Park in Fisherman’s Park. (Comp Plan 7.2) 

AB #8 Implement Cultural Arts Masterplan. (Comp Plan – 8.4.1) 

AB #9 Complete North Main Community Rehabilitation Project including water and 
wastewater line replacement, street rehabilitation, and drainage improvements – CIP 
Project. (Comp Plan 2.5, 2.2, 2.6, 6.3) 

 

Communication 
Support and enhance open 2-way communication between the City and its 

residents and businesses. 
C #1 Create and implement robust Capital Improvement Program Communication Program. 

C #2 Create and maintain an annual calendar of City & Community Events for Council use. 

C #3 Develop and produce a monthly electronic newsletter that tells the City’s story, 
whether it is about our value and/or to educate and/or engage our citizens while being 
open and transparent, distributed via our website and social media. 

C #4 Develop process for monitoring and answering questions during Council Meetings on 
social media. 

C #5 Develop a robust social media policy and metrics. 

C #6 Install the VoteLynx System in Council Chambers. 

C #7 Continue to improve communications with the Development Community. 

C #8 Develop a “Librarian on the Loose” outreach program to take library services to 
nursing homes, correctional institutions, and schools. 

C #9 Review and update BTXN (Cable Channel) ordinance and fee schedule. 

C #10 Transition from Code Red to Everbridge, in conjunction with Central Texas Area 
Council of Governments, to better inform and education the community during 
emergency situations. 

C #11 Evaluate options to utilize BTXN as a timely way to tell the City’s story, whether it is 
about our value and/or to educate and/or engage our citizens while being open and 
transparent, distributed via our cable channel, website, brick & mortar locations, and 
social media. 

Organizational Work Plan - FY 2019  



FY 2019 Organizational Work Plan 

 

Community Safety 
Keep citizens, businesses, and visitors safe. 

CS #1 Design and Build Wastewater Treatment Plant #3 – CIP Wastewater Project. (Comp 
Plan 2.4) 

CS #2 Complete Well J, Design and Construct Water Plant & Water Line to Willow Plant – CIP 
Water Project. (Comp Plan 2.2) 

CS #3 Complete Water Tower at SH20 & SH71 – CIP Water Project. (Comp Plan 2.2) 

CS #4 Conduct a feasibility study to determine costs and steps associated with achieving a 
full-time paid fire department. (Comp Plan 3.1.4) 

CS #5 Update drainage regulations (include 2018 Halff Drainage Study and Atlas 14 Map Data) 
without negatively impacting the existing population or environment. (Comp Plan 2.6) 

CS #6 Complete street signage inventory and replacement schedule. (Comp Plan 6.4) 

CS #7 Create and adopt a formal addressing policy utilizing the Capital Area Council of 
Governments methodology. 

CS #8 Complete design of Public Works Detention Pond and Pine Street and Jasper/Newton 
Drainage Improvements. – CIP Drainage Projects (Comp Plan 2.6) 

 

Economic Vitality 
Create sustainability by infrastructure renewal and investment; enhancing 

public/private partnerships; efficient planning and development processes; and 
fostering an inclusive and diverse environment that encourages entrepreneurial 

ventures and tourism. 
EV #1 Develop Fiscal Impact Analysis to determine development related financial 

sustainability. (Comp Plan 2.1) 
EV #2 Complete research TABC license for potential alcohol permit at the Bastrop 

Convention Center.  (Comp Plan - 8.3.2) 
EV #3 Continue increasing rental revenue of Convention Center by supporting local 

businesses, small conventions, and conferences. (Comp. Plan – 8.3.2) 
EV #4 Update Film Permit Process. 

EV #5 Leverage the film commission to use film as an economic development strategy. 

EV #6 Continue relations and connectivity with the Hyatt Lost Pines Resort. (Comp Plan – 
8.5.1) 

EV #7 Strengthen our downtown retail presence. (Comp Plan 8.1.5) 

EV #8 Continue ongoing development of the Bastrop visitor experience to include the 
community’s culinary and cultural assets. (Comp Plan 8.5) 

EV #9 Create a Code Enforcement Strategic Plan and a communication program to educate 
public. (Comp Plan 3.1) 

EV #10 Conduct Food Truck Pilot Project, address concerns, and finalize Ordinance. (Comp 
8.6.1) 

 

Fiscal Responsibility 
Prepare and manage budget; fiduciary responsibility. 

FR #1 Implement Year 1 of Street Maintenance Program.  (Comp Plan 6.3) 

FR #2 Revise Special Events Ordinance and Procedures to meet the City’s Financial Policy 
requirement of fees covering cost of service.  (Comp Plan 8.6) 

FR #3 Implement Year 1 of a 5 Year Rate Study to fund water and wastewater infrastructure 
improvements. (Comp Plan 2.2; 2.4) 

FR #4 Implement Year 1 of Water System Maintenance Program. (Comp Plan 2.5) 



FY 2019 Organizational Work Plan 

Fiscal Responsibility cont. 
FR #5 Implement Year 2 of smoke testing schedule for annual identification of wastewater 

inflow and infiltration.  (Comp Plan 2.5)  
FR #6 Implement Year 1 of Wastewater System Maintenance Program. (Comp Plan 2.5) 

FR #7 Develop Wholesale Water Rate Category. 

FR #8 Develop Wholesale Wastewater Rate Category. 

FR #9 Adopt standardized Wholesale Water Agreement. 

FR #10 Adopt standardized Wholesale Wastewater Agreement. 

FR #11 Conduct a perpetual care actuarial study for Fairview Cemetery to ensure long-term 
financial sustainability. (Comp Plan 3.2) 

FR #12 Complete the redesign of the Hotel Occupancy Fund Community Program Funding 
Policy & Application to better leverage resources and maximize the visitors’ 
experience. (Comp Plan 8.1) 

FR #13 Update Equipment Replacement Schedule and review replacement policies with 
Council. (Comp Plan 3.1) 

FR #14 Evaluate convention center rental rates based on 2-year history and actual costs of 
service. (Comp Plan 8.3.2) 

FR #15 Complete Hunters Crossing Local Government Corporation & Public Improvement 
District statutory audit and implement recommendations. 

FR #16 Receive transparency star for Public Pension from Comptroller’s Office. 

FR #17 Build Five (5) Year Financial Model, identify opportunities and threats, and anticipate 
organizational growth based on increased population and development. 

FR #18 Evaluate need for centralized Procurement position in FY 20 budget. 
 

Manage Growth 
Plan for and manage growth, development, and redevelopment to maintain 

Bastrop’s authentic feel and character. 
MG #1 Update Zoning and Sign Ordinances (Phase 1 – Code Update) to be fiscal sustainable 

and geographically sensitive and in alignment with Comprehensive Plan. (Comp Plan 
5.2) 

MG #2 Update technical criteria manual (Phase 2 – Code Update) including construction 
standards, review and modifications to subdivision ordinance and development 
process to align with updated development codes and Comprehensive Plan. (Comp 
Plan 5.2) 

MG #3 Develop Annexation plan and corresponding Development Plan. (Comp Plan 2.1.1) 

MG #4 Adopt an Interlocal Agreement that establishes development standards for the City’s 
ETJ in partnership with Bastrop County. (Comp Plan 2.1.2) 

 

Multi-Modal Mobility 
Improved mobility for all modes of transit to integrate the community through 

connectivity. 
MM #1 Complete gaps in residential sidewalks for traffic safety in the downtown corridor.  

(Comp Plan 6.2) 
MM #2 Complete the downtown trail expansion in partnership with Bastrop Economic 

Development Corporation. – CIP Quality of Life Project (Comp Plan 7.1.3, 8.2.2) 
MM #3  Complete trail to Bastrop State Park and partner with TxDOT to ensure safe pedestrian 

crossing at SH 95 & Loop 150. – CIP Quality of Life Project 
MM #4 Address mobility challenges on west side of river on the north and south sides of SH 

71.  (Comp Plan 6.2.4) 
 
  



FY 2019 Organizational Work Plan 

 

Organizational Excellence 
Organize governance; progressive operational policies and procedures; 

employee and citizen volunteer recognition. 
OE #1 Develop an organization-wide strategy to be paperless by 2021. (Comp Plan 3.1) 

OE #2 Continue completion of tasks necessary to obtain Texas Police Chiefs’ Recognition 
Program. (Comp Plan 3.1) 

OE #3 Create a secured records storage area. 

OE #4 Develop indexing system for Council Meeting Video Archives using LaserFiche. 

OE #5 Create a record retention policy. 

OE #6 Develop a comprehensive internal records management system and policies for all 
Planning & Zoning case files. 

OE #7 Complete award process for financial advisor services.  

OE #8 Develop a 10-year building maintenance plan including inspections and annual 
contracts. (Comp Plan 3.2) 

OE #9 Develop a 10-year park maintenance plan including inspections and annual contracts. 
(Comp Plan 3.2, 7.2) 

OE #10 Develop and fund a Citywide Network Systems Replacement Schedule. (FY 2019 - FY 
2021) (Comp Plan 3.2) 

OE #11 Complete City Hall Renovation. (Comp Plan 3.1) 

OE #12 Hire a Construction Inspector and other key personnel funded in FY 2019. 

OE #13 Convert all on-line forms on website to a fillable pdf format. 

OE #14 Amend Appendix B – Comprehensive Plan to reflect Council’s preference for creation 
of a Capital Improvement Program. 

OE #15 Evaluate police vehicles for fleet replacement in FY 2020 including the establishment 
of evaluation criteria. 

 

Unique Environment 
Continue beautification of natural areas, parks, river, and landscape. 

UE #1 Install planter boxes, once completed by Cedar Creek High School, to support 
downtown beautification program. (Comp Plan 8.2) 

UE #2 Partner with the Federal Corrections Institute to maintain landscape projects at the 
City’s gateways and clean-up of Gills Branch. 

UE #3 Create memorial tree program for Fairview Cemetery. (Comp Plan 7.1) 

UE #4 Develop plan to lease or purchase rights-of-way owned by Union Pacific to improve 
aesthetics in highly visible locations. 

UE #5 Institutionalize Adopt-a-Street Program in partnership with Keep Bastrop County 
Beautiful. 

UE #6 Support community-wide brand identity efforts led by Visit Bastrop. (Comp Plan 8.5.1) 
 



 

 

Comprehensive Plan 

Goals & Objectives 

Bastrop Comprehensive Plan 2036 was adopted in November 2016 and serves as only the second Comprehensive 

Plan adopted by the City.  The first plan, Bastrop Comprehensive Plan 2020, was adopted in 2001.  Much had 

changed in the community during this 15 year period.  Therefore, an extensive citizen engagement process was 

initiated including over 2,545 cumulative survey responses throughout the planning process.  The online response 

to the survey elicited responses from 975 city residents, which is a response rate of nearly 14% of Bastrop’s total 

population.  There is a strong commitment on the part of Bastrop’s current Council to ensure this document serves 

as a significant cornerstone to the strategic planning intiatives under taken by the organization.  This document 

highlights the adopted goals and any anticipated or completed progress. 

■Community Growth■  

Goal 2.1 - Maintain and enable a policy of “measured growth” as 

represented by the Bastrop Growth Program. 

Goal 2.1 Status – In Progress - FY 2020 Completion 

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Created an initiative known as “Building Bastrop” to guide responsible development that honors our authentic past 

and prepares for our sustainable future.  

• Established requirement that all codes take a holistic approach to create geographically-sensitive, fiscally 

sustainable development in the future. 
• Implemented a Drainage Moratorium on all development to stop all development that is detrimental to community. 

• Hired Simplecity Design (SCD) to update all existing land-use and development related codes and align them to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

• Protecting Bastrop’s authentic past by “coded the DNA” of Downtown Bastrop to document regulations that work 

and have proven to be sustainable for more than a century.   

• Updating Zoning Ordinance and Sign Ordinance by mid-March 2019.   

• Updating all development-related codes by December 31, 2019. 
• Funded the development of a Fiscal Impact Analysis model to ensure financial sustainability in FY 2019. 

• Updating Interlocal 1445 Agreement with Bastrop County that establishes development standards in City’s ETJ. 

 

Goal 2.2 - Ensure long-term water system capacity and water quality for existing customers while 

accommodating incremental growth and development.

Goal 2.2 Status – In Progress - FY 2021 Completion 

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Authorized purchase of additional 3,000-acre feet of water, for a total of 7,613-acre feet in Simsboro Aquifer. 

• Reached consensus at March 24, 2018 Special Workshop to build consolidated water treatment plant that treats 

for improved aesthetics in water quality and purchase wholesale water from Aqua Water Corporation to manage 

excess demand until plant is complete. 

• Approved Engineering Scope of Service with Freese & Nichols on September 11, 2018 to design and manage 

construction of consolidated water treatment plant at XS Ranch and distribution lines to Willow Plant. 

• Estimated timeline for water plant production is FY 2021. 



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

Goal 2.3 - Mitigate expected increases in water demand through enhanced conservation practices.

Goal 2.3 Status – No Action 

. 

 

Goal 2.4 - Expand wastewater collection and treatment capacity in a cost-effective manner

Goal 2.4 Status – In Progress – FY 2021 Completion – Phase 1  
City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Reached consensus at March 24, 2018 Special Workshop to build a consolidated activated sludge wastewater 

treatment facility on 26-acre site, owned by City of Bastrop for this purpose. 

• Approved Engineering Scope of Service with KSA Engineering on August 28, 2018 to design and manage 

construction of consolidated wastewater treatment plant and related distribution system. 

• Construction of Phase 1 will begin before September 1, 2019 for Phase 1, a 2-million-gallon facility. 

• Design of Phase 2, a 2nd 2-million-gallon facility, will immediately start upon completion of Phase 1. 

 

Goal 2.5 - Enhance Wastewater System Efficiency.

Goal 2.5 Status – Completed Planning; Ongoing Implementation  
The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Developed a 10-year replacement schedule for all pumps, lift stations, and manholes, which is fully funded in the 

adopted rates.  Year 1 will be implemented in FY 2019. 

• Evaluating all wastewater collection lines associated with failed streets to be replaced at time of street 

reconstruction.  Identified wastewater lines to be replaced as a part of North Bastrop Community Rehabilitation 

Project in FY 2019. 

• Developed three (3) year plan to routinely test for Inflow & Infiltration into wastewater system.  Completed Year 1 

in FY 2018 by testing 56,000 feet and identifying/fixing 166 deficiencies.   

 

Goal 2.6 - Reduce Flood Hazards in Bastrop through the programmed improvement of the City storm 

water system.

Goal 2.6 Status – On-Going 

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Received Drainage Study from Halff Associates on February 20, 2018. 

• Enacted a Drainage Moratorium on August 14, 2018. 

• Updating land-use policies to be geographically sensitive including low-impact development standards, which will 

include findings from Atlas 14 maps, when available.  

• Approved Engineering Scope of Service with Halff Associates to evaluate existing regulations with new findings to 

determine “gap” in drainage calculation requirements. 

• Funded City’s match for three (3) drainage improvement programs including Public Works Detention Pond, Pine 

Street Drainage Improvements, and Jasper/Newton Drainage Improvements.  All 3 projects anticipated to start 

construction in FY 2020. 

 

  



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

Goal 2.7 - Protect water quality in the Lower Colorado River Watershed by mitigating storm water 

discharges associated with growth and development.

Goal 2.7 Status – In Progress 

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Requiring low impact development standards as a part of updating development code regulations. 

 

■Public Facilities■ 

Goal 3.1 - Provide adequate and appropriate public facilities and services to maintain the safety and 

quality of life for residents, visitors, and workers in Bastrop.

Goal 3.1 Status – Ongoing 

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Funded renovations in FY 2019 budget at City Hall to improve Planning & Zoning space and add additional offices. 

• Funded feasibility study to evaluate long-term fire service in Bastrop and related facilities in FY 2019. 

• Will include a Public Works facility study in FY 2020 budget for inclusion in a future CIP.  

• Conducted over 2,350 hours of emergency management training organization-wide in FY 2018. 

• Updating Equipment Replacement Schedule and reviewing replacement policies with Council – FY 2019. 

• Completing necessary tasks to obtain Texas Police Chiefs’ Recognition Program – FY 2019. 

 

Goal 3.2 - Improve the long-term fiscal and environmental efficiency of public facilities.

Goal 3.2 Status – Ongoing 

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Hired additional staff in FY 2019 to implement citywide electronic records management.  In addition to adding 

much needed staff capacity, additional space will be freed up in all facilities that will no longer be required for 

physical records storage.  

• Conducting a perpetual care actuarial study for Fairview Cemetery in FY 2019 to ensure long-term financial 

sustainability.  

• Developing a 10-year building maintenance plan including inspections and annual contracts in FY 2019. 

• Developing a 10-year park maintenance plan including inspections and annual contracts in FY 2019. 

• Developing a Citywide Network Systems Replacement Schedule in FY 2019. 

 

  



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

 

Goal 3.3 - Engage in partnership with other public entities to maximize the utilization of and 

accessibility to public buildings and grounds. 

Goal 3.3 Status – Ongoing 

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Expanded YMCA contract in FY 2019 to include Movies in the Park and two (2) sessions of tennis lessons, which 

will be held at Bastrop Independent School District (BISD) facilities. 

• Approved a lease to the Bastrop Senior Center in FY 2018 of the Bastrop Activity Center (i.e. Emergency Shelter) 

for senior programming in turn for assistance when providing shelter services. 

• Approved an Adopt-a-Street Program with Keep Bastrop County Beautiful, who have adopted 12 streets since 

inception in early 2018. 

• Funding a Partnership Agreement with Bastrop County Long-Term Recovery Team to provide support services to 

Bastrop Emergency Shelter in times of emergency situations – FY 2019. 

 

■ Housing and Neighborhoods■ 

Goal 4.1 - Provide a greater diversity of housing options in Bastrop while protecting the character of 

the City’s existing neighborhoods. 

Goal 4.1 Status – On-going  

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: 

• Council approved a Resolution of No Objection supporting The Preserve at Hunters Crossing, LP, a development 

of 140 affordable rental housing units, on property zoned for multi-family development. 

 

 

Goal 4.2 – Maintain the overall quality of existing housing stock in Bastrop.

Goal 4.2 Status - No Action 

. 

 

Goal 4.3 - Develop housing targets that align with local demand.

Goal 4.3 Status – No Action 

. 

.

Goal 4.4 - Provide home ownership opportunities to Bastrop’s low-to-moderate income and special 

needs populations

Goal 4.4 Status - No Action 

. 

 



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

 

Goal 4.5 - Maintain or enhance the health of Bastrop’s older and historic neighborhoods.

Goal 4.5 Status – On-Going 

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Strengthened Local Preservation Ordinance in FY 2018. 

• Established goal to obtain Certified Local Government designation in FY 2019. 

• Established goal to create a Code Enforcement Strategic Plan with an education component upon completion of 

Phase I Code Updates – FY 2019 Work Plan. 

• Will re-institute downtown incentive grant program in FY 2019 in partnership with Bastrop Economic Development 

Corporation. 

. 

. 

■ Land Use and Community Image■ 

Goal 5.1 -- Utilize the Future Land Use Plan to guide decisions regarding proposed development and 

redevelopment activities in Bastrop and the City’s ETJ.

Goal 5.1 - Status – On-going 

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Planning & Zoning Staff reference the Future Land Use Plan in all staff reports, which provides basis for 

recommendations to Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council. 

• The Future Land Use Plan will be incorporated into the Code Updates – Phase I and II, updated the zoning 

ordinance and technical design standards. 

. 

 

Goal 5.2 – Enhance community character and design through the amendment of city land development 

regulations and projects to improve the function and aesthetics of public properties.

Goal 5.2 - Status – In Progress – FY 2020 Completion 

City Council has taken the following action to achieve this goal: (Please see Goal 2.1 for additional information) 

• Funded Code Update – Phase 1 in FY 2019, which will include updating Zoning and Sign Ordinances, to be fiscally 

sustainable and geographically sensitive and in alignment with Comprehensive Plan.  Estimated completion date 

is March 2019. 

• Funded Code Update – Phase 2 in FY 2019, which will include updating technical criteria manual including 

construction standards, review and modifications to subdivision ordinance and development process to align with 

updated development codes (Phase 1) and Comprehensive Plan. Estimated completion date is December 2019. 

• TxDOT has created landscaped gateways at SH 71 & Tahitian and SH 71 & Childers. 

. 

 

  



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

■Transportation■ 

Goal 6.1 - Manage traffic congestion and improve system reliability.

Goal 6.1 - Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• TxDOT completed overpass improvements at SH 71 and SH 95, which significantly improved traffic congestion. 

• TxDOT will award bids for SH71 Package 4 in May 2019:  Phase 1- Construction of service roads over the Colorado 

River – Estimated completion 8 -12 months; Phase 2 – Main Lane Construction; Phase 3 – Old Bridge demolition.  

Completion – 2022. 

 

Goal 6.2 – Enhance transportation system connectivity.

Goal 6.2 - Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• BEDC is constructing Agnes Street from SH 304 to the eastern boundary of the Seton Hospital property.   

• BEDC staff are negotiating with property owners along the aligned Agnes route to complete this connection as 

development occurs. 

 

Goal 6.3 - Preserve and maintain existing transportation assets.

Goal 6.3 - Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Completed a Pavement Condition Index Study in January 2018. 

• Developed a multi-year Street Maintenance Program to “Keep the Good Streets Good.” 

• Funded Year 1 and 2 of the Street Maintenance Program in the 2018 Certificate of Obligations Series. 

• Implementing Year 1 of Street Maintenance Program in FY 2019. 

• Reconstructing Main Street from Water Street to Spring Street as a part of the Main Street Rehabilitation Project. 

• Reconstructing multiple sections of failing streets including parts of Maple, Magnolia, and Locust as a part of North 

Main Community Rehabilitation Project. 

 

Goal 6.4 – Improve the safety of the Bastrop Transportation System for all users.

Goal 6.4 - Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Ensuring compliance with City’s access management policies during site plan review on all development. 

• Utilize traffic counter data, provided by Public Works, to address identified priority locations for targeted 

enforcement of speeding and other unsafe behaviors by the Police Department on an as needed basis. 

 

 

  



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

Goal 6.5 – Improve active transportation options.

Goal 6.5 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Completing gaps in residential sidewalks for traffic safety in the downtown corridor – FY 2019. 

• Addressing ADA enhancements along Main Street as a part of the Main Street Rehabilitation Program, which is 

considered a high pedestrian traffic corridor. 

 

 

Goal 6.6 – Expand and enhance transit services.

Goal 6.6 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Interlocal Agreement with CARTS was executed in FY 2018. 

• A bus stop has been designed at Spring/Main Streets.  Project has been put on-hold pending completion of Main 

Street Rehabilitation Project.  

 

 

Goal 6.7 – Enhance multi-modal freight capacity

Goal 6.7 -  No action  

 

.

Goal 6.8 – Build a network of complete streets and preserve quality of place.

Goal 6.8 - Status – In Progress – FY 2020 Completion 

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Phase I and II of the Code Updates will address street cross sections, which will incorporate Complete Streets 

principles – December 2019. 

• Pop-up example of Main Street Rehabilitation project will be utilized after design, but prior to construction, to show 

context of public space, sidewalks, and roadway. – FY 2019 

 

Goal 6.9 – Support the land use, economic development and urban design goals of the Comprehensive 

Plan.

Goal 6.9 - Status – In Progress – FY 2020 Completion 

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Phase I and II of the Code Updates will address street cross sections, which will incorporate Complete Streets 

principles – December 2019. 

 

 

  



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

■ Parks and Recreation■ 

Goal 7.1 – Provide a sufficient amount of public park land and open space for current and future 

residents 

Goal 7.1 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Pecan Park Developers have installed a linear trail along the Colorado River, providing access to homeowners and 

the public, and serving as a future trail connection. 

• Council awarded Professional Services Agreement to Kimley-Horn on August 28, 2018 for the design and 

construction management of the rehabilitation of the Old Iron Bridge.   

• Funding of $2 million was included in the $4.7 million Certificate of Obligations Series to rehabilitate the Old Iron 

Bridge. 

• Construction of Downtown River Trail loop has been funded through a CAMPO Grant of $485,000, Keep Bastrop 

County Beautiful - $130,000; and BEDC - $65,000.  Pedestrian crossing over River will occur with the completion 

of the TxDOT Service Roads and the rehabilitation of Old Iron Bridge. 

• One (1) mile State Park Trail between Bastrop State Park and Chestnut Street is fully funded and under design by 

MWM Design Group. 

 

 

Goal 7.2 – Address current and future recreation needs through the provision and maintenance of 

indoor and outdoor recreational facilities. 

Goal 7.2 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Developing a plan for private initiative to program and operate the City’s rodeo arena – FY 2019. 

• Developing a 10-year park maintenance plan including inspections and annual contracts – FY 2019. 

• Building Skate Park – Phase 1 in Fisherman’s Park – FY 2019. 

 

 

Goal 7.3 – Meet future recreational demand through adjustments to the City’s operational capacity.

Goal 7.3 -  Status – No Action  

 

 

Goal 7.4 – Ensure that residents have access to recreational opportunities through the equitable 

distribution of park land and open space.

Goal 7.4 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Park land is critical to creating a fiscally sustainable community.  Open space and landscaping requirements will 

be addressed in the Code Update – Phase 1, scheduled for completion in March 2019.  Amendments to Park and 

Open Space ordinances will occur as a result of the code update. 

 

 



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

■ Cultural Arts and Tourism■ 

Goal 8.1 – Leverage existing downtown assets to spur additional business activity.

Goal 8.1 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Provide funding from Hotel Occupancy Tax to support offerings provided by the Bastrop Museum & Visitor Center 

and the Bastrop Opera House on an annual basis. 

• Partnering through Main Street with the Chamber and BEDC to launch an annual training calendar and resource 

opportunities – 300 participants completed at least 1 offering in FY 2018. 

• Continuing downtown incentive grants in partnership with BEDC in FY 2019. 

 

 

Goal 8.2 – Diversify supply chain of natural assets.

Goal 8.2 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• See actions listed under Goal 7.1 for increased community access to Colorado River as noted in Objective 8.2.2. 

• Partnering with Cedar Creek High School to build planter boxes to enhance walkability and curb appeal of Historic 

Downtown. 

 

.

Goal 8.3 – Bolster family and heritage tourism assets.

Goal 8.3 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Increased rentals at the Bastrop Convention Center by 50% in FY 2018 over FY 2017, with repeat conventions 

booked through FY 20. 

• Revised contracts, marketing materials, and time offerings making renting the Bastrop Convention Center 

competitive. 

• Provide full-service rentals at the Bastrop Convention Center including catering services (through contractual 

services with outside vendors), room setups and teardowns, tablecloths, table decorations, and drink stations. 

• Provide successful programming including Farm Street Opry monthly, Boogie Back to Bastrop annually, and Red 

White & You Dance annually. 

 

 

Goal 8.4 – Create a long-term strategy for placement of visual and performing arts assets. 

Goal 8.4 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• After completion a Request for Proposal process through the Bastrop Art in Public Places (BAIPP), City hired Go 

Collaborative on March 13, 2018 to complete a Cultural Arts Master Plan, which will be completed in January 2019. 

• Funding has been allocated in the FY 2019 budget to begin implementation immediately upon completion of the 

study. 

 

.

  



 

Comprehensive Plan Achievements 
 

 

Goal 8.5 – Strengthen Bastrop’s brand throughout the region and the rest of the country. 

Goal 8.5 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• Council approved a contract with Visit Bastrop on September 12, 2017 to provide specific services related to 

providing “brand” marketing for Bastrop as a destination, to serve as primary brand advocate, and to better utilize 

existing facilities. 

• Visit Bastrop has created a robust website to enhance visitors’ experience. 

• Visit Bastrop is completing a “branding” strategy for Bastrop, which should be implemented in Fall 2018. 

• Continue ongoing development of the Bastrop visitor experience to include the community’s culinary and cultural 

assets. 

• City continues relations and connectivity with the Hyatt Lost Pines Resort through various methods. 

 

 

 

Goal 8.6 – Adjust City ordinances to accommodate arts, entertainment, and recreation uses; and to 

manage their impact on the community. 

Goal 8.6 -  Status – On-going  

The following action has been taken to achieve this goal: 

• A draft food truck ordinance was completed and reviewed by Planning & Zoning Commission in Spring 2018.  All 

partners are working to address identified concerns.  A Food Truck pilot program is scheduled in the fall to allow 

food trucks for 6-8 months, address any concerns, and adopt final ordinance. 

• Revising Special Events Ordinance and Procedures to meet the City’s Financial Policy requirement of fees covering 

costs of service and streamline process for customers in FY 2019. 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM: 7 
 
TITLE:   
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
At this time, three (3) minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  To address 
the Council, please submit a fully completed request card to the City Secretary prior to the 
beginning of the Citizens’ Comment portion of the Council meeting.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, if a citizen discusses any item not on the agenda, City Council cannot discuss 
issues raised or make any decision at this time.  Instead, City Council is limited to making a 
statement of specific factual information or a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry.   
Issues may be referred to City Staff for research and possible future action. 
 
To address the Council concerning any item on the agenda, please submit a fully completed 
request card to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
It is not the intention of the City of Bastrop to provide a public forum for the embarrassment or 
demeaning of any individual or group.  Neither is it the intention of the Council to allow a member 
of the public to slur the performance, honesty and/or integrity of the Council, as a body, or any 
member or members of the Council individually or collectively, or members of the City’s staff.  
Accordingly, profane, insulting or threatening language directed toward the Council and/or any 
person in the Council’s presence will not be tolerated. 
 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018      AGENDA ITEM:  8A 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the October 23, 2018 regular meeting. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Section 551.021 of the Government Code provides as follows: 

(a)  A governmental body shall prepare and keep minutes or make a tape recording of 
each open meeting of the body. 

(b)  The minutes must: 
 1.  State the subject of each deliberation; and 
 2.  Indicate the vote, order, decision, or other action taken. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the October 23, 2018 regular meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• October 23, 2018, DRAFT Regular Meeting Minutes.  
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 23, 2018 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 B A S T R O P  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  
October 23, 2018 

 
The Bastrop City Council met in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, October 23, 2018, at 5:00 p.m. 
at the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers, located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
Members present were Mayor Schroeder, Mayor Pro Tem Nelson and Council Members Ennis, 
Peterson and Rogers.  Officers present were City Manager Lynda Humble, City Secretary Ann 
Franklin and City Attorney Alan Bojorquez. 
 
WORK SESSION – 5:00 P.M. 
At 5:00 p.m. Mayor Schroeder called the work session to order with a quorum being 
present.   
 
1A. Receive Presentation and Discuss Findings of Development Code Assessment 

Analysis with Matt Lewis, Simple City Design.  
Presentation was made by Matt Lewis, Simple City Design. 

 
Council Member Jones arrived to the meeting at 5:08 p.m. 
 
At 6:00 p.m. Mayor Schroeder recessed the work session. 
 
REGULAR SESSION - CALL TO ORDER  
At 6:30 p.m. Mayor Schroeder called the regular meeting to order with a quorum being present.  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
JP Castellanos and Gabriel Pina, Emile Elementary, STARS Program performed the 
pledge. 
 
INVOCATION   
Chaplain Dale Burke, Police Chaplain gave the invocation. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
5A. Mayor’s Report 
 
5B. Councilmembers’ Report 
  
5C. City Manager’s Report 
 
5D. A proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas and Bastrop County 

Commissioners' Court recognizing November 9, 2018 as Veterans Day. 
Proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder. 
 

5E. A proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, recognizing 
November 2, 2018 as City of Bastrop Arbor Day. 

 Mayor Schroeder recognized Thomas Martinez on becoming a certified 
arborist. 
Proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder and received by David 
Junek. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 23, 2018 

Page 2 of 5 
 

WORK SESSION/BRIEFINGS  
 
6A. Receive Presentation and update from Verdunity regarding the development of a 

Fiscal Impact Analysis Model.  
Presentation was made by Kevin Shepherd, Founder and CEO, Verdunity 
 

6B. Update on Chicken/Rooster relocation process in the downtown area. 
 Presentation was made by Safety Director / Chief of Police, James Altgelt.  
 
Mayor Schroeder recessed the Council Meeting at 7:58 p.m. 
 
Mayor Schroeder called the meeting back to order at 8:04 p.m. 
 
STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS  
 
7A. Receive monthly report from Visit Bastrop. 
 Presentation was made by Visit Bastrop President, Susan Smith. 
 
7B. Receive presentation on the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending 

September 30, 2018. 
 Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 
 
7C. Receive report from Bastrop Economic Development Corporation.  
 Presentation was made by Bastrop Economic Development Corporation 

Director, Mike Kamerlander. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS – NONE  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Ennis to approve Items 9A, 9B, and 9C listed 
on the Consent Agenda after being read into the record by City Secretary, Ann 
Franklin.  Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Nelson, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   
 
9A. Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the October 9, 2018 meeting. 
 
9B. Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2018-29 of the City 

Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, Rezoning 1.95 acres of Building Block 62, East 
of Water Street, from SF-7, Single-Family 7 to C-1, Commercial 1, located at 303 and 
305 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as shown in 
Exhibits A & B; including a severability clause; establishing an effective date. 

 
9C. Consider action to approve the second reading of Resolution No. R-2018-102 of the 

City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, approving the terms of an economic 
development performance agreement between the Bastrop Economic Development 
Corporation and 921 Bastrop, LLC; approving the terms of an agreement for 
construction of improvements to the lot at 921 Main Street with 921 Bastrop, LLC, in 
an amount exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000) attached as Exhibit A; repealing 
all resolutions in conflict; providing severability; and providing an effective date. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 23, 2018 

Page 3 of 5 
 

INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 
10A. Consider action and approve Resolution No. R-2018-108 of the City Council of the 

City of Bastrop, Texas, making determinations regarding certain project-specific 
Exceptions and/or Exemptions as provided by Emergency Ordinance 2018-1, Section 
8 (Temporary Moratorium); and Emergency Ordinance 2018-2, Section 7 
(Emergency Drainage Application Rules). 
Presentation was made by Assistant Director of Planning and Zoning, Jennifer 
Bills. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Rogers to approve Resolution No. R-2018-
108 for 463 Kaanapali Lane, seconded by Council Member Ennis, motion was 
approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to approve Resolution No. R-
2018-108 for Tahitian Drive Lot 1120, seconded by Council Member Jones, motion 
was approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Nelson to approve Resolution No. R-2018-
108 for Mauna Kea Lot 529, seconded by Council Member Ennis, motion was 
approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
10B. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-93 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas awarding a community support service agreement for services 
associated with operating, marketing and providing cultural art and theater services, 
to the Bastrop Opera House, at a cost of Ninety Two Thousand and Five-hundred 
and 00/100 dollars ($92,500) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to 
execute all necessary documents for the contract; providing for a repealing clause; 
and establishing an effective date.  

 This item was pulled. 
 
10C. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-94 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas awarding a community support service agreement for operating, 
marketing and staffing a historical museum and visitor center and providing visitor 
center services to the Bastrop County Historical Society, at a cost of One hundred 
and Forty-Six thousand and Nine-hundred and Thirty-Seven and 00/100 dollars 
($146,937) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to execute all 
necessary documents for the contract; providing for a repealing clause; and 
establishing an effective date.  
This item was pulled. 

 
10D. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-95 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas awarding a community support service agreement associated with 
providing recreation and pool services, to the Bastrop YMCA, at a cost of Seventy-
Nine thousand and Eight-hundred and 00/100 dollars ($79,800) attached as Exhibit 
A; authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents for the contract; 
providing for a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date.  
This item was pulled. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 23, 2018 

Page 4 of 5 
 

10E. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-107 of the City Council of the City 
of Bastrop, Texas, approving to extend the term of the current Bank Depository 
Agreement with First National Bank of Bastrop, from November 1, 2018 until 
December 31, 2018, attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to execute 
all necessary documents; providing for a repealing clause; and establishing for an 
effective date. 
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Jones to approve Resolution No. R-2018-
107, seconded by Council Member Rogers, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
10F. Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-30 of the City 

Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, amending the budget for the Fiscal Year 2019 
in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various 
amounts herein attached as Exhibit “A”; repealing all prior ordinances and actions in 
conflict herewith; providing for an effective date; and move to include on the 
November 13, 2018 City Council consent agenda for a second reading.  
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Jones to approve Resolution No. R-2018-
30 minus the $19,000 for the Opera House, seconded by Council Member Rogers, 
motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
The City Council met at 9:02 p.m. in a closed/executive session pursuant to the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, et seq, to discuss the following: 

11A. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 
of the Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney regarding legal advice 
related to the status of the 1445 Interlocal Agreement between the City of Bastrop 
and Bastrop County for the review of subdivision applications in the City’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

 
11B.    City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 

of the Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney regarding legal advice 
related to the status of updating the city’s regulatory program, including public 
comment and citizen input into the new subdivision ordinance, pending revisions to 
zoning and sign codes, and uniformity of the permitting process. 

 
11C. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Sections 

551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney 
regarding legal advice related to certain real property that being 2.07 acres of the 
former Linenberger parcel. 

 
The Bastrop City Council reconvened at 10:29 p.m. into open (public) session. 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 23, 2018 

Page 5 of 5 
 

TAKE ANY NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MATTERS POSTED FOR 
CONSIDERATION IN CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
No action taken. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Adjourned at 10:30 p.m. without objection. 

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 

       Mayor Connie B. Schroeder    City Secretary Ann Franklin 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 8B 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2018-30 amending the budget for 
the Fiscal Year 2019 in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various 
amounts herein as attached in Exhibit “A”; repealing all prior ordinances and actions in conflict 
herewith; and providing for an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Each year, there are items and or services that carry-over from one fiscal year to the next. These 
budget amendments are due to such carry-overs and increase the budget appropriations for 
Fiscal Year 2019. Funds included in these amendments are detailed below: 

General Fund includes: 
The Planning and Zoning department had budgeted for Phase II of the Energov software but 
was unable to move into that phase. This amount is being carried over to FY2019. 

 
Innovation Fund: 
The Votelynx system improvement for Council Chambers was budgeted in FY2018 but did 
not get completed and needs to be a carry-over into FY2019. 

 
Water/Wastewater department includes: 
The FY18 budget included an amount to purchase GIS equipment for documenting the water 
and wastewater lines. This was not completed in FY18 and is being re-appropriated for FY19. 

 
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund includes: 
The budget in this fund should have been $125,000 for water/wastewater but was entered as 
$117,000 which was the amount being transferred from the water/wastewater fund. The 
difference was available fund balance in the VERF fund.  
 
Bastrop Economic Development Corporation includes: 
Agnus/Home Depot Way Street Improvement carry-over from FY2018 in Bond fund. 

 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City Charter requires that when the budget is amended, that the amendment be made by 
Ordinance. 

 
City Council approved the first reading of this Ordinance at the October 23, 2018 meeting. 
 



 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2018-30 amending the budget for 
the Fiscal Year 2019 in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various 
amounts herein as attached in Exhibit “A”; repealing all prior ordinances and actions in conflict 
herewith; and providing for an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Ordinance 2018-30 
• Exhibit “A” 

 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-30 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH EXISTING STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS; 
APPROPRIATING THE VARIOUS AMOUNTS HEREIN; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND ACTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
        WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Bastrop has submitted to the Mayor and City 
Council proposed amendment(s) to the budget of the revenues and/or expenditures/expenses 
of conducting the affairs of said city and providing a complete financial plan for Fiscal Year 
2019; and 
 
        WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have now provided for and conducted a public 
hearing on the budget as provided by law.   
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1: That the proposed budget amendments for the Fiscal Year 2019, as 
submitted to the City Council by the City Manager and which budget amendments are attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, are hereby adopted and approved as the amended budget of said city for 
Fiscal Year 2019. 

 
Section 2:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or 
application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable. 

 
Section 3:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted below, 

or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in accordance with the 
City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of Texas. 
 
 
READ and APPROVED on First Reading on the 23RD day of October 2018. 
 
READ and ADOPTED on Second Reading on the 13th day of November 2018. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED: 
 
 
     ________________________________   
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
 
 



Projected Fund Balance as of 9-30-18 2,566,858$          

FY2019  Budgeted Revenues 11,507,934$        
FY2019  Budgeted Expenses (11,507,934)$       

 
10/2018 Budget Amendments (net) (10,000)$              
Ending Fund Balance 2,556,858$          

 

DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #

Neutral
Neutral
Neutral

Total Revenues $0
                                            

Planning & Zoning Increase ($10,000) Capital Outlay 101-15-00-6000

Total Expenditures ($10,000)
Net Change ($10,000)

Exhibit "A"

New Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

 

FY 2019
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

GENERAL FUND

New Revenue:



Projected Fund Balance as of 9-30-18 487,500    

FY 2019  Budgeted Revenues 2,557,101  
FY 2019 Budgeted Appropriations (2,372,895)  

10/2018 Budget Amendment (15,247)  
Ending Fund Balance 656,459

  
BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT NUMBER

     
Total Revenues 0                                              

Increase (15,247) Capital Outlay 105-00-00-6000

Total Expense (15,247)

Net Change (15,247)

New Expenditures:

FY 2019
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

INNOVATION FUND
 

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:



Projected Fund Balance as of 9-30-18 1,911,557    

FY 2019 Budgeted Revenues 5,707,190  
FY 2019 Budgeted Expenses (5,679,868)  

 
10/2018 Budget Amendments (net) (15,000)
Ending Fund Balance 1,923,879

  
BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT NUMBER

     
Total Revenues 0                                              

Increase

Distribution/Collection Increase (15,000) Equipment, Capital Outlay 202-35-41-6010
Increase

Total Expense (15,000)

Net Change (15,000)

New Expenditures:

FY 2019
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

WATER/WASTEWATER FUND
 

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:



Projected Fund Balance as of 9-30-18 1,866,409   
 

FY2019  Budgeted Revenues 611,563  
FY2019  Budgeted Expenses (400,764)  

10/2018 Budget Amendments (net) (8,000)
Ending Fund Balance 2,069,208   

  

DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #

                                              

Total Revenue 0

Water/Wastewater Increase (8,000) Vehicles 380-00-00-6030

Total Expense (8,000)
Net Change (8,000)

   

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:

New Expenditures:

FY 2019
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
 

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:



Projected Fund Balance as of 9-30-18 878,466   

FY 2019  Budgeted Revenues 0  
FY 2019  Budgeted Expenses 0  

10/2018 Budget Amendments (net) (878,466)
Ending Fund Balance 0   

  

DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #

                                              

Total Revenue 0

Increase (878,466) Agnus/Home Depot Infrastructure 605-70-00-6716

Total Expense (878,466)
Net Change (878,466)

   

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:

New Expenditures:

FY 2019
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORP. - BOND FUND
 

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 8C 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-111 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, approving the Pecan Park, Section 3F Final Plat, being 1.758 acres out of the Mozea 
Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56, located east of the extension of Trailside Lane, within the city 
limits of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A; repealing all conflicting resolution; and providing 
an effective date. 
 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: East of the extension of Trailside Lane (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage: 1.758 acres 
Legal Description: 1.758 acres out of the Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56 
  
Property Owner: Ranch Road Development, LLC/Scott Miller 
Agent Contact: Carlson, Brigance, & Doering/Christine Methvin 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: Pecan Park Residential Planned Development 
Planned Development 
District: Single-Family Patio Homes (PD PH)  

Future Land Use: Neighborhood Residential 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
The applicant has submitted a Final Plat for the Pecan Park, Sections 3F.  The Preliminary Plat 
that includes this section was approved on July 10th as Pecan Park, Sections 3B-3E.  Section 3F 
is 10 single-family lots out of Section 3E that they are platting to construct with Section 1A to make 
the connection between Driftwood Lane and Trailside Lane (Exhibit A).  The single-family 
detached lots allowed under the Single-Family Patio Home district of the Planned Development 
and have a minimum width of 40 feet and a minimum of 4,600 square feet in size.  480 linear feet 
of street will be dedicated for Trailside Lane, which will be 50-foot wide residential local collector 
right-of-way.   
 
Traffic Impact and Streets 
The Final Plat proposes to extend Trailside Lane, a residential local collector street, 
southwestward to provide the connection from Driftwood Lane in Section 1A to the exiting 
development. Sidewalks will be installed along all proposed streets, and will connect to the 
proposed neighborhood trail system.  The Public Improvement Construction Plans have been 
reviewed and have been tentatively approved, pending City Council approval of the Final Plat. 



 

 
Utilities  
Water service (domestic and fire) will be provided by the City via water line extensions from 
existing infrastructure located on Childers Drive. These lines will be designed according to the 
City’s construction standards, as well as the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s 
(TCEQ) requirements. 
 
Wastewater collection and treatment will also be provided by the City, and will require the 
installation of lines that will ultimately connect to an existing wastewater lift station. 
 
There is an existing LCRA substation and electrical easement to the north of the proposed 
subdivision.  The applicant received a subdivision variance on November 12, 2014 to eliminate 
the requirement for 50 foot setback from high voltage transmission lines.  
 
Drainage 
The Public Improvement Construction Plans that were reviewed with the Final Plat proposes to 
install an underground storm sewer system designed to drain runoff generated from the 
development into an existing system located adjacent to Section 6B. The existing system was 
designed to accommodate this increase in peak flows, and ultimately connects to the Colorado 
River. 
 
The proposed drainage system will be designed with a sufficient capacity to route flows from a 
100-year design storm to the Colorado River. Due to the property’s close proximity to the river, 
stormwater detention is not required.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Notifications to adjacent property owners within 200 feet were mailed on October 30, 2018 
(Attachment 3). 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
All Final Plats must be reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission and are then forwarded 
to City Council for approval.   
 
Compliance with 2036 Comprehensive Plan: 
• Future Land Use Plan - Neighborhood Residential:  The Neighborhood Residential character 

area is for single-family residential subdivision development, associated amenities such as 
parks, trails, open spaces and public uses such as schools, fire stations, and more.  

 
This final plat complies with the Future Land Use Plan.  The plat includes 10 single-family 
lots that will provide single-family detached units. This section is part of the Pecan Park 
development, in which the total development includes multiple phases that include parks, 
trails, and recreation facilities. 
 

• Objective 2.4.1:  Invest in waste water system expansion in areas that promote infill and 
contiguous development. 

 
This development is within the City’s wastewater service area and is vacant land 
immediately adjacent to existing development.  This subdivision connects to existing 
wastewater lines and continues the system in an efficient manner 

 



 

• Goal 4.1.1 Provide a greater diversity of housing options in Bastrop while protecting the 
character of the City’s existing neighborhoods. 

 
The Pecan Park Development includes six different residential lot standards.  This plat 
utilizes the Single Family Patio Home district, which allows a minimum of 4,800 square 
foot lots with reduced rear and side setbacks to allow various single-family product types 
and with varied 20 and 25 foot front setbacks to provide visual appeal.  
 

Local Government Code  
• Sec. 212.002.  Rules.   

After a public hearing on the matter, the governing body of a municipality may adopt rules 
governing plats and subdivisions of land within the municipality's jurisdiction to promote 
the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of the municipality and the safe, orderly, and 
healthful development of the municipality. 

 
 Bastrop adopted subdivision regulations in 1981.  The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10 

– Subdivisions outlines the requirements for plats within the Bastrop city limits and Extra 
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 

 
Section 212.004 Plat Required 
(a) The owner of a tract of land located within the limits or in the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of a municipality who divides the tract in two or more parts to lay out a subdivision of 
the tract, including an addition to a municipality, to lay out suburban, building, or other 
lots, or to lay out streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts of the tract intended to 
be dedicated to public use or for the use of purchasers or owners of lots fronting on or 
adjacent to the streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts must have a plat of the 
subdivision prepared. 

 
The applicant has proposed dividing up an undeveloped 1.758 acre tract into 10 single-
family lots.  Public improvements within the subdivision (streets, drainage, and other 
utilities) will be dedicated to the City upon their completion.  

 
• Sec. 212.010.  Standards for Approval 

(a)  The municipal authority responsible for approving plats shall approve a plat if: 
 (1) it conforms to the general plan of the municipality and its current and future streets, 

alleys, parks, playgrounds, and public utility facilities;  
 

The final plat conforms to the Future Land Use Plan, which is designated 
Neighborhood Residential for this area. 

 
 (2)   it conforms to the general plan for the extension of the municipality and its roads, 

streets, and public highways within the municipality and in its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, taking into account access to and extension of sewer and water mains 
and the instrumentalities of public utilities; 

 
The plat conforms to the adopted Transportation Master Plan.  The extension of 
Trailside Lane will be dedicated with this plat.  The plat also conforms to the Capital 
Improvement Plan and will install public extensions of the water and wastewater 
infrastructure. 

  



 

 (3)   a bond required under Section 212.0106, if applicable, is filed with the municipality;  
and 

 
Required improvements and bonds will be furnished before the approval of the 
Final Plat. 

 
 (4)   it conforms to any rules adopted under Section 212.002. 
 

The final plat complies with the requirements of the adopted Subdivision 
Ordinance. 

 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 10 – Subdivisions 
• Section 4.20 – Standard Procedure – Final Plat 

 
4.20.1 Submission 

C. The final plat shall be filed with the Director of Planning and Development at least 
fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting at which approval is requested. Prior to the plat 
being placed before the Council for consideration, the plat must be accepted as 
administratively complete by the Director of Planning and Development. A plat that 
contains the information set forth in paragraph 4.20.2 is considered complete. 

Planning and Engineering staff have reviewed the Pecan Park Section 3F Final 
Plat for compliance with subdivision and utility standards, have deemed the plat 
administratively complete and that it meets all of the Subdivision Ordinance 
requirements. 
 

D. The Director of Planning and Development will mail a notice to each property owner 
named as required by Section 4.10.1A hereof each and every time that a subdivision 
proposal is pending before the City Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council 
which notice shall include the date, place and time of each subdivision, 
consideration. 

 
A mailed notice was sent to all property owners within 200 feet on October 30, 
2018. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-111 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, approving the Pecan Park, Section 3F Final Plat, being 1.758 acres out of the Mozea 
Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56, located east of the extension of Trailside Lane, within the city 
limits of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A; repealing all conflicting resolution; and providing 
an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
Exhibit A: Final Plat 
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Surrounding Property Owner Notification 
 



 Page 1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-111 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE PECAN PARK, SECTION 3F FINAL PLAT, BEING 1.758 
ACRES OUT OF THE MOZEA ROUSSEAU SURVEY, ABSTRACT 56, 
LOCATED EAST OF THE EXTENSION OF TRAILSIDE LANE, WITHIN THE 
CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, TEXAS, AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT A; REPEALING 
ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code Section 212 and the City of 

Bastrop Subdivision Ordinance, the City Council is required to take action regarding certain plats; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, Ranch Road Development L.L.C. (“the Applicant”) has submitted a Final Plat 
for Pecan Park Section 3F, a residential subdivision; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Final Plat is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan designation of 

Neighborhood Residential and requirements of the Pecan Park Planned Development (Ord # 
2017-14); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat for Pecan Park Section 3B, 3C, 3D, & 3E (Section 3F is 

a portion of Section 3E) was recommended for approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
on June 28, 2018 and City Council on July 10, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Bastrop Planning and Development Department has reviewed the above-
referenced Final Plat and found it is in compliance with the Subdivision Ordinance, and the Pecan 
Park Planned Development (Ord # 2017-14) standards; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice of the subdivision was sent in accordance with the Subdivision 

Ordinance to notify the public.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS:  
 

Section 1.  The Final Plat known as the Pecan Park Section 3F, being 1.758 acres of the 
Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56, located east of the future extension of Trailside Lane, 
within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas is hereby approved, a copy of same being attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

Section 2:  All orders, ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein.    

Section 3:  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas. 

 



 Page 2 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 13th day of 
November, 2018. 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

       APPROVED: 

             
       ________________________________ 
       Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 

 







AGNES

TRAILSIDE

HA
SL

ER

HIDDEN SPRINGS

TRAILSTONE

DE
ER

FO
OT

MARIE

CHILDERS

Location Map
Final Plat of 

Pecan Park Section 3F ³Date: 10/30/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     1 inch = 270 feet

WATER

AGNES

PE
RK

IN
S

MAIN

LOVERS

RIMROCK

HASLER
MAYNARD

HEADWATERS

CH
IL

DE
RS

ES
KE

W

HIDDEN SPRINGS

HOSPITAL

TRAILSTONE

MARIE

PERKINS¬«71Legend
Pecan Park 3F

Legend
Pecan Park 3F



P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  

1311 Chestnut  St reet  ●  PO Box 427 ●  Bast rop,  Texas 78602 ●  512.332.8840 ●  www.c i tyofbas trop.org  

 

 
 
 
Notice of Pending Final Plat Approval 
City of Bastrop 
City Council 
 

Dear Property Owner: 
 
The City Council will conduct a public meeting Tuesday, November 27, 2018 at 6:30 
p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, 
Texas to consider the approval of a final plat for Pecan Park Section 3F being 1.758 acres 
out of the Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56, located on the extension of Trailside 
Lane within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas. 

 
Applicant/Owner: Ranch Road Development LLC 
 
Location/Address: Extension of Trailside Lane 
 
Legal Description: Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract No. 56, being 1.758 acres  

 
Number of Lots:   10 residential lots 

 

The site location map and a copy of the plat is attached for reference. 

As a property owner within 200 feet of the above referenced property, you are being 
notified of the upcoming meetings per the Bastrop Code of Ordinances.  For more 
information on this project, you can contact the Planning & Development offices at (512) 
332-8840, plan@cityofbastrop.org, or visit the office at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, 
Texas. 
 
For additional information, please visit or call the Planning & Development offices.  
 
Please provide reply to the address below, via fax (512) 332-8829, or email: 
plan@cityofbastrop.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For: Final Plat Pecan Park Section 3F 
 

mailto:plan@cityofbastrop.org
mailto:plan@cityofbastrop.org


 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 8D 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-112 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas abandoning a ten-foot (10') easement, forty feet (40') in length, located within a one-
hundred and ninety foot (190') Public Utility Easement (PUE) located along the northern property 
line of Lot 2, Chestnut Square Subdivision, being located in Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit 
“A”; providing for a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Matt Jones, Planning and Development Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
A Final Plat of Chestnut Square was approved by the City of Bastrop on February 27, 2001. As a 
part of this Final Plat, a 190’ Public Utility Easement (PUE) was dedicated along a portion of the 
northern lot line of Lot 2. The existing building, which is located on Lot 2, being located at 1100 
Highway 95 prior to the filing of the PUE, encroaches into the 190’ PUE, based on how the 
easement was platted. There are no utilities located in the eastern 40’ of the PUE.   
 
The current property owner brought this matter to the City’s attention.  Therefore, the City has 
initiated a partial easement abandonment to resolve the encroachment of the existing building 
into the PUE. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
This resolution, if passed, will provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the City and 
will resolve the encroachment of an existing building into a Public Utility Easement.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-112 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas abandoning a ten-foot (10') easement, forty feet (40') in length, located within a one-
hundred and ninety foot (190') Public Utility Easement (PUE) located along the northern property 
line of Lot 2, Chestnut Square Subdivision, being located in Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit 
“A”; providing for a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution 
• Exhibit “A” 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-112 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
ABANDONING A TEN-FOOT (10') EASEMENT, FORTY FEET (40') IN LENGTH, 
LOCATED WITHIN A ONE-HUNDRED AND NINETY FOOT (190') PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT (PUE) LOCATED ALONG THE NORTHERN PROPERTY 
LINE OF LOT 2, CHESTNUT SQUARE SUBDIVISION, BEING LOCATED IN 
BASTROP, TEXAS, AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT “A”; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes the responsibility to promote the health, safety, 

and general welfare of the City, and to enact appropriate development standards; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are currently no utilities located within the forty-foot portion of the Public 

Utility Easement to be abandoned; and 
 

WHEREAS, the abandonment of the portion of the Public Utility Easement would resolve 
the encroachment of an existing building into the Public Utility Easement; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1: Abandoning a ten-foot (10') easement, forty feet (40') in length, located within 
a one-hundred and ninety foot (190') Public Utility Easement (PUE) located along the northern 
property line of Lot 2, Chestnut Square Subdivision 
 

SECTION 2:  All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 
  

SECTION 3; That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 
and it is duly resolved.   

 
DULY RESOLVED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 13th 

day of November 2018. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 



FARM STREET 
( 55.55' ROW) CHESTNUT SQUARE 

TliOUAS011<r 
0.526 Ac. Tr. 

.•...... ----- .---Bf'f - J75' --------

,.,,;, 

N 88'57'00" E 90.5S' 

��

I 
I 

\_ 

}
� 

ii 

N 8S'S7'00' E 2111.47' 

"""" 
.-=

,or 

i .. 
LOT 1 

"J.0736 Ac. 
46,'768 Ft.2

tt &11'57'00" E 104.35' 

I fll' f'(J{ N 88'57'0!1' E 
- -:- - - { N 8S'!.o7'0(1' £ l!i0.00' ) 

I I 
I I 
I �:

1>' I 
I I 
I ' 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

LOT 2-
0.7806 Ac. 

,34,000 Ft.2 
r . • • 

H 66'57'CX( E )00
.

5.l' 

� 

·.- '  ... . J;..._I• 
. , __ , I 1\ 

. "•'.,J'
i
·_-__ , :, 

_
_ -_.- , -c-·:, -•.• V) 

I\ --------� 
I-, 

-- r=;::! I \ ..... • - ' 

A. - l5.4S' 

1,1'!:,_ � � ..... 
- I�,,:! & '----' ::;:: 

I t � 
.,,: � :::i::

,,� <:::::)� 
\ \" �-._ 
I l 

'----

I I 
I l _, l ·
I I 
I I 
I I 
I ' 

C .. 35.4a' ---,--e,,_. 
s ozl::S"::St' E • I · 

A�""l 111.llQ 
C '!", 110,79', 
S �47'!� w,, _ 

., l 

SCALE:-1' , 40' 

_j_• _________ •
· 
____ (�9.59•) _ fmY <Y'B«��AS1'."272/m"""1=---=-=---\- ___ (J<l8.80") 

_ 
n ( ,'

( 20.00') ; 
-

---
- -

--
5" 

� - 7 { s �'1!>3'�\" [ 6911 . .39' )--- - --- - --- - --- - --- -

( \O.OO-;-)-/-·-- -:- - _ ---_-
- ----- -

-�- � _ _ . (. S �HS .. � W . 5',. 
:;; 

· s m&·'5" w ,,._,r !II;'

-------- -'!!-=.-!!P: ___ J 

B[NCH MARK -- 372.61' 
1()P OF ca.a?ETE" JIONlllllNT f'OIJNlJ I FOOT 
lt!S1 OF � C(llrN£R ar O£STMff 
S1fllH lRlXC AT CIUS BRANCli 
(Rl/6-AS!'HlM'f!'IWJI) 

1/ITTT'S"' 
/.8Jlk Tr. 
2n/1v BC1R 

S 88'57'?:1 W 206.65' 

A• 36.40' 
c_ .. JB.40' 
S B6'57'J1" W 

CHESTNUT STREET 
STATE HIGHWAY LOOP 150 

( JOO' ROW) 

�-

"� ·,,�
~1; 

LOT 3 
5.6813 Ac. 

.,•. 

, . "' 

The City of Bastrop impact fee for 
each service unit within this subdii.:,�on sh,li 1101 cxceed�l,.l)D pQr ord1n:ir1cc 1·· 95.,19 

= 
1 . .Lot 2 end 3 shall hove a joint use drive entrance. 
2. lot J shall _be denied ony entror>ee·'driv6 opposite existing Highway Depl lskmds. 
3. Entrance Drive Cu"".erts shall be i1'. �ccordonce with Stole Hwy. Dept regulations. 
4. 100 year. flood ,Pl�m detenni_ried {�.m-Flood Hoiord SolJodary Mop FIRM No. 48021C 0118 C. 
5, Adequ�cy of e�1sl1n�. �ewer tine to serve Lot 2, sholi be subject to the Citys approval. 
6. Exlims1C1n of city ulWties lo lots·) and 2, shall be in occordo:ice with conslrudion 

stan<fords of City of Bastrop. . , 

ADlliIIPNA\ NOTES ( 2001 ) _: 
7. lhjs plot hos been revised to shOw additional ownership for Lot 2. 
8. Th_.s plot hos been reY!sed to show on updated 100 ;yeor flood plain. 
�
-

�� f:o�
h
�i�e�f\�r��

d
�_
to sh

�
� on odditi

_
oool 10' PUE olong o portion of 

( Rrnsm 2001 ) 

10. Thjs plot hos been re11ised to reflec_t· the· current Cily _of Bastrop Mayor ond City Secretory. 
11. This pl?'. has. been re\lised �o. show Qrive Eosement,- os per Vol. 867, Pg, 508, SCOR. ( Previous Note No. 2 ) 
12. The ongmol fretdwork perfonned ·�nd.

0
pl�tted· in· 1987, REDRAWN Feb .. 2001. 

STA TE Cf TEXAS 
COUNlY OF BASlROP 

FINAL PLAT 
NUMBER OF LOTS - 3 
JUNE J 7, 1987 
TOTAL ACRES 75355 

KNOW ALL MEN BY lllESE PRESENTS: 
That Thomas A. D}ke, Tr. (lots 1 &. 3) and Jeffrey R. Voigt and wife, Cheree L Voigt 
(lot 2). owners of 7,5355 acres of lond In Building Blocks 71, 72, 89 & 90, Easl of Main 
Street, in the City of Bastrop, Bastrop County, Texas, ond being o part of that property 
described in deeds recorded in Vol. 278, Pg. 436, and Vol. 272, Pg. 420 (lots 1 & 3), 
ond all of that property described in Vol. 867, Pg, 512 (Lot 2), Bastrop County Deed 
Records, hove caused said acreage to be surveyed and plotted as shown on the 
foregoing mop to be known cs CHESTNUT SQUARE, and do hereby dedicate 
to the Public the use of the Streett and E�ements as show hereon. 
Witness my hand this th� day· aO�

�• 
2001, A.D. o:ir,.�a. f?½\- J,{f_=/L)g --1:.__ Thomas A. Dyke ��Voigt 7'+-

�6�JJ�/1itirnop �
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the � doy of ftk.1].4
200.L, by 

�:�
as A. D�e 

�--�l\�{i).,�•---
/�;,�

•
.::·.;•:-i:, 

fJ1�
_ 
• ) Notory Public, Sta or'Texos i.{ 

_
· 
__ 
-��:'·'�i1Tl'Ltll:(

.
&I.Ufrille,1� �\'�/' f/ · 1f l.,;;�5�-..'. :1••--1•1- . �!',!'-:lul!,s.lCJ�=o�,.+=�"----"::'.·\ -...,,'."_��··· o1..:rnc1:H 76· <� PfYlted Nome of otory / EKpires 

STA TE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BASTROP 

cl4. 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 1:tJ:... day of � 
200_1_ by Cheree L. 

V
oigl. 

····-· f\ th Kfi 
,;,,,,(,-SEAL � Not'l')'_P_ubl;c, S\ot

z 
of Texas 

, I 
z'�� .. ::,:::•a> f 

tJ I � \ k'.Ol lo · '2,l,,----Z,00 '1 
�

--..- _ ·,1,.,1 H
.
�. cw j Printed Nome of Notary / fapires 

STATE Of TEXAS 
WJNTY Cf BASTROP 

I, Dole l. Olson, do hereby certify that I prepared this REDRA\m plot from on actual and 
accurate on-the-ground sur11ey performed in 198"/, of the !and, and that the comer 
moouments shown were properly placed under my personal supervision, at that time, in 
occordance with the Subdivision Regulations of �9lX;.��strop, Bost,ap County, Texos. 

(✓j) ail Y. ,() /J /f:-:;__�•!/,\ 
Dde L llso�, l/ � 

... �{�:Aif·i··
:,{-:-:'SE�(':} 

Registered Public Suf\leyor ..L,,i,, 17, JM. --�:�.-;·• ;;;·;··,�·:.I) 
7R,,g

.u.�o
o
t
.
,,
1
7S5.Jtreet Won< Perlorme ··f-:•."t.Y:":.'���j 111 (1r·�·up_� 

r
0tlfi· I2i'0� s4ji602 �, 

{.le 
Approved on \his QJ__ dcy <1f � 2{Xl_L A.D., by !he City Coooci of the City of Bastrop. 

APPROVED: � '&z..11-
Tom Scot� l,foyor of the 
City cf BiJstrop, Texas 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COWlY OF BASlROP 

AffiST: c1
b½?r,-1Y)� 

City Secretory, City of 
Bostrop, Texas 

I, Shiley �elm, Oerl: of �sYoJ> County do hereb� certify \l;ol the foregoing instrnment af writing 
and the cerUf�atn of oothentirotion wos fitd for recard ri m;· offfice co this the L./i__, �y of � 
200.L A.O. mi the Pfot Records of soid County ond State in Plot Cobitlet _!::I_ Poge(s) � • 

fled /or Record ol .1©.£o'dor!,, A.JI. this the .12'ty of� 200L. A.D. 
Witness my hond and sed of the office of County C1ert of said County on th1S the Q day 

� ,t��:; '':,:,�: 
-<,,:·,-;���-�r

CHESTNUT SOUARE 

EXHIBIT "A"



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM:  9A 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action and approve Resolution No. R-2018-113 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, making determinations regarding certain project-specific Exceptions and/or Exemptions 
as provided by Emergency Ordinance 2018-1, Section 8 (Temporary Moratorium); and 
Emergency Ordinance 2018-2, Section 7 (Emergency Drainage Application Rules). 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Jennifer Bills, Assistant Planning Director 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM:  9B 
 
TITLE:   
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Emergency Ordinance No. 
2018-1-A of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, extending the temporary moratorium, 
Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-1, enacted August 23, 2018; including a severability clause; 
establishing an effective date and motion to include on the November 15, 2018 Special Meeting 
Agenda. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
City Council passed Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-1, which established a Temporary 
Moratorium commencing on August 23, 2018, and created a short-term freeze on the acceptance 
of applications for subdivision, building permits, or development permits for the purpose of 
preserving the status quo in order to allow the Council reasonable time to review, conduct 
research, receive public input, evaluate and establish reasonable policies, and prepare a 
comprehensive subdivision ordinance for future adoption.  
 
City Council also passed Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-2-A, which established additional 
requirements mandating data related to drainage and flooding for the acceptance, processing, 
and approval of certain projects in the city limits and the extraterritorial jurisdiction during the 
moratorium. The additional requirements mandated by Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-2-A 
have given the City the ability to assess the impact of these projects on potential future flooding 
events.   
 
As a part of these two (2) ordinances, the City Council adopted a temporary process that allows 
development to continue in the City of Bastrop requiring projects to be evaluated on a case-by-
case basis through pre-application meetings and conformity to specific interim drainage measures 
to ensure that detrimental development does not occur.  The temporary process is considered a 
successful interim solution as of October 31, 2018 having held 41 individual pre-application 
meetings, issued 212 permits since the inception of the moratorium including 17 new single-family 
residential, five (5) commercial remodels, one (1) new office complex, and two (2) commercial 
finish-out permits, and prevented one (1) house from being built in a drainage area. 
 
The City has retained a planning consultant firm for the purpose of evaluating the City’s historic, 
current and anticipated construction attributes, and is developing new standards to preserve the 
quality of life and to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City and 
to direct and manage the rapid growth that is now occurring.  The City’s planning consulting firm 
has completed both an in-depth analysis of Downtown Bastrop’s DNA and how it functions as a 
complete neighborhood and an extensive evaluation of the City’s current development codes that 



 

identified significant challenges and code conflicts that are not aligned with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan 2036 or considered fiscally sustainable or geographically sensitive.  

  
It is important to complete and adopt new development standards including establishing 
appropriate drainage regulations with impervious cover limitations, appropriate zoning districts 
and district regulations, appropriate cut and fill regulations, and address identified issues that will 
affect future growth and development of the area within its jurisdiction. The adoption process of 
new development standards will require community input and will take additional amount of time 
to complete. Without the additional requirements mandated by Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-
2, the City’s review process for drainage and stormwater improvements throughout the City Limits 
and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction would revert to being inadequate and insufficient to prevent, 
mitigate, or minimize future flooding events. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-1, which established a temporary moratorium for ninety (90) 
days, is set to expire on November 22, 2019.  The attached Ordinance will extend the existing 
temporary moratorium by an additional six (6) months expiring on May 21, 2019. 
 
Council has been extremely committed to ensuring that impending and future development is 
conducted in a fiscally sustainable and environmentally responsible manner that honors the City’s 
rich heritage and unique ecological makeup.  This extension of the moratorium is necessary to 
provide the City with the time to continue to properly conduct research, confer with experts, and 
solicit public input from residents, business owners, property owners, realtors and developers to 
ensure this goal is achieved. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Emergency Ordinance No. 
2018-1-A of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, extending the temporary moratorium, 
Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-1, enacted August 23, 2018; including a severability clause; 
establishing an effective date and motion to include on the November 15, 2018 Special Meeting 
Agenda. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

• Emergency Ordinance 2018-1-A 
 
   



City Atty Alan B. Draft “F” November 7, 2018 
 

 
CITY OF BASTROP, TX 

 
EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 2018-1-A 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, EXTENDING 
EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 2018-1, THE TEMPORARY MORATORIUM 
STAYING THE ACCEPTANCE AND PROCESSING OF CERTAIN PERMITS IN 
THE BASTROP CITY LIMITS AND EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION, 
PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS OF FACT, DEFINITIONS, APPLICABILITY, 
PURPOSE, ENACTMENT, DURATION, EXTENSION, EXCEPTIONS AND 
EXEMPTIONS, DETERMINATION AND APPEALS, REPEALER, 
SEVERABILITY, ENFORCEMENT, EFFECTIVE DATE, AND PROPER NOTICE 
AND MEETING. 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Bastrop, Texas (“City”) is a Home-Rule City acting under its 

Charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution, and 
Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code; and  

 
 WHEREAS,  the Bastrop City Council (“City Council”), as a duly-elected legislative body, 

finds that it is facing significant historic and contemporary land use challenges that existing 
regulations were not designed to address; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council finds that the City has been actively and diligently engaged 

in its assessment of the City’s drainage and regulatory program, including evaluating its 
subdivision ordinance, zoning codes, and the uniformity of its permitting process and goals for 
stormwater plans and improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001 provides the City general 

authority to adopt an Ordinance or police regulations that are for the good government, peace or 
order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a power granted by law to the City; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Chapters 211, 213, 214 and 217 grant the 

City certain regulation authority concerning construction, land use, nuisances, structures, and 
development-related activities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to ensure that impending and future development is conducted 

in a fiscally sustainable and environmentally responsible manner that honors the City’s rich 
heritage and unique ecological makeup; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City will change drastically if unlimited growth and development should 

occur under the City's existing Code of Ordinances, which no longer adequately address concerns 
about the effect of development on the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has experienced historical flooding events over the decades and four 

(4) FEMA-declared disasters in the past three (3) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s current development standards and regulations are based on 1983 

and 1991 data that is outdated and used a one size fits all approach; and    



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 2 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

 
WHEREAS, the City Limits and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (“ETJ”) are comprised of a 

combination of ecological and topographical features that create significant drainage and 
development challenges when using the one size fits all approach; and   

 
WHEREAS, in 2016, the City commissioned engineering firm Halff and Associates to 

study the City’s drainage issues; and   
 
WHEREAS, in 2018, Halff and Associates provided the City with Flood Protection 

Planning Studies for two (2) watersheds in the Bastrop area: Piney Creek and Gills Branch; and   
  
WHEREAS, on July 28, 2018, the City Council, accompanied by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, participated in a properly posted, public bus tour of key locales around the 
community, including sites of significant development-related drainage challenges; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Gills Branch and Piney Creek Studies document the needs and 

challenges of the existing drainage and flood mitigation infrastructure across the City Limits and 
ETJ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Bastrop County have been diligently evaluating and assessing 

the findings in the 2018 Gills Branch and Piney Creek Studies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City held a work session on February 20, 2018 to review the findings of 

the Gills Branch and Piney Creek Studies with the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that certain essential public and private infrastructure, 

being drainage and storm water improvements throughout the City Limits and ETJ, are 
inadequate and insufficient to prevent, mitigate, or minimize flooding events; and 

 
WHEREAS, additional evaluation of the existing infrastructure and development of 

measures to address flooding and drainage are needed to allow for growth and development 
within the City Limits and ETJ while protecting the health, safety, environment, quality of life, and 
general welfare of its residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has retained a planning consultant firm for the purpose of evaluating 

the City’s historic, current and anticipated construction attributes, and is developing new 
standards to preserve the quality of life and to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of 
the citizens of the City and to direct and manage the rapid growth that is now occurring; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City is in the process of studying and evaluating the impact of further 

development; appropriate impervious cover limitations; the need for drainage and detention 
improvements; appropriate zoning districts and district regulations; appropriate cut and fill 
regulations; and issues that will affect future growth and development of the area within its 
jurisdiction; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City is in the process of seeking additional community input; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City is in the process of studying and updating its development 



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 3 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

ordinances and procedures in order to clarify and improve its planning policies based on the 
forthcoming regulations, to strengthen the connection between the City's Code of Ordinances and 
the goals and needs of the City's residents, and to protect the health, safety, environment, quality 
of life, and general welfare of its residents; and  

 
WHEREAS, in order for the City to have adequate and reasonable time to continue to 

review, evaluate, and revise the City's development ordinances, and to continue to consider the 
impact of the ordinances upon future growth, public health and safety, development, the natural 
environment, and the place of architectural improvements, and ecological importance and 
significance within the City Limits and ETJ, the City wishes to continue to maintain the status quo 
by extending the temporary moratorium, during which certain applications for development 
permits and/or approvals will continue to be suspended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of prohibiting certain applications for development permits and/ 

or approvals during this study period includes, within limitation, preserving the status quo during 
the planning process, eliminating incentives for hasty applications, facilitating thoughtful and 
consistent planning, avoiding exploitation of the delays inherent in the municipal legislative 
process, and preventing applications from undermining the effectiveness of the revised rules by 
applying for permits and/ or approvals in order to avoid the application of new, possibly more 
restrictive, development regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has identified and considered evidence demonstrating that 

applying existing development ordinances or regulations and other applicable laws is inadequate 
to prevent the new development from causing the overcapacity of municipal and private drainage 
infrastructure or being detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare in an affected 
geographical area, that being the City of Bastrop’s City Limits and ETJ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has identified and considered evidence including that 

presented by City of staff, consulting engineering firms, FEMA, and observed during site visits 
demonstrating the extent of need beyond the estimated capacity of existing essential public and 
private drainage facilities that is expected to result from new property development, including 
identifying essential public facilities that are currently operating near, at, or beyond capacity in an 
affected area, that being the City Limits and ETJ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has identified and considered evidence that alternative 

methods of achieving the objectives of the moratorium are unsatisfactory, and demonstrating that 
the municipality has approved a working plan and time schedule for achieving the objectives of 
the moratorium; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s program for addressing drainage issues during the extension of the 

temporary moratorium includes planning, regulating, building, and educating; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council passed Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-1, which 

established a Temporary Moratorium commencing on August 23, 2018, and created a short-term 
freeze on the acceptance of applications for subdivision, building permits, or development permits 
for the purpose of preserving the status quo in order to allow the Council reasonable time to 
review, conduct research, receive public input, evaluate and establish reasonable policies, and 
prepare a comprehensive subdivision ordinance for future adoption; and   



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 4 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council passed Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-2-A, which 

established additional requirements mandating data related to drainage and flooding for the 
acceptance, processing, and approval of certain projects in the city limits and the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction during the moratorium; and   

 
WHEREAS,  the additional requirements mandated by Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-

2-A have given the City the ability to assess the impact of these projects on potential future 
flooding events; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a temporary process that allows development to 

continue in the City of Bastrop requiring projects to be evaluated on a case-by-case basis through 
pre-application meetings and conformity to specific interim drainage measures to ensure that 
detrimental development does not occur; and 

  
WHEREAS, the temporary process is considered a successful interim solution as of 

October 31, 2018 having held 41 individual pre-application meetings, issued 212 permits since 
the inception of the moratorium including 17 new single-family residential, five (5) commercial 
remodels, one (1) new office complex, and two (2) commercial finish-out permits, and prevented 
one (1) house from being built in a drainage area; and 
  

WHEREAS, the City has retained a planning consultant firm for the purpose of evaluating 
the City’s historic, current and anticipated construction attributes, and is developing new 
standards to preserve the quality of life and to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of 
the citizens of the City and to direct and manage the rapid growth that is now occurring; and  

  
WHEREAS, the City’s planning consulting firm has completed both an in-depth analysis 

of Downtown Bastrop’s DNA and how it functions as a complete neighborhood and an extensive 
evaluation of the City’s current development codes that identified significant challenges and code 
conflicts that are not aligned with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2036 or considered fiscally 
sustainable or geographically sensitive; and 

  
WHEREAS, the City desires to complete and adopt new development standards including 

establishing appropriate drainage regulations including impervious cover limitations; appropriate 
zoning districts and district regulations; appropriate cut and fill regulations; and address identified 
issues that will affect future growth and development of the area within its jurisdiction; and  

  
WHEREAS, the adoption process of new development standards will require community 

input and will take additional amount of time to complete; and  
  
WHEREAS, without the additional requirements mandated by Emergency Ordinance No. 

2018-2, the City’s review process for drainage and stormwater improvements throughout the City 
Limits and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction would revert to being inadequate and insufficient to prevent, 
mitigate, or minimize future flooding events. 

 WHEREAS, Local Government Code Section 212.136 allows a city to extend a 
moratorium after holding a public hearing on the proposed extension of the moratorium; and 
adopting written findings that identify the problem requiring the need for extending the 



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 5 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

moratorium; describe the reasonable progress made to alleviate the problem; and specify a 
definite duration for the renewal period of the moratorium. 

 WHEREAS, the City a public hearing on the proposed extension of the moratorium is 
set for November 15, 2018.  

 WHEREAS, the City finds that the original 90 days for the moratorium was insufficient 
to complete the series of regulatory modifications, and infrastructure improvements, and thus 
the extension is necessary 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that an extension of the moratorium is necessary to 

provide the City with the time necessary to continue to properly conduct research, confer with 
experts, and solicit public input from residents, business owners, property owners, realtors and 
developers; and 

 
WHEREAS, in recognition of the importance of development permits and/ or approvals to 

the community, the City desires to extend this moratorium through May 21, 2019, and to include 
a waiver provision in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, Subchapter 
E.  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the City’s review process for drainage and 

stormwater improvements throughout the City Limits and ETJ are, without the pre-submission 
meeting and engineering certification requirements implemented in Emergency Ordinance No. 
2018-2, inadequate and insufficient to prevent, mitigate, or minimize future flooding events; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS OF FACT:  The foregoing recitals are based on evidence 
presented to the City Council, and are hereby incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as 
legislative findings of fact as if expressly set forth herein. 

 
SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS:  As used in this Ordinance, these terms shall be defined as 

follows.  Terms appearing in this Ordinance but not defined herein shall have the meanings 
provided in the City’s Code of Ordinances, or if not defined by the City then the common meanings 
in accordance with ordinary usage or as defined in applicable state statutes. 

1. Commercial Property: means property zoned for or otherwise authorized for use other 
than single-family use, multifamily use, heavy industrial use, or use as a quarry. 
 

2. Essential Public Facilities: means water, sewer, or storm drainage facilities or street 
improvements provided by a municipality or private utility. 
 

3. Impervious cover: means structures, buildings, parking areas, roads, and other 
impermeable man-made improvements covering the natural land surface that prevents 
infiltration of water.   

 
4. Permit: means a license, certificate, approval, registration, consent, permit, contract or 



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 6 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

other agreement for construction related to, or provision of, service from a water or 
wastewater utility owned, operated, or controlled by a regulatory agency, or other form 
of authorization required by law, rule, regulation, order, or ordinance that a person 
must obtain to perform an action or initiate, continue, or complete a project for which 
the permit is sought. 

 
The term does not include Trade Permits, which are excluded from this Ordinance. 

 
5. Project: means an endeavor over which a regulatory agency exerts its jurisdiction and 

for which one (1) or more permits are required to initiate, continue, or complete the 
endeavor. 

 
6. Property Development: means the construction, reconstruction, or other alteration or 

improvement of residential or commercial buildings or the subdivision or replatting of 
a subdivision of residential or commercial property. 
 

7. Property Owner: means the record owner of real property, or their designated agents 
(i.e., those holding Power of Attorney or other written authorization to act on behalf of 
the owner).  
 

8. Residential Property: means property zoned for or otherwise authorized for single-
family or multi-family use. 
 

9. Trade Permits:  means permits required by the City’s Code of Ordinances for the 
following work by skilled tradesmen: Electrical, HVAC, Mechanical, and Plumbing.  For 
purposes of this Ordinance, the term also includes Roofing and Irrigation permits. 

 

SECTION 3. APPLICABILITY:  The City of Bastrop hereby enacts this Ordinance in order 
to extend the temporary moratorium on the acceptance and processing of certain applications 
and issuance of particular Permits and other forms of municipal authorizations related to specific 
construction and land development activities. This temporary moratorium applies to all city zoning 
district uses within the City Limits and the ETJ.  

 
Unless a project falls within an Exception (as provided below), this temporary moratorium 

applies to all applications for property development Permits.  
 
SECTION 4. PURPOSE:  This temporary moratorium was enacted and is being extended 

to maintain the status quo, and to:  
 
1. assess the short-term and long-term comprehensive plan;  
2. evaluate regulations for platting and site development;  
3. review the City’s policies on the acceptance of applications for municipal permits for 

construction or development;  
4. update the City’s permitting and planning requirements and processes for drainage 

and stormwater; and  
5. obtain and review public input and expert guidance. 



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 7 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

 
SECTION 5. ENACTMENT:  The City of Bastrop hereby enacts this Ordinance extending 

the temporary moratorium on the City’s acceptance, review, approval, and issuance of permits in 
the City Limits and ETJ. The requirements mandated by Emergency Ordinance No. 2018-2-A 
continue to apply. 
 

SECTION 6. DURATION:  The extension of the temporary moratorium shall be through 
May 21, 2019, or until the repeal of this Ordinance by the City, whichever is sooner.  
 

SECTION 7. EXTENSION:  If the City determines that this extension is insufficient for the 
City to fully complete its study and planning, this Ordinance may be renewed or extended for an 
additional period of time necessary to complete the study and implement the recommended 
changes to City codes, policies, and processes in accordance with the time limits as provided by 
law upon a majority vote of the City Council. 

 
SECTION 8. EXCEPTIONS AND EXEMPTIONS: 

 
A. Exceptions.   
 

1. No Impact Projects. The temporary moratorium extended by this Ordinance does 
not apply to a project that does not: (a) increase horizontal density, (b) increase or 
impact impervious cover, (c) expand the footprint of an existing structure, or (d) 
alter the current drainage pattern on the property.  
 

2. Ongoing Projects.  The temporary moratorium extended by this Ordinance does 
not apply to any projects for which construction is currently, actively in progress, 
and for which valid City permits have been issued and have not expired (as of the 
date of the temporary moratorium). 

 
3. Grandfathered Projects.  The temporary moratorium extended by this Ordinance 

shall not apply to projects that are grandfathered under as provided by state law.  
Property owners asserting grandfathered rights under Texas Local Government 
Code Chapter 245 must submit an application claiming an exception to this 
temporary moratorium to the planning department for review in accordance with 
City policy. 

 
B. Exemptions.  Any property owner who does not assert rights under Texas Local 

Government Code Chapter 245, but who seeks authorization to proceed with the 
development permitting process during the time of the temporary moratorium can 
request the following alternative forms of approval: 

 
1. Planned Development District:  Property owners with an approval granted by the 

City Council including enactment of customized zoning regulations through 
negotiations of specialized rules applicable solely to the proposed project may 
apply for waiver in accordance with City policy. 

 
2. Alternate Design Standards:  Property owners with a negotiated approval 

granted by the City Council for the construction of drainage infrastructure that 



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 8 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

exceeds the current standards in the code of ordinances may apply for waiver in 
accordance with City policy.  

 
3. ETJ Development Agreement:  Property owners with a negotiated approval 

granted by the City Council providing for construction standards, platting and 
development rules pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, 
Subchapter G may apply for waiver in accordance with City policy. 

 
4. Waiver:  Property owners agreeing to construct certain drainage infrastructure at 

property owners’ sole expense, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code 
Chapter 212, Subchapter E may apply for waiver in accordance with city policy.  

 

SECTION 9. DETERMINATIONS & APPEALS 
 
A. Determinations.  The Interim Planning Department Director or their designee shall 

make all initial determinations regarding the status of all projects seeking to apply for 
permits during this temporary moratorium and recognition of all Exceptions (as 
provided herein). 
 

B. Appeals.  Property Owners seeking to challenge a determination made by the Interim 
Planning Department Director may appeal that initial determination to the City 
Manager.  Secondary determinations of the City Manager may be appealed to the City 
Council, whose decision shall be final.  
 

C. Exemptions.  The decision to approve an Exemption (as provided for above) shall 
rest solely with the City Council.  

 
SECTION 10. REPEALER:  In the case of any conflict between the other provisions of 

this Ordinance and any existing Ordinance of the City, the provisions of this Ordinance will control. 
 

SECTION 11. SEVERABILITY:  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, that invalidity or the unenforceability will 
not affect any other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without 
the invalid provision. 

 
SECTION 12. ENFORCEMENT:  The City shall have the power to administer and enforce 

the provisions of this Ordinance as may be required by governing law.  Any person violating any 
provision of this temporary moratorium is subject to suit for injunctive relief as well as prosecution 
for criminal violations, and such violation is hereby declared to be a nuisance.   

 
Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as a waiver of the City’s right to bring a civil 

action to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and to seek remedies as allowed by law and/or 
equity.  

 
SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon 

passage and publication, as provided by Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, 
Subchapter E. 



 
City of Bastrop Ordinance No. 2018- 1st Reading November 13, 2018   
Temporary Moratorium Extension  Page 9 of 9 2nd Reading November 15, 2018 

 
SECTION 14. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING:  It is hereby officially found and determined 

that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.  Notice and a public hearing were also provided as 
required by Texas Government Code Chapter 212, Subchapter E. 
 
READ & ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 13th day of November 2018. 

READ & APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 15th day of November 2018. 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 

by: ________________________ 
Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor   

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 



 

 

  STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018 AGENDA ITEM: 9C   
TITLE: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve Ordinance No. 2018-33 of the City Council 
of the City of Bastrop, Texas, granting a Conditional Use Permit to allow a manufactured house 
on 0.572 acres of Farm Lot 65, East of Main Street, located at 1603 State Highway 95, an area 
zoned A/OS, Agricultural/Open Space, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as shown in 
Exhibits A and B; setting out conditions; including a severability clause; establishing an  effective 
date and motion to include on the November 27, 2018 Consent Agenda. 

 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 

 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 1603 State Highway 95 (Exhibit A)  
Total Acreage: 0.572 acres 
Legal Description: 0.572 acres of Farm Lot 65, East of Main Street  
 
Property Owner: Lossie Peterson  
Applicant Contact(s): Valerie Kugle 

 
Existing Use: Vacant/Residential – structure demolished 2018 
Existing Zoning: AO/S – Agricultural Open Space (Attachment 4) 
Future Land Use: Transitional Residential  

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The applicant is applying for a Conditional Use Permit, which is required to install a 
Manufactured Home on a property zoned Agricultural/Open Space.  The property previously 
had a single-family home on the lot that was demolished in February 2018, due to damage that 
was sustained in the 2015 floods.  The site had an onsite septic facility, but with the demolition 
of the structure, the existing septic was deemed as insufficient for a new structure.  The property 
owner was granted a variance to the requirement to connect to city wastewater on September 
11, 2018 and a new on-site sewer facility (OSSF) will have to be permitted and installed by the 
property owner with the installation of the home. 
 
The proposed manufactured home is 24 feet by 44 feet (1056 square feet) and includes a 
recessed front porch and covered parking (carport) attached to the structure. 
 



 

 
 
 

POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of conditional uses is to allow certain uses in districts that under some circumstances 
would not be compatible with other permitted uses, but may be compatible if certain conditions 
and development restrictions are met. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is adopted by Ordinance, 
similar to a standard zoning request, with public hearings at Planning & Zoning Commission and 
City Council, as well as two ordinance readings at separate City Council meetings. 
 
Section 33.2 of the Zoning Ordinance states that the Planning and Zoning Commission may 
consider the following criteria when approving a CUP: 

 
i. The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed uses; 

The surrounding land use is undeveloped land.  The Future Land Use Plan designates 
this area a Transitional Residential. 

 
ii. The activities requested by the applicant are normally associated with the  permitted 

uses in the base district; 
Single-family uses are one of the primary uses of the Agriculture/Open Space zoning 
district. 

 
iii. The nature of the use is reasonable; 

The requested use will continue the previous single-family use.   
 

iv. Any negative impact on the surrounding area has been mitigated; 

The proposed structure will be oriented with the front door facing the street and the 
carport will be flush with the front façade of the house (not in front of the structure). 

v. Any additional conditions specified [to] ensure that the intent of the district purposes are 
being upheld. 

A property survey will be required for the building permit review that accurately shows 
the property boundaries and location of the OSSF. 

  

Proposed Structure 
(Exhibit B) 



 

  

Per Section 35.4, Special and Supplemental Requirements, all manufactured homes 
approved through a Manufactured Home Overlay or Conditional Use Permit, must satisfy 
the following requirements: 

A. All dwelling units shall be HUD-code manufactured home units. 
Proposed structure complies with this requirement. 
 

B. Anchorage of Manufactured Homes: To insure against natural hazards such as 
tornadoes, high winds, and electrical storms, anchorage at each manufactured 
home shall be provided, at the time of installation, according to the Building 
Code. 
Will be reviewed during permitting and installation. 
 

C. Skirting: 
1. All manufactured home units not attached to a permanent foundation shall 

provide weather resistant skirting, at the time of installation, from the top of 
the unit’s frame to grade. Skirting shall totally enclose and secure from view 
the unit’s axles and all required anchors, footings, and piers. 

2. All required skirting shall be of a texture and color similar to the materials 
used in the construction of the manufactured home unit. 

Proposed rendering complies with this requirement. 
 

D. Two (2) off-street parking spaces must be provided. One must be covered 
(carport/garage) and must meet the setback requirements. A building permit 
must be submitted for this carport or garage within two (2) months from the date 
the manufactured home was installed. The carport or garage must be built within 
six (6) months from the date the manufactured home was installed. 

Street Facing Façade 
(Attachment 2) 

 



 

Carport is shown in the proposal and complies with this requirement. 
 

E. The main roof shall be pitched, rather than flat. 
Proposed structure complies with this requirement. 
 

F. The manufactured home must be sited with its longest dimension parallel to the 
street. 
This requirement was intended to ensure that the front door of the structure 
faces the street.  Historically, manufactured homes had the primary entrance on 
the longer side.  The proposed structure has the front door facing the street. 
 

G. The exterior finish cannot have a high-gloss finish. The exterior walls shall look 
like wood or masonry, regardless of the actual composition. 
The proposed finishes are a mix of wood, stone and Hardiplank materials. 
 

H. The hitch must be removed. 
Will be reviewed during permitting and installation. 

 
I. The lot must be landscaped so that it is equivalent to the average amount of 

landscaping that exists on the adjoining lots. At a minimum, two (2) trees of the 
large variety and two (2) shrubs must be provided. Furthermore, the entire lot 
must be sodded with grass. 
The existing lot already has established ground cover and trees.  This will be 
reviewed during permitting and installation for compliance. 
 

J. The manufactured home must have a minimum floor area of one thousand 
(1000) square feet. 
Proposed structure complies with this requirement. 

 
K.  A manufactured home that is not being placed within a Manufactured Home 

Park or subdivision must have a minimum width of at least twenty-eight feet 
(28'). 
Proposed structure is 24 feet by 44 feet, with the 24 foot side parallel to the 
street.  This requirement is intended to restrict manufactured homes that were 
often three to five times longer than the width (e.g. 14 feet by 72 feet).  Newer 
manufactured homes come in a wider variety of sizes. This model has ratio of 
1.8 times the width to depth ratio, which is a ratio which would be seen in site 
built homes. 

L. A manufactured home that is not being placed within a manufactured home park 
or subdivision shall have a gabled entry or other such break in the facade or 
roof line. The proposed structure has a break in the front façade for a front 
porch, giving the structure some architectural detail. 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Property owner notifications were mailed to four adjacent property owners on October 8, 2018. At 
the time of this report, no responses had been received (Attachment 3). 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
At the October 25, 2018 meeting, the P&Z Commission recommended by a vote of 8-1 to approve 
the request for a Conditional Use Permit for a manufactured home, with the conditions included 
by staff. 
 
The Commission discussed the location of the carport.  The proposed location of the carport is to 
the right side of the house and will not protrude in front of the front façade.  Questions were asked 
if the parking could be located behind the building.  The applicant stated the side door to the 
structure is located on the side where the covered parking would be located.  Additionally, the 
A/OS setback is 50 feet, which is twice the required setback in SF-7, Single-family Residential.  
The Commission did not amend the conditions regarding the proposed parking location. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold a public hearing and consider action to recommend approval on ordinance for a Conditional 
Use Permit to allow a manufactured house on 0.572 acres of Farm Lot 65, East of Main Street 
located at 1603 State Highway 95, an area zoned A/OS, Agricultural/Open Space, within the 
city limits of Bastrop and forward to the next City Council meeting. 
. 

1. Construction and permits submitted shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop 
regulations and shall meet the special requirements of Section 35.4 as detailed in the 
report, including an all-weather surface driveway and parking area. 

2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to 
construction/movement of the manufactured home on the subject property. 

3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one (1) year from the date the 
conditional use permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 

4. A property survey will be required for the building permit review that accurately shows 
the property boundaries and location of the OSSF. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit A: Property Location Map  
Exhibit B: Proposed Building Floor Plan & Elevations 
Attachment 1: Pictures of Structure 
Attachment 2: Conceptual Site Plan  
Attachment 3: Property Owner’s Notification  
Attachment 4: Zoning Map 
 



1 
 

  
ORDINANCE 2018-33 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A MANUFACTURED 
HOUSE ON 0.572 ACRES OF FARM LOT 65, EAST OF MAIN STREET, 
LOCATED AT 1603 STATE HIGHWAY 95, AN AREA ZONED A/OS, 
AGRICULTURAL/OPEN SPACE, WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS; AS SHOWN IN EXHIBITS A AND B; SETTING OUT CONDITIONS; 
INCLUDING A SEVERABLILITY CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, Lossie Peterson (the “Owner”) submitted a request for a Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP) for a manufactured house on 0.572 acres of Farm Lot 65, East of Main Street, 
located at 1603 State Highway 95, within the City limits of Bastrop, Texas, hereinafter referred 
to as “the Property”; and 
 

WHEREAS, a location map is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as Agricultural/Open Space (A/OS); and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of the CUP 
was given to all property owners located within two hundred (200) feet of the Property, and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bastrop held a public hearing on the CUP 
request on October 8, 2018; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owner’s proposed development, with the stated conditions, meets the 

intent of the Zoning Ordinance, Section 33.2, Conditional Use Permit criteria and Section 35.4, 
Special and Supplemental Requirements for manufactured homes; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission, by a vote 
of 8-1, recommended approval of the proposed request, subject to certain conditions set forth 
herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the information 

provided by the Applicant, and all other information presented, City Council finds by a majority 
vote of all members that it is in the public interest to approve the CUP. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:    A Conditional Use Permit for a manufactured house, situated on 0.572 
acres of Farm Lot 65, East of Main Street, located at 1603 State Highway 95, within the city 
limits of Bastrop, Texas as more particularly shown on Exhibits “A” and “B”, shall be and is 
hereby approved with the following conditions to:  
 

a. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations. 

b. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to 
occupying the building. 

c. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one year from the date 



2 
 

the Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 
d. A property survey will be required for the building permit review that accurately 

shows the property boundaries and location of the OSSF. 
 

Section 2:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or 
application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable. 
 

Section 3:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted below, 
or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in accordance with the City’s 
Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 13th day of November 2018. 

 
 READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 27th day of November 2018. 
 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 



SH
 95

CEDAR

CYPRESS

ROSANKY

CEDAR

Exhibit A
Location Map
1603 HWY 95

Conditional Use Permit for a Manufactured Home ³Date: 10/16/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   1 inch = 73 feet

LI
ND

A

CEDAR

CYPRESS

ROSANKY

CEDAR

ROSANKY

¬«95

Legend
1603 HWY 95

Legend
1603 HWY 95



Exhibit B

jbills
Text Box
West (street facing)

jbills
Text Box
East

jbills
Text Box
South

jbills
Text Box
North

















P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 &

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T

1311 C
hestnut S

treet 
P

O
 B

ox 427 
B

astrop, T
exas 78602 

512.332.8840 
w

w
w

.cityofbastrop.org

N
otice of Pending C

onditional U
se Perm

itApproval
C

ity of B
astrop

Planning &
 Zoning C

om
m

ission
And C

ity C
ouncil

D
ear Property O

w
ner:

The Planning and Zoning C
om

m
ission w

ill conduct a public hearing on
Thursday, O

ctober 25,
2018 at 6:00 p.m

. and the
C

ity C
ouncil w

ill conduct a public hearing (first reading) Tuesday, 
N

ovem
ber 13,2018 at 6:30 p.m

. in the
C

ity H
all C

ouncil C
ham

bers located at 1311 C
hestnut 

Street, B
astrop, Texas

on the request to approve the ordinance for a C
onditional U

se Perm
it to 

allow
 a m

anufactured house on 0.572 acres of Farm
 Lot 65, East of M

ain Street located at 1603 
State H

ighw
ay 95, an area zoned A/O

S, Agricultural/O
pen Space, w

ithin the city lim
its of Bastrop. 

Applicant/O
w

ner:
Valerie Kugle/Lossie Peterson

Address:
1603 State H

ighw
ay 95 

Legal D
escription:

0.572 acres of Farm
 Lot 65, East of M

ain Street

The site location m
ap and a letter from

 the property ow
neris attached for reference.

As a property ow
ner w

ithin 200 feet of the above referenced property, you are being notified of the 
upcom

ing m
eetings per the Bastrop C

ode of O
rdinances C

U
P R

egulations.  For m
ore inform

ation 
on this project, you can contact the Planning & D

evelopm
ent offices at (512) 332-8840, 

plan@
cityofbastrop.org , or visit the office at 1311 C

hestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.

For additional inform
ation, please visit or call the Planning & D

evelopm
ent offices. 

PR
O

PER
TY O

W
N

ER
’S 

R
ESPO

N
SE

As a property ow
ner w

ithin 200’:(please check one)
��

I am
 in favor of the request.

�
I am

 opposed to the request.
�

I have no objection to the request. 

Property O
w

ner N
am

e: 
Property Address: 
Phone (optional): 
M

ailing Address:
Em

ail (optional): 
Property O

w
ner’s Signature: ___________________________

C
om

m
ents: (O

ptional)

Please provide reply to the address below
, via fax (512) 332-8829, or em

ail: 
plan@

cityofbastrop.org

R
E:1603

H
W

Y 95 C
U

P



SH 95

C
ED

AR

C
YPR

ESS

R
O

S
AN

KY

C
ED

AR

Zoning
M

ap
1603

H
W

Y
95

C
onditional U

se Perm
itfora

M
anufactured

H
om

e³ Date: 10/08/2018
The 

accuracy 
and 

precision 
of this cartographic

data is lim
ited and should be used for inform

ation
/planning 

purposes 
only. 

 
This data does not 

replace 
surveys 

conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification 

of 
zoning, 

land 
use classification, or

 
other 

classification 
set 

forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The C

ity of Bastrop,
nor any of its em

ployees, do not m
ake any w

arranty
of m

erchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assum

es any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, com

pleteness or usefullness of any such
inform

ation, nor does it represent that its use w
ould

not 
infringe 

upon 
privately ow

ned rights.     
1 inch = 73 feet

LINDA

CED
A

R

CY
PR

ESS

RO
SA

N
K

Y

CED
A

R

RO
SA

N
K

Y¬« 95

Legend1603 H
W

Y 95

Legend1603 H
W

Y 95

A/O
S

NLive/W
ork

C
om

m
ercial M

ixed U
se



1603 SH 95 CUP
Public hearing and consider action to approve Ordinance 2018-33 of the City Council
of the City of Bastrop, Texas, granting a Conditional Use Permit to allow a
manufactured house on 0.572 acres of Farm Lot 65, East of Main Street located at
1603 State Highway 95, an area zoned A/OS, Agricultural/Open Space, within the
city limits of Bastrop as shown in Exhibits A and B, setting out conditions; including a
severability clause; and providing and effective date and motion to include on the
November 27, 2018 Consent Agenda.



Request
• Place a new manufactured home on 0.572 acre lot at 

1603 SH 95.
• The Zoning Ordinance requires manufactured housing in 

A/OS zoning to obtain a Conditional Use Permit.



Location
• 1603 State 

Highway 95



Zoning
• A/OS, Agricultural/Open 

Space



Future Land Use
• Transitional 

Residential



Proposed Structure



Street Facing Façade



Section 33.2 of the Zoning Ordinance CUP Criteria
i. The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed uses;

The surrounding land use is undeveloped land.  The Future Land Use Plan designates this 
area as Transitional Residential.

ii. The activities requested by the applicant are normally associated with the  permitted uses in the 
base district;
Single-family uses are one of the primary uses of the Agriculture/Open Space zoning district.

iii. The nature of the use is reasonable;
The requested use will continue the previous single-family use.  

iv. Any negative impact on the surrounding area has been mitigated;
The proposed structure will be oriented with the front door facing the street and the carport will be 
flush with the front façade of the house (not in front of the structure).

v. Any additional conditions specified [to] ensure that the intent of the district purposes are being 
upheld.
A property survey will be required for the building permit review that accurately shows               
the property boundaries and location of the OSSF.



Section 35.4 Special and Supplemental Requirements for 
Manufactured Home
A. All dwelling units shall be HUD-code manufactured home units.
B. Anchorage of Manufactured Homes: To insure against natural hazards such as tornadoes, high 

winds, and electrical storms, anchorage at each manufactured home shall be provided, at the 
time of installation, according to the Building Code.

C. Skirting:
1. All manufactured home units not attached to a permanent foundation shall provide weather 
resistant skirting, at the time of installation, from the top of the unit’s frame to grade. Skirting shall 
totally enclose and secure from view the unit’s axles and all required anchors, footings, and piers.
2. All required skirting shall be of a texture and color similar to the materials used in the 

construction of the manufactured home unit.
D. Two (2) off-street parking spaces must be provided. One must be covered (carport/garage) and 

must meet the setback requirements. A building permit must be submitted for this carport or 
garage within two (2) months from the date the manufactured home was installed. The carport or 
garage must be built within six (6) months from the date the manufactured home was installed.



Section 35.4 Special and Supplemental Requirements for 
Manufactured Home
E. The main roof shall be pitched, rather than flat.
F. The manufactured home must be sited with its longest dimension parallel to the street.
This requirement was intended to ensure that the front door of the structure faces the street.  
Historically, manufactured homes had the primary entrance on the longer side.  The proposed 
structure has the front door facing the street.
G. The exterior finish cannot have a high-gloss finish. The exterior walls shall look like wood or 

masonry, regardless of the actual composition.
H. The hitch must be removed.
I. The lot must be landscaped so that it is equivalent to the average amount of landscaping that 

exists on the adjoining lots. At a minimum, two (2) trees of the large variety and two (2) shrubs 
must be provided. Furthermore, the entire lot must be sodded with grass.

J. The manufactured home must have a minimum floor area of one thousand (1000) square feet.



Section 35.4 Special and Supplemental Requirements for 
Manufactured Home
K. A manufactured home that is not being placed within a Manufactured Home Park or subdivision 

must have a minimum width of at least twenty-eight feet (28').
Proposed structure is 24 feet by 44 feet, with the 24 foot side parallel to the street. This requirement
is intended to restrict manufactured homes that were often three to five times longer than the width
(e.g. 14 feet by 72 feet). Newer manufactured homes come in a wider variety of sizes. This model
has ratio of 1.8 times the width to depth ratio, which is a ratio which would be seen in site built homes.
L. A manufactured home that is not being placed within a manufactured home park or subdivision 

shall have a gabled entry or other such break in the facade or roof line.



Compliance with the Moratorium
• This application is considered grandfathered under Chapter 245 of 

the Local Government Code and qualifies as an Exception under the 
moratorium.



Planning & Zoning Commission Report
• By a vote of 8-1, the P&Z recommended granting the CUP with the 

conditions in the staff report.
• Commissioners discussed the location of the required parking.

• Proposal show to the right (south)of the structure, by the side door and flush 
with the front façade.

• The setback for the zoning district is 50 feet, which is twice the standard in 
SF-7, Single-family 7 zoning.



Staff Recommendation
Hold a public hearing and consider action to recommend approval an ordinance for
a Conditional Use Permit to allow a manufactured house on 0.572 acres of Farm
Lot 65, East of Main Street located at 1603 State Highway 95, an area zoned A/OS,
Agricultural/Open Space, within the city limits of Bastrop and forward to the next
City Council meeting.
1. Construction and permits submitted shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop 

regulations and shall meet the special requirements of Section 35.4 as detailed in the 
report, including an all-weather surface driveway and parking area.

2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to 
construction/movement of the manufactured home on the subject property.

3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one (1) year from the date the 
conditional use permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance).

4. A property survey will be required for the building permit review that accurately shows 
the property boundaries and location of the OSSF.



Questions?



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13th, 2018         AGENDA ITEM: 9D 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-93 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas awarding a Community Support Service Agreement for services associated with operating, 
marketing, and providing cultural art and theater services to the Bastrop Opera House, at a cost 
of Ninety Two Thousand and Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($92,500), attached as Exhibit A; 
authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents for the contract; providing for a 
repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
  
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Hospitality & Downtown Director 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Chapter 351 of the Tax Code provides the requirements on how Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) 
funds may be spent. As prioritized in the FY 18 Budget, Staff has been working to leverage HOT 
funds to attract tourism and strengthen our sales tax base by maximizing our investment. Staff 
also continues to work to bring HOT fund users together under the strategic goals and vision that 
have been developed in line with the Council’s Focus Areas, the City’s 2018 Work Plan, and the 
Comprehensive Plan 2036. 
  
The Comprehensive Plan also states that Bastrop’s continued emphasis on cultural arts and 
tourism development through coordinated policies will lead to hundreds of millions of dollars in 
economic activity for the region. The Bastrop Opera House presented their annual report at the 
August 28th, 2018 Council meeting. 
 
The proposed Community Support Service Agreement will be utilized for all funding provided by 
the City in exchange for services to the community. The Opera House agreement outlines specific 
requirements related to Hotel Occupancy Tax and deliverables specific to their request for 
funding. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
At the June 21st Joint Workshop with Visit Bastrop, the current and future HOT Policy of the City 
of Bastrop was discussed in detail. Due to the ongoing development of the Cultural Arts Master 
Plan, an interim process for the Bastrop Opera House to apply for and receive funds was outlined. 
That process was to submit a request for funding the City Council and for the City to award funds 
based on the application. The FY 19 Budget allocated $92,500, in line with FY 18 funding. The 
Opera House’s request for an additional $40,000 to fund an executive director position was not 
awarded due to the anticipated completion of the Cultural Arts Master Plan. 

The FY 18 budget emphasized Council’s desire to diversify our revenue sources and increase 
our sales tax base. Over the last 12 months, with the creation of Visit Bastrop, the establishment 
of the City’s Hospitality & Downtown Department, and the ongoing development of our Cultural 
Arts Master Plan; we are now uniquely positioned to leverage and work in tandem towards our 



 

community goals related to tourism. We hope to continue to effectively market and promote the 
Bastrop Opera House as part of the overall Bastrop visitor experience. FY 18’s funding agreement 
outlined specific deliverables, as does the proposed FY 19 Community Support Service 
Agreement. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
FY 19 Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-93 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas awarding a Community Support Service Agreement associated with operating, marketing 
and providing cultural art and theater services to the Bastrop Opera House, at a cost of ninety 
Two Thousand and Five-Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($92,500) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing 
the City Manager to execute all necessary documents for the contract; providing for a repealing 
clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution No-2018-93 
• DRAFT Community Service Support Agreement 
• FY 19 HOT Fund Request submitted by Bastrop Opera House 

 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-93 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AWARDING A COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR 
SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH OPERATING, MARKETING, AND PROVIDING 
CULTURAL ART AND THEATER SERVICES TO THE BASTROP OPERA 
HOUSE, AT A COST OF NINETY-TWO THOUSAND AND FIVE HUNDRED AND 
00/100  DOLLARS ($92,500), ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT A; AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE 
CONTRACT; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has appointed the City Manager as the Chief Administrative 

Officer of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of 
the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council realizes the importance of preserving the Bastrop Opera 
House and providing theatrical entertainment and education to the Citizens of Bastrop, Texas and 
our out-of-town visitors; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 351 of the Tax Code provides the requirements on how Hotel 

Occupancy Tax (HOT) funds may be spent; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop has been working to leverage HOT funds to attract tourism 

and strengthen our sales tax base by maximizing our return on investment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Bastrop Opera House is an integral part of the cultural arts fabric of the 

City  
  
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan also states that Bastrop’s continued emphasis on 

cultural arts and tourism development through coordinated policies will lead to hundreds of 
millions in economic activity for the region.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
SECTION 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Community Support 

Service Agreement associated with services associated with operating, marketing and providing 
cultural art and theater services, to the Bastrop Opera House, at a cost of Ninety-Two Thousand 
and Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($92,500) attached as Exhibit A. 

 
SECTION 2. That the City Council of the City of Bastrop has found that the Bastrop Opera 

House staff, volunteers, and board of directors are subject matter experts in the field of providing 
theatrical performances and educational activities to visitors and residents.  
 

SECTION 3. All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 



2 

conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 

SECTION 4. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 
and it is duly resolved.   

DULY RESOLVED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 13th 
day of November, 2018.  

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

___________________________________
Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Ann Franklin, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 1 

 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT 
FY 2018 - 2019 

 
This Community Services Grant Funding Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and 
between the City of Bastrop, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, (“City”), 
and the Bastrop Opera House, a Texas non-profit corporation (“Organization”).  The City 
and Organization are also referred to collectively in this Agreement as the “Parties” and 
singularly as a “Party.”  The Parties intend that this Agreement will supersede and replace 
all previously adopted and finalized Agreements in their entirety, if any. 
 
NOW, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants to be performed by the Parties and 
other valuable consideration hereby acknowledged, therefore, be it mutually agreed as 
follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
A. Proposed & Modified Services Plan.  Organization shall utilize the grant funds 

conveyed herein to provide services to the Bastrop community in accordance with the 
proposal attached as Exhibit “A”, which has been accepted by the City, and as may 
have been modified in accordance with Exhibit “B”.   

 
B. Staffing.  Organization shall use its best efforts to secure sufficient numbers of 

employees and volunteers to accomplish the responsibilities set forth in this 
Agreement.  Organization shall further provide such office space, equipment, supplies 
and other materials as may be necessary to accomplish the purposes of this 
Agreement.  Organization acknowledges that no personnel engaged by the 
Organization shall be construed as agents, employees or officers of the City. 
 

C. Nondiscrimination:  Organization shall provide services under this Agreement free 
of discrimination or retaliation due to a person’s race, ethnicity, nationality, religion, 
gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, parental status, or marital status.   
Any restrictions on services based on age, physical ability or mental ability shall be 
directly relevant to legitimate safety concerns in accordance with written Organization 
policies and procedures.  
 

2. FUNDING  
 
A. Amount.  The City shall provide to Organization grant funds in an amount up to a sum 

not to exceed Ninety-Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($92,500.00). 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 2 

 
B. Disbursals.  The City shall remit payment to the Organization of the grant funds due 

quarterly as an installment. 
 
3. ACCOUNTABILITY 

 
A. Funding Source Identification.  Organization shall prominently include the City of 

Bastrop logo on all educational and marketing materials promoting services covered 
by this Agreement, including (but not limited to) print items, internet posts, and social 
media.  Such materials will also include the line, “Funding for this program was made 
possible through a grant from the City of Bastrop. 

 
B. Written Reports.  Organization shall submit to the City’s Hospitality & Downtown 

Department written reports on a quarterly basis describing the status of the services 
provided under this Agreement.  Quarterly reports shall be submitted during the 
months of January, April, July, and October.  Reports shall be public records.  The 
first three reports shall be progress reports, and the fourth report shall be an annual 
summary.  The reports shall include (but are not limited to) the following information: 

 
(1) Services:  a description of the services provided during the preceding quarter; and 

 
(2) Financial Statement:  a financial statement for the reporting period that indicates 

how the Organization expended grant funds; and  
 

(3) Promotions:  copies of promotional materials distributed. 
 

C. Oral Reports.  Organization shall attend a regular meeting of the City Council on a 
quarterly basis to make a public presentation on the services provided under this 
Agreement.  Attendance shall be scheduled in advance with the City’s designated staff 
contact person.  Organization shall submit presentation materials (i.e., visual aids) to 
the City’s designated staff contact person at least 96 hours prior to the meeting.  

 
D. Oversight of Expenditures.  Organization shall exercise all reasonable, prudent and 

diligent efforts to ensure the proper and legal oversight, use, and expenditure of the 
grant funds conveyed under this Agreement.  Organization’s failure to use the funds 
in the manner approved by this Agreement shall void and negate the City’s obligation 
to make any further payments to the Organization under the Agreement. 
 

E. Comingling.  Organization shall properly segregate grant funds and shall not 
comingle grant funds with other financial assets of the Organization. 
 

F. Accounting Practices.  Organization shall utilize generally accepted bookkeeping 
and standard accounting practices to maintain complete and accurate financial 
records of all expenditures of grant funds.  Upon the City’s request, the Organization 
shall promptly make the records available for inspection and review at any time during 
the term of this Agreement.   



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 3 

 
 

G. Audit.  Organization shall have its records and accounts audited annually and shall 
prepare an annual financial statement based on the audit.  Audits and financial 
statements shall be prepared by a certified public accountant (CPA) who is licensed 
in Texas or a public accountant who holds a permit to practice from the Texas State 
Board of Public Accountancy.  Audits and financial statements shall be available to 
the City upon request, and shall be public records.   
 

H. Records Retention.  All reports and records related to grant funds shall be 
maintained by the Organization and available to the City for a period of at least 3 years 
of the Effective Date.  If there is any dispute regarding these reports or records, the 
retention period shall be extended in accordance with the City’s instructions. To the 
extent Organization’s records regarding services provided under this Agreement are 
subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Organization agrees to cooperate with 
any open records requests.  
 

I. Hotel Occupancy Taxes.  . Organization shall comply with the requirements in 
Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code in the use of hotel occupancy taxes. 

 
4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. Duration.  This Agreement shall be in effect for fiscal year 2018-2019, which 

commences October 1st and ends September 30th, unless earlier terminated as 
provided herein.  
 

B. Suspension of Payments.   
 
(1) Misappropriation.  Organization’s failure to use the funds in the manner approved 

by this Agreement, as specified in Exhibit “A”, shall be grounds for the City to 
suspend the remittance of further payments to the Organization under the 
Agreement.  
 

(2) Comingling.  Organization’s failure to properly segregate grant funds shall be 
grounds for the City to suspend the remittance of further payments to the 
Organization under the Agreement.   
 

(3) Records.  Organization’s failure to provide the City with copies of financial records 
mandated under this Agreement shall be grounds for the City to suspend the 
remittance of further payments to the Organization under the Agreement.   

 
(4) Reports.  Organization’s failure to timely submit reports mandated under this 

Agreement shall be grounds for the City to suspend the remittance of further 
payments to the Organization under the Agreement.   
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 4 

(5) Notice.  Notice of suspension shall be sent by the City to the Organization with an 
explanation and opportunity for the Organization to cure the infraction within 14 
calendar days.   

 
(6) Breach.  Failure to remedy the infraction within 14 calendar days shall be grounds 

for the City to declare the Organization in breach and terminate this Agreement as 
provided herein.  

 
C. Termination.  In the event that the Organization fails to abide by any of the terms of 

this Agreement, the City may terminate the Agreement and any obligations of the City 
hereunder, as set forth herein, with absolutely no penalty or claim against the City by 
the Organization.  Notice of termination shall negate the City’s obligation to remit a 
scheduled payment (if any).  Upon termination for failure to cure the misappropriation 
of grant funds, Organization is obligated to reimburse the City for all funds 
misappropriated by the Organization in violation of this Agreement.  
 

D. Ineligibility for Future Funding.  Organization’s failure to remedy the infraction upon 
receipt of notice this Agreement may render the Organization ineligible for future 
funding by the City. 

 
E. Good Standing.  The Organization hereby represents that it is in good standing with 

the Texas Secretary of State and has no City, County, State, or Federal debts or liens 
charged against it.  Organization shall notify the City of any change in such status 
within 14 calendar days of Organization’s receipt of notification.  

 
F. Future Appropriations.  Any future grants by the City are conditioned on 

appropriations by the City Council.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing related to 
this Agreement or the City’s stated desire to support the Organization (generally), at 
the time of execution of this Agreement, may be inferred to indicate that the City will 
provide any funds in the future.  The Organization acknowledges that funding by the 
City shall be decided on a fiscal year basis and will be determined by the City Council 
based upon its evaluation of the City’s budget and considering all fiscal needs 
confronting the City, including needs related to the proposed community services. 

 
G. Notices.  Any notice necessary or appropriate relative to this Agreement shall be 

effective when deposited in the United States mail, either certified and/or registered 
mail, postage prepaid and addressed as provided herein.  Notices to the City shall be 
sent to the City’s designated staff contact person: 

 
City of Bastrop 
Attn: Hospitality & Downtown Department  
P.O. Box 427 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 
 

Notices to the Organization shall be sent in accordance with Exhibit “C”.  
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 5 

H. Assignment.  No part of this Agreement may be assigned or delegated without the 
prior written consent of the other Party, and any attempted assignment of benefits or 
rights or delegation of duties or obligations shall constitute breach of this Agreement.   

 
I. Governing Law & Venue. This Agreement shall be subject to the laws of the State of 

Texas and the City of Bastrop, Texas.  Venue for any disputes arising under this 
Agreement shall rest solely in Bastrop County.  

 
J. Indemnity.  Organization agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless and defend 

the City of Bastrop, Texas, its officers, agents, representatives, consultants, and 
employees from any and all claims, losses, causes of action and damages, suits, and 
liability for the gross negligence and willful misconduct of Organization, including all 
expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney fees, for injury to or death of any 
person, or from damage to any property, arising from or in connection with the 
operations of Organization, or its officers, agents, and employees, carried out in 
furtherance of this Agreement.   
 

K. Insurance.  The Organization shall maintain comprehensive general liability 
insurance policy for its operations.  The policy shall name City as an additional insured.  
The Organization shall also maintain insurance on the Organization’s personal 
property, in an amount determined sufficient by the Organization.  The Organization 
shall deliver copies of the insurance policies specified hereunder to the City within 30 
days of the Effective Date.   
 

L. Inclusiveness:  This document represents the entire understanding between the 
Parties.  This Agreement may only be amended in writing with the mutual consent of 
the Parties. 
 

M. Severability:  If any sentence, clause or portion of this Agreement is deemed 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

N. Effective Date.  The City and the Organization make and execute this Agreement to 
be effective upon the __________ day of __________________________, 2018. 

 
 

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF: 
 
 

CITY: ORGANIZATION: 
 
by: ____________________________ by: ___________________________ 

Lynda Humble, City Manager Executive Director  
City of Bastrop Bastrop Opera House 
Date of Execution: _____________ Date of Execution: ____________ 
  



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 6 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
by: ___________________________  

Ann Franklin, City Secretary  
City of Bastrop 

 
 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 7 

Exhibit “A” 
 

 
ORGANIZATION’S PROPOSED SERVICES 

 
Bastrop Opera House 2018-2019 Request 

 
Requested HOT funds for the 2018-2019 season will be used for: 
 
• Production expenses 
• Advertising/Promoting 
• Production Equipment 
• Conferences 
• Staff 
 
Funds will be used in promoting the art of theatre and encouraging attendance of events 
for out of town visitors thereby directly growing and advancing cultural tourism and hotel 
industry. 
 
The Bastrop community will benefit from the Opera House by having high quality 
performances/shows brought to them. This will bring in both day visitors as well as 
overnight visitors who will come to Bastrop for the purpose of attending a performance at 
the Opera House. We receive calls on a regular basis from people out of town who want 
to come experience a show/event at the Opera House, but also want to know where to 
stay, eat, etc. while they are in Bastrop. 
 
The Bastrop Opera House is currently the only live community theatre venue in Bastrop. 
There are other venues in Bastrop that provide live bands. However, the Opera House is 
the only community venue that provides live theatre as well as the only venue that 
provides educational and acting opportunities for Bastrop citizens. 

 
  



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 8 

Exhibit “B” 
 

 
CITY’S MODIFIED SERVICES PLAN 

 
Present 9-12 months’ worth of programs annually (January – December) designed to 
appeal to tourists and attract overnight visitation to City Council. 
 
All art work, images and details regarding the individual programs such as 
“performances,” “classes,” or “exhibits” for the contract period including ticket prices and 
purchasing methods must have specific program details received by Visit Bastrop through 
their online CRM system no later than 90 days in advance, preferably 120 days in 
advance.  
 
Maintain an active social media and online digital presence including Google, Yelp, Trip 
Advisor, and similar listings.  
 
Develop an annual marketing plan for the promotion of the arts and activities at the Opera 
House.  
 
Develop a strategic plan that addresses identifying additional funding sources for 
sustainability. 
 
Present an annual operating budget to the City. 
 
In partnership with Visit Bastrop, develop an intercept survey of guests to include data 
such as:  where the visitor is from, demographic data, social-economic data, how they 
discovered Bastrop (advertising, social media, word-of-mouth), lodging information, 
length of stay, size of party, primary attractor, intent to return. 
 
Maintain and collect monthly year-over-year ticket sales and primary market origin of 
ticket holders’ data. 
 
Participate in customer service, destination, board development and/or Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Training as provided by the City or Visit Bastrop. 
 
Work with Visit Bastrop and Explore Bastrop County to create “programming” that would 
be available for groups and conventions. 
 
Develop and maintain a building rental program and policies allowing opportunities for 
additional revenue streams and access to the facility to outside users. 
 
Actively participate in the Cultural Arts Master Plan development and implementation 
process that is yet to be identified.  



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 9 

Any work to be performed on the Bastrop Opera House historic structure utilizing Hotel 
Occupancy Tax must comply with all regulations: local, state and federal. All work must 
also comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s standards for rehabilitation. To ensure 
compliance proposed work must be submitted to the Bastrop Main Street Program prior 
to work commencing and may require up to 60 days for approval depending on the Texas 
Historical Commission’s project reviewer’s schedule. 

 
 

  



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
 Bastrop Opera House  page 10 

Exhibit “C” 
 

 
NOTICE TO ORGANIZATION 

 
Notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent to the Organization as 

follows: 
 

 
 
Bastrop Opera House 
Attn: Lisa Holcomb 
711 Spring Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 



 

 

                                                                                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bastrop Opera House 

Hot Funds Application 

2018/2019 

 

 

 

 
 



Hot Funding Report FY 2017-2018 Season– Deliverables 

• The Bastrop Opera House created a year long season that was heavily marketed.  Our season runs 

from September-September.  In the 2017-2018 season the Opera House produced 8 full 

productions and brought in 9 touring shows.    

• We use Arts People which is an online ticket software for performing arts.  This program has 

powerful tools to help us create targeted communications with our patrons.  It also allows us to 

run off reports showing where all our ticket purchasers are from based on zip codes.  This is how 

we know that over 50% are from outside of Bastrop county. 

 

• Bastrop Opera House hosted several different events throughout the season for the 

community.   

1. The Bastrop County Best of the Best” awards ceremony was hosted at the 

Opera   House as well as the Small Business Revolution Revealing Party.   

2. The Small Business Revolution Announcement Party was hosted at the OH. 

3. Bastrop hotel sales meeting 

4. Bastrop Film Friendly Workshop 

5. Bastrop County Tourism Rally 

6. Start off place for Christmas Cookie Crawl 

 

• Bastrop Opera House rented the facility throughout the 2017-2018 season 

 

1. Bastrop County Honor Choir Performance Fundraiser 

2. Heart of Texas Church of Christ 

3. Conor McAnally /Honor Choir Fundraiser 

4. Historical Society Rendezvous 

5. Paxton Carpenter for week long company training  

 

• The Opera House uses Arts People which is an online ticket software for performing arts.  This 

program has powerful tools to help us create targeted reports.  It also allows us to run off 

reports showing where all our ticket purchasers are from based on zip codes.  This is how we 

know that over 50% are from outside of Bastrop county. 

1. Tickets sales for 2017-2018:  3,282 tickets sold online  

2. approximately 958 at the door.  At the time of this report, we still have tickets to 

sell through August for this season. 

3. 1,233 tickets were from Bastrop zip code 

 

• The Opera House is home to the Bastrop Opera House Youth Performing Arts Academy 

that has approximately 60 youth ages 3- high school enrolled.  Each season 2 major youth 

productions are performed (fall and spring).  

• In June of this season the Opera House had its first 2-week long summer musical theatre 

group that had 16 youth enrolled.  This was a very successful camp and will be repeated 

this next summer.   



Bastrop Opera House 

711 Spring Street 

Bastrop, TX  78602 

Lisa Holcomb, Executive Director 

 

Is this organization a 501 ( c ) 3?  YES 

Tax Id # 74-2161743 

Total Amount Requested:  $132,055 

 

Bastrop Opera House Mission: 

The Bastrop Opera House was built in 1889 and is still producing quality entertainment for 

families.  Plays are an ancient form of storytelling.  Some are light hearted; some are deep and 

profound.  All offer a message to the audience. Classic and contemporary plays and musicals 

speak to us because they explore what it means to be human.  The Bastrop Opera House strives 

to give its performers the chance to perform and entertain.  To give a gift back to the community 

in the form of acting.   

To watch the Opera House come “alive” this last season has been a thrill for those of us involved 

with the Opera House.  Almost any evening of the week, Monday-Thursday, you can come by 

and see actors, musicians, techs, all working together to get ready for the next show.  Afternoons 

you’ll find children in the Opera House learning the art of theatre and most weekends you can be 

entertained with a play, musical or one of the touring shows.   

We often have people call from out of town (sometimes out of state) to say that they want to 

come to Bastrop to see a show and want to know where to stay, eat, etc.   We have people from 

out of town come see a show who say they will be returning to see another show but will stay the 

whole weekend.   

Community theatre is a team effort opportunity for people of all talents, skills and energy . It 

enriches the community -- financially and artistically. Theatre is a wonderful leveler of people -- 

background becomes a moot issue. Plumbers work with and act next to bank presidents, children, 

and occasionally dogs. 

- JoAnne Nissen,  Retired Vice President, MRA-The Management Association, Racine, WI 

 

 

 

 



Bastrop Opera House 2017-2018 Season 

The OH had a fantastic and full season.  There was hardly a weekend that didn’t have a 

show/event/live music happening.  The season consisted of: 

War of the Worlds Radio Show 

Rocky Horror Picture Show 

The Derailers 

Walkin’ The Line 

Austin Troubadours 

Completely Hollywood 

Decee Cornish Tribute To Washington Carver 

Dona Rosita’s Jalapeno Kitchen 

E Flat Porch Band 

Gospel Music Concert 

Kitchen Witches 

Flamenco Ensemble 

Murder at Rutherford House 

The Bible In 30 Minutes… Or Less 

The Enchanted Bookshop 

The Fantasticks 

The Stories of Scheherazade 

Clinically Undepressed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Bastrop Opera House 2018-2019 Hot Funds Request 

Hot funds for the 2018-2019 season will be used for: 

• Production expenses 

• Advertising/Promoting 

• Production Equipment 

• Conferences 

• Staff 

Funds will be used in promoting the art of theatre and encouraging attendance of events for 

out of town visitors thereby directly growing and advancing cultural tourism and hotel industry.  

The Bastrop community will benefit from the Opera House by having high quality 

performances/shows brought to them.  This will bring in both day visitors as well as overnight 

visitors who will come to Bastrop for the purpose of attending a performance at the Opera 

House.  We receive calls on a regular basis from people out of town who want to come see a 

show/event at the Opera House but also want to know where to stay, eat, etc. while they are in 

Bastrop.   

The Bastrop Opera House is currently the only live community theatre venue in Bastrop. There 

are other venues in Bastrop that provide live bands, however the Opera House is the only 

community venue that provides live theatre and the only venue that provides educational and 

acting opportunities for Bastrop citizens.   

  



 

The new season will consist of: 

Walkin’ The Line September 7, 8 

OZ!  The Musical September 14, 15, 21, 22, 28, 29 at 7:30 pm 
September 16 at 2:30 pm 
 
The Legend of Sleepy Hollow  October 12, 13, 19, 20, 26, 27 at 7:30 pm 
October 21 at 2:30 pm 
 
D’Vine Testament November 10, 7:30 pm 
 
Nuncrackers  November 30 at 7:30 pm 
December 1, 7, 14, 15, at 7:30 pm 
December 8 at 2:30 pm 
December 9 at 2:30 pm 
 
 
The Cemetery Club  January 11, 12, 18, 19, 25, 26 at 7:30 pm 
January 20 at 2:30 pm 
 
 
Steal Away Home 
February 8, 9, 15, 16 at 7:30 pm 
February 10 & 17 at 2:30 pm 
 
 
Gilbert & Sullivan Valentine Dinner Theatre Show 
February 14th 
 
Texas Free!  Victory or Death (Dinner Theatre)  March 2 

 

Guy Forsyth in Concert 
March 9th 
 
If You’re Irish, Come Into The Parlor  March 17 
 
Dracula:  The Musical?  March 29, 30 at 7:30 pm 
April 5, 6, 12, 13 at 7:30 pm 
April 7 at 2:30 pm 
 
 
Bastrop County Bar Association Murder Trial  April 26-28 
 
Dearly Beloved  May 17, 18, 24, 25, 31 and June 1 at 7:30 pm 
May 26 at 2:30 pm 
 
 
Newsies The Broadway Musical  July 12, 13, 19, 20, 26, 27 at 7:30 pm 
July 21 at 2:30 pm 
 
Helium  August 9, 10, 16, 17, 23, 24 at 7:30 pm 
August 18 at 2:30 pm 
 



Hot Funds Proposal Budget 

 

Production Expenses 

9 Main productions: $30,855 

8 Touring shows:  $11,000 

Advertising/promotions/social media:  $25,200 

Production equipment: $20,000 

Total Production Expense:  $87,055 

 

Conferences  

$5000 

Bastrop Opera House will participate in the Texas Nonprofit conferences throughout the 2019 

season.  This promotes both the Opera House as well as Bastrop. 

 

Staff Salary 

$40,000 

Current executive director is an unpaid position.  The board wants to be able to move this to a 

paid position for the current executive director.  Hot funds will help us to do that until the 

Opera House can fund that position on their own.  The goal for 2019-2020 FY is for the Bastrop 

Opera House to fund at least 50% of salary and increasing the percentage each year thereafter.  

 

Total:  132,055 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018         AGENDA ITEM: 9E 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-93 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas awarding a Community Support Service Agreement for services associated with operating, 
marketing and providing museum and visitor center services, to the Bastrop County Historical 
Society, at a cost of One Hundred and Forty-Six Thousand Nine-Hundred and Thirty-Seven and 
00/100 Dollars ($146,937) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to execute all 
necessary documents for the contract; providing for a repealing clause; and establishing an 
effective date. 
  
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Hospitality & Downtown Director 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Chapter 351 of the Tax Code provides the requirements on how Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) 
funds may be spent. As prioritized in the FY 18 Budget, Staff has been working to leverage HOT 
funds to attract tourism and strengthen our sales tax base by maximizing our investment. Staff 
also continues to work to bring HOT fund users together under the strategic goals and vision that 
have been developed in line with the Council’s Focus Areas, the City’s 2018 Work Plan, and the 
Comprehensive Plan 2036. 
  
The Comprehensive Plan also states that Bastrop’s continued emphasis on cultural arts and 
tourism development through coordinated policies will lead to hundreds of millions of dollars in 
economic activity for the region. The Museum and Visitor Center presented their annual report at 
the August 28, 2018 Council meeting. 
 
The proposed Community Support Service Agreement will be utilized for all funding provided by 
the City in exchange for services to the community. The Bastrop County Historical Society 
agreement outlines specific requirements related to Hotel Occupancy Tax and deliverables 
specific to their request for funding. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
At the June 21st Joint Workshop with Visit Bastrop, the current and future HOT Policy of the City 
of Bastrop was discussed in detail.  Due to the ongoing development of the Cultural Arts Master 
Plan, an interim process for the Museum and Visitor Center to apply for and receive funds was 
outlined. That process was for the Museum and Visitor Center to submit a request for funding to 
the City Council, who would then award funds based on the application. The FY 19 Budget 
allocation is $146,937. The funds will be awarded to the Bastrop County Historical Society 
separately in line with the different functions that the Museum and Visitor Center play: (1) 
$115,000 is being proposed for the operation of the Visitor Center, (2) $34,893 is being proposed 



 

for historic preservation through the Museum, and (3) $9,944 is being proposed for the annual 
Holiday Tour of Homes. 

The FY 18 budget emphasized Council’s desire to diversify our revenue sources and increase 
our sales tax base. Over the last 12 months, with the creation of Visit Bastrop, the establishment 
of the City’s Hospitality & Downtown Department, and the ongoing development of our Cultural 
Arts Master Plan; we are now uniquely positioned to leverage and work in tandem towards our 
community goals related to tourism. We hope to continue to effectively market and promote the 
Museum and Visitor’s Center as part of the overall Bastrop visitor experience. FY 18’s funding 
agreement outlined specific deliverables, as does the proposed FY 19 Community Support 
Service Agreement.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
FY 19 Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-94 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas awarding a Community Support Service Agreement associated with operating, marketing 
and providing cultural art and theater services to the Bastrop County Historical Society, at a cost 
of One Hundred and Forty-Six Thousand and Nine-Hundred and Thirty-Seven and 00/100 Dollars 
($146,937) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary 
documents for the contract; providing for a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution No-2018-94 
• DRAFT - Community Service Support Agreement 
• FY 19 HOT Fund Request submitted by Bastrop County Historical Society 

 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-94 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AWARDING A COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR 
SERVICES FOR OPERATING, MARKETING AND STAFFING A HISTORICAL 
MUSEUM AND VISITOR CENTER AND PROVIDING VISITOR CENTER 
SERVICES TO THE BASTROP COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY AT A COST 
OF ONE HUNDRED AND FORTY-SIX THOUSAND NINE-HUNDRED AND 
THIRTY-SEVEN AND 00/100  DOLLARS ($146,937) AS ATTACHED AS 
EXHIBIT A; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE CONTRACT; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALING CLAUSE AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has appointed the City Manager as the Chief Administrative 

Officer of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of 
the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the Bastrop County Historical Society as the safe-
keeper and story teller of our authentic historic past; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the Bastrop County Historical Society’s staff, 

volunteers and board members are best equipped to serve as the official visitor information 
providers and downtown welcome experience experts for all of our visitors; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 351 of the Tax Code provides the requirements on how Hotel 

Occupancy Tax (HOT) funds may be spent; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop has been working to leverage HOT funds to attract tourism 

and strengthen our sales tax base by maximizing our return on investment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan 2036 places emphasis on enhancing the visitor 

experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan also states that Bastrop’s continued emphasis on 

cultural arts, historic preservation, and tourism development through coordinated policies will lead 
to hundreds of millions in economic activity for the region; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Community Support 

Service Agreement associated with services associated with operating, marketing and staffing a 
istorical museum and visitor center and providing visitor center services to the Bastrop County 
Historical Society, at a cost of One Hundred and Forty-Six Thousand and Nine Hundred and 
Thirty-Seven and 00/100 Dollars ($146,937) attached as Exhibit A. 

 



2 

SECTION 2. That the City Council of the City of Bastrop has found that the Bastrop County 
Historical Society is the leading provider of visitor services, visitor center operations, and historical 
documentation and story telling of our authentic past.  

SECTION 3. All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 

SECTION 4. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 
and it is duly resolved.   

DULY RESOLVED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 13th 
day of November, 2018. 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

___________________________________
Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Ann Franklin, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 1 

 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT 
FY 2018 - 2019 

 
This Community Services Grant Funding Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and 
between the City of Bastrop, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, (“City”), 
and Bastrop County Historical Society a Texas non-profit corporation (“Organization”).  
The City and Organization are also referred to collectively in this Agreement as the 
“Parties” and singularly as a “Party.”  The Parties intend that this Agreement will 
supersede and replace all previously adopted and finalized Agreements in their entirety, 
if any. 
 
NOW, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants to be performed by the Parties and 
other valuable consideration hereby acknowledged, therefore, be it mutually agreed as 
follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
A. Proposed & Modified Services Plan.  Organization shall utilize the grant funds 

conveyed herein to provide services to the Bastrop community in accordance with the 
proposal attached as Exhibit “A”, which has been accepted by the City, and as may 
have been modified in accordance with Exhibit “B”.   

 
B. Staffing.  Organization shall use its best efforts to secure sufficient numbers of 

employees and volunteers to accomplish the responsibilities set forth in this 
Agreement.  Organization shall further provide such office space, equipment, supplies 
and other materials as may be necessary to accomplish the purposes of this 
Agreement.  Organization acknowledges that no personnel engaged by the 
Organization shall be construed as agents, employees or officers of the City. 
 

C. Nondiscrimination:  Organization shall provide services under this Agreement free 
of discrimination or retaliation due to a person’s race, ethnicity, nationality, religion, 
gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, parental status, or marital status.   
Any restrictions on services based on age, physical ability or mental ability shall be 
directly relevant to legitimate safety concerns in accordance with written Organization 
policies and procedures.  

 
 
 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 2 

2. FUNDING  
 
A. Amount.  The City shall provide to Organization grant funds in an amount up to a sum 

not to exceed One Hundred Forty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty-Seven and 
00/100 Dollars ($146,937.00). 

 
B. Disbursals.  The City shall remit payment to the Organization of the grant funds due 

quarterly as an installment. 
 
3. ACCOUNTABILITY 

 
A. Funding Source Identification.  Organization shall prominently include the City of 

Bastrop all educational and marketing materials promoting services covered by this 
Agreement, including (but not limited to) print items, internet posts, and social media.  
Such materials will also include the line, “Funding for this program was made possible 
through a grant from the City of Bastrop.”   

 
B. Written Reports.  Organization shall submit to the Hospitality & Downtown 

Department written reports on a quarterly basis describing the status of the services 
provided under this Agreement.  Quarterly reports shall be submitted during the 
months of January, April, July, and October.  Reports shall be public records.  The 
first three reports shall be progress reports, and the fourth report shall be an annual 
summary.  The reports shall include (but are not limited to) the following information: 

 
(1) Services:  a description of the services provided during the preceding quarter; and 

 
(2) Financial Statement:  a financial statement for the reporting period that indicates 

how the Organization expended grant funds; and  
 

(3) Promotions:  copies of promotional materials distributed. 
 

C. Oral Reports.  Organization shall attend a regular meeting of the City Council on a 
quarterly basis to make a public presentation on the services provided under this 
Agreement.  Attendance shall be scheduled in advance with the City’s designated staff 
contact person.  Organization shall submit presentation materials (i.e., visual aids) to 
the City’s designated staff contact person at least 96 hours prior to the meeting.  

 
D. Oversight of Expenditures.  Organization shall exercise all reasonable, prudent and 

diligent efforts to ensure the proper and legal oversight, use, and expenditure of the 
grant funds conveyed under this Agreement.  Organization’s failure to use the funds 
in the manner approved by this Agreement shall void and negate the City’s obligation 
to make any further payments to the Organization under the Agreement. 
 

E. Comingling.  Organization shall properly segregate grant funds and shall not 
comingle grant funds with other financial assets of the Organization. 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 3 

F. Accounting Practices.  Organization shall utilize generally accepted bookkeeping 
and standard accounting practices to maintain complete and accurate financial 
records of all expenditures of grant funds.  Upon the City’s request, the Organization 
shall promptly make the records available for inspection and review at any time during 
the term of this Agreement.   

 
 
G. Audit.  Organization shall have its records and accounts audited annually and shall 

prepare an annual financial statement based on the audit.  Audits and financial 
statements shall be prepared by a certified public accountant (CPA) who is licensed 
in Texas or a public accountant who holds a permit to practice from the Texas State 
Board of Public Accountancy.  Audits and financial statements shall be available to 
the City upon request, and shall be public records 
 

H. Records Retention.  All reports and records related to grant funds shall be 
maintained by the Organization and available to the City for a period of at least 3 years 
of the Effective Date.  If there is any dispute regarding these reports or records, the 
retention period shall be extended in accordance with the City’s instructions. To the 
extent Organization’s records regarding services provided under this Agreement are 
subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Organization agrees to cooperate with 
any open records requests.  
 

I. Hotel Occupancy Tax Policy.   Hotel Occupancy Taxes. Organization shall comply 
with the requirements in Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code in the use of hotel 
occupancy taxes. 

 
 

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. Duration.  This Agreement shall be in effect for fiscal year 2018-2019, which 

commences October 1st and ends September 30 / a term of 1 year (365 days, unless 
earlier terminated as provided herein.)  

 
This Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional one-year period unless 
either party provides written notice to the other party of an intention not to renew the 
Agreement at least ninety (90) days in advance.  Notice of a party’s intent not to renew 
this Agreement shall cause the Agreement to expire at the end of the then-current 
term.  
 

B. Suspension of Payments.   
 
(1) Misappropriation.  Organization’s failure to use the funds in the manner approved 

by this Agreement, as specified in Exhibit “A”, shall be grounds for the City to 
suspend the remittance of further payments to the Organization under the 
Agreement.  
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 4 

(2) Comingling.  Organization’s failure to properly segregate grant funds shall be 
grounds for the City to suspend the remittance of further payments to the 
Organization under the Agreement.   
 

(3) Records.  Organization’s failure to provide the City with copies of financial records 
mandated under this Agreement shall be grounds for the City to suspend the 
remittance of further payments to the Organization under the Agreement.   

 
(4) Reports.  Organization’s failure to timely submit reports mandated under this 

Agreement shall be grounds for the City to suspend the remittance of further 
payments to the Organization under the Agreement.   
 

(5) Notice.  Notice of suspension shall be sent by the City to the Organization with an 
explanation and opportunity for the Organization to cure the infraction within 30 
days.   

 
(6) Breach.  Failure to remedy the infraction within 30 days shall be grounds for the 

City to declare the Organization in breach and terminate this Agreement as 
provided herein.  

 
C. Termination.  In the event that the Organization fails to abide by any of the terms of 

this Agreement, the City may terminate the Agreement and any obligations of the City 
hereunder, as set forth herein, with absolutely no penalty or claim against the City by 
the Organization.  Notice of termination shall negate the City’s obligation to remit a 
scheduled payment (if any).  Upon termination for failure to cure the misappropriation 
of grant funds, Organization is obligated to reimburse the City for all funds 
misappropriated by the Organization in violation of this Agreement.  
 

D. Ineligibility for Future Funding.  Organization’s failure to remedy the infraction upon 
receipt of notice this Agreement may render the Organization ineligible for future 
funding by the City. 

 
E. Good Standing.  The Organization hereby represents that it is in good standing with 

the Texas Secretary of State and has no City, County, State, or Federal debts or liens 
charged against it.  Organization shall notify the City of any change in such status 
within 30 days of Organization’s receipt of notification.  

 
F. Future Appropriations.  Any future grants by the City are conditioned on 

appropriations by the City Council.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing related to 
this Agreement or the City’s stated desire to support the Organization (generally), at 
the time of execution of this Agreement, may be inferred to indicate that the City will 
provide any funds in the future.  The Organization acknowledges that funding by the 
City shall be decided on a fiscal year basis and will be determined by the City Council 
based upon its evaluation of the City’s budget and considering all fiscal needs 
confronting the City, including needs related to the proposed community services. 

 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 5 

G. Notices.  Any notice necessary or appropriate relative to this Agreement shall be 
effective when deposited in the United States mail, either certified and/or registered 
mail, postage prepaid and addressed as provided herein.  Notices to the City shall be 
sent to the City’s designated staff contact person: 

 
City of Bastrop 
Attn: Hospitality & Downtown Department  
P.O. Box 427 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 
 

Notices to the Organization shall be sent in accordance with Exhibit “C”.  
 
H. Assignment.  No part of this Agreement may be assigned or delegated without the 

prior written consent of the other Party, and any attempted assignment of benefits or 
rights or delegation of duties or obligations shall constitute breach of this Agreement.   

 
I. Governing Law & Venue. This Agreement shall be subject to the laws of the State of 

Texas and the City of Bastrop, Texas.  Venue for any disputes arising under this 
Agreement shall rest solely in Bastrop County.  

 
J. Indemnity.  Organization agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless and defend 

the City of Bastrop, Texas, its officers, agents, representatives, consultants, and 
employees from any and all claims, losses, causes of action and damages, suits, and 
liability for the gross negligence and willful misconduct of Organization, including all 
expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney fees, for injury to or death of any 
person, or from damage to any property, arising from or in connection with the 
operations of Organization, or its officers, agents and employees, carried out in 
furtherance of this Agreement.   
 

K. Insurance.  The Organization shall maintain a comprehensive general liability 
insurance policy for its operations. The policy shall name City as an additional insured.  
The Organization shall also maintain insurance on the Organization’s personal 
property, in an amount determined sufficient by the Organization.  The Organization 
shall deliver copies of the insurance policies specified hereunder to the City within 30 
days of the effective date.   
 

L. Inclusiveness:  This document represents the entire understanding between the 
Parties.  This Agreement may only be amended in writing with the mutual consent of 
the Parties. 
 

M. Severability:  If any sentence, clause or portion of this Agreement is deemed 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

N. Effective Date.  The City and the Organization make and execute this Agreement to 
be effective upon the __________ day of __________________________, 2018. 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 6 

 
 

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF: 
 
 

CITY: ORGANIZATION: 
 
by: ____________________________ by: ___________________________ 

Lynda Humble, City Manager Executive Director  
City of Bastrop Bastrop County Historical Society 
Date of Execution: _____________ Date of Execution: ____________ 
  

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
by: ___________________________  

Ann Franklin, City Secretary  
City of Bastrop 

 
 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 7 

Exhibit “A” 
 

 
ORGANIZATION’S PROPOSED SERVICES 

 

 

 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 8 

 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 9 

 
 

  



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 10 

Exhibit “B” 
 

 
CITY’S MODIFIED SERVICES PLAN 

 
 
Present 9-12 months’ worth of programs annually (January – December) designed to 
appeal to tourists and attract overnight visitation to City Council.  
 
All art work, images and details regarding the individual programs such as 
“performances,” “classes,” or “exhibits” for the contract period including ticket prices and 
purchasing methods must have specific program details received by Visit Bastrop through 
their online CRM system no later than 90 days in advance, preferably 120 days in 
advance.  
 
Maintain an active social media and online digital presence. 
 
Develop an Annual Marketing and or strategic plan that addresses identifying additional 
funding sources for sustainability. 
 
Develop and present an annual operating budget to the City. 
 
Participate in the Bastrop Information Guide Program. 
 
In partnership with Visit Bastrop, develop a visitor intercept survey to include data such 
as:  where the visitor is from, demographic data, social-economic data, how they 
discovered Bastrop (advertising, social media, word-of-mouth), lodging information, 
length of stay, size of party, primary attractor, intent to return. 
 
Collect and maintain monthly year-over-year traffic counts and primary market origin data 
from visitors.  
 
Participate in customer service, destination, board development and/or Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Training as provided by the City or Visit Bastrop. 
 
Develop and maintain a building rental program and policies allowing opportunities for 
additional revenue streams and access to the facility to outside users. 
 
Actively participate in the Cultural Arts Master Plan development and implementation 
process that is yet to be identified.  
 
Follow all applicable local, state and federal laws related to building improvements and 
expenditures of HOT. 
 
Allow training for volunteers and staff by Visit Bastrop to enhance the visitor experience. 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 11 

 
Participate in board training opportunities provide by the Downtown & Hospitality 
Department designed to strengthen your organization.  
 
Provide volunteer assistance for goodie bag stuffing and distribution to meeting 
attendees. 
 
Remain open for downtown special events 
 
Provide Step on Guide Services 
 
Assist Visit Bastrop and the Downtown & Hospitality Department with distribution and 
possible creation of visitor information to be distributed at the Visitor’s Center. All 
materials must contain the City of Bastrop logo.  
 
Work with Visit Bastrop and Explore Bastrop County to create “programming” that would 
be available for groups and conventions.  
 
8.1.3 of the COMP Plan: Create a visitor’s feedback survey with the assistance of Visit 
Bastrop to better understand the demand for other tourism activities 
 
8.1.3 of the COMP Plan: Increase the number of digital and interactive exhibits and 
consider offering virtual tours online. 
 
8.1.3 of the COMP Plan. Use interactive media displays that allow people to choose how 
they interact with the Museum & Visitor Center 
 
8.1.3 of the COMP Plan: Increase social media by posting content online at regular and 
predictable intervals. 
 
Offer free downtown walking tours on a regular basis. I.E. Every Saturday morning during 
Preservation Month to better tell the Bastrop story to residents and tourists 
 
Spearhead efforts to develop building markers that tell the story of the historic properties 
in the downtown district. 
 
Continue to assist with the data population of Downtown, TX. 
 
Provide an annual calendar of events for exhibits, openings, speakers etc. to the 
Hospitality and Downtown Department and Visit Bastrop January 1st of each year. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop County Historical Society  page 12 

Exhibit “C” 
 
 

NOTICE TO ORGANIZATION 
 
Notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent to the Organization as 
follows: 
 

 
 
Bastrop County Historical Society 
Attn: Kaye Spikas 
904 Main Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018         AGENDA ITEM: 9F 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-95 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas awarding a Community Support Service Agreement associated with providing recreation 
and pool services, to the YMCA of Austin/Bastrop Branch, at a cost of Seventy-Nine Thousand 
and Eight Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($79,800) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents for the contract; providing for a repealing clause; 
and establishing an effective date. 
  
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Hospitality & Downtown Director 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
This agreement represents a consolidation of funding and contractual agreements for both 
recreation services and maintaining and operating the State Park Pool. The Bastrop YMCA has 
provided these services to the community for several years. 
  
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Pursuant to Chapter 331.001(a) of the Local Government Code, the City of Bastrop is granted 
authority to make park land and for providing recreational opportunities.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
FY 19 Hospitality & Downtown Budget 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-95 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas awarding a Community Support Service Agreement associated with providing recreation 
and pool services, to the YMCA of Austin/Bastrop Branch, at a cost of Seventy-Nine Thousand 
and Eight Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($79,800) attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents for the contract; providing for a repealing clause; 
and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution No-2018-95 
• DRAFT - Community Support Service Agreement 

 
 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-95 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AWARDING A COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICE AGREEMENT ASSOCIATED 
WITH PROVIDING RECREATION AND POOL SERVICES TO THE YMCA OF 
AUSTIN/BASTROP BRANCH AT A COST OF SEVENTY-NINE THOUSAND 
AND EIGHT HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($79,800), ATTACHED AS 
EXHIBIT A; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE CONTRACT; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALING CLAUSE, AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has appointed the City Manager as the Chief Administrative 

Officer of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of 
the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council realizes the importance of providing recreational activities to 
the Citizens of Bastrop, Texas; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council values the partnership between the Bastrop YMCA and the 

City of Bastrop; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes and values the Bastrop YMCA operating and 

managing the Bastrop State Park Pool so that citizens may learn important life skills; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is providing funding through the Hospitality and Downtown 

Department for services to the community to the Bastrop YMCA; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop’s former Recreation Services program and staff will be 
focusing efforts on providing better customer service to our citizens and the YMCA will provide 
additional recreation activities on our behalf.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
SECTION 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Community Support 

Service Agreement associated with providing recreation and pool services, to the YMCA of 
Austin/Bastrop Branch, at a cost of Seventy-Nine Thousand and Eight-Hundred and 00/100 
Dollars ($79,800), attached as Exhibit A. 

 
SECTION 2:That the City Council of the City of Bastrop has found that the YMCA of Austin 

– Bastrop Branch, is a subject matter expert in the field of providing recreational activities to the 
public. 
 

SECTION 3: All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 



2 
 

  
SECTION 4. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 

and it is duly resolved.   
 
DULY RESOLVED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 13th 

day of November, 2018. 

 
CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 

 
 



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 1 

 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT 
FY 2018 - 2019 

 
This Community Services Grant Funding Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and 
between the City of Bastrop, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, (“City”), 
and YMCA of Austin/Bastrop Branch, a Texas non-profit corporation (“Organization”).  
The City and Organization are also referred to collectively in this Agreement as the 
“Parties” and singularly as a “Party.”  The Parties intend that this Agreement will 
supersede and replace all previously adopted and finalized Agreements in their entirety, 
if any. 
 
NOW, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants to be performed by the Parties and 
other valuable consideration hereby acknowledged, therefore, be it mutually agreed as 
follows: 
 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

A. Proposed & Modified Services Plan.  Organization shall utilize the grant funds 
conveyed herein to provide services to the Bastrop community in accordance with the 
proposal attached as Exhibit “A”, which has been accepted by the City, and as may 
have been modified in accordance with Exhibit “B”.   

 
B. Staffing.  Organization shall use its best efforts to secure sufficient numbers of 

employees and volunteers to accomplish the responsibilities set forth in this 
Agreement.  Organization shall further provide such office space, equipment, supplies 
and other materials as may be necessary to accomplish the purposes of this 
Agreement.  Organization acknowledges that no personnel engaged by the 
Organization shall be construed as agents, employees or officers of the City. 
 

C. Nondiscrimination:  Organization shall provide services under this Agreement free 
of discrimination or retaliation due to a person’s race, ethnicity, nationality, religion, 
gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, parental status, or marital status.   
Any restrictions on services based on age, physical ability or mental ability shall be 
directly relevant to legitimate safety concerns in accordance with written Organization 
policies and procedures.  

 
 
 

 



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 2 

2. FUNDING  
 
A. Amount.  The City shall provide to Organization grant funds in an amount up to a sum 

not to exceed Seventy-Nine Thousand, Eight Hundred and 00/100 Dollars 
($79,800.00). 

 
B. Disbursals.  The City shall remit payment to the Organization of the grant funds due 

quarterly as an installment.  
 
 

3. ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

A. Funding Source Identification.  Organization shall prominently include the City of 
Bastrop and Bastrop Power & Light logo, when applicable all educational and 
marketing materials promoting services covered by this Agreement, including (but not 
limited to) print items, internet posts, and social media.   
 

B. Written Reports.  Organization shall submit to the City’s Hospitality & Downtown 
Department written reports on a quarterly basis describing the status of the services 
provided under this Agreement.  Quarterly reports shall be submitted during the 
months of January, April, July, and October Reports shall be public records.  The first 
three reports shall be progress reports, and the fourth report shall be an annual 
summary.  The reports shall include (but are not limited to) the following information: 

 
(1) Services:  a description of the services provided during the preceding quarter; and 

 
(2) Financial Statement:  a financial statement for the reporting period that indicates 

how the Organization expended grant funds; and  
 

(3) Promotions:  copies of promotional materials distributed. 
 

C. Oral Reports.  Organization shall attend a regular meeting of the City Council on a 
quarterly basis to make a public presentation on the services provided under this 
Agreement.  Attendance shall be scheduled in advance with the City’s designated staff 
contact person.  Organization shall submit presentation materials (i.e., visual aids) to 
the City’s designated staff contact person at least 96 hours prior to the meeting.  

 
D. Oversight of Expenditures.  Organization shall exercise all reasonable, prudent and 

diligent efforts to ensure the proper and legal oversight, use, and expenditure of the 
grant funds conveyed under this Agreement.  Organization’s failure to use the funds 
in the manner approved by this Agreement shall void and negate the City’s obligation 
to make any further payments to the Organization under the Agreement. 
 

E. Accounting Practices.  Organization shall utilize generally accepted bookkeeping 
and standard accounting practices to maintain complete and accurate financial 
records of all expenditures of grant funds.  Upon the City’s request, the Organization 



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 3 

shall promptly make the records available for inspection and review at any time during 
the term of this Agreement.   

 
F. Overhead.  A portion of the grant funds conveyed to the Organization by this 

Agreement may be spent by Organization for overhead, that being day-to-day 
operations, including supplies, administrative salaries, office rental, travel expenses, 
and other administrative costs, if same have been previously approved in the budget 
and if directly related to the provision of services approved by this Agreement.  The 
amount of grant funding apportioned for Organization’s overhead may not exceed 
30% of the total grant amount.  

 
G. Audit.  Organization shall have its records and accounts audited annually and shall 

prepare an annual financial statement based on the audit.  Audits and financial 
statements shall be prepared by a certified public accountant (CPA) who is licensed 
in Texas or a public accountant who holds a permit to practice from the Texas State 
Board of Public Accountancy.  Audits and financial statements shall be available to 
the City upon request and shall be public records.   

 
H. Records Retention.  All reports and records related to grant funds shall be 

maintained by the Organization and available to the City for a period of at least 3 years 
of the Effective Date.  If there is any dispute regarding these reports or records, the 
retention period shall be extended in accordance with the City’s instructions. To the 
extent Organization’s records regarding services provided under this Agreement are 
subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Organization agrees to cooperate with 
any open records requests.  

 
4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
A. Duration.  This Agreement shall be in effect for fiscal year 2018-2019, which 

commences October 1st and ends September 30th, unless earlier terminated as 
provided herein.  

 
B. Suspension of Payments.   

 
(1) Misappropriation.  Organization’s failure to use the funds in the manner approved 

by this Agreement, as specified in Exhibit “A”, shall be grounds for the City to 
suspend the remittance of further payments to the Organization under the 
Agreement.  

 
(2) Records.  Organization’s failure to provide the City with copies of financial records 

mandated under this Agreement shall be grounds for the City to suspend the 
remittance of further payments to the Organization under the Agreement.   

 
(3) Reports.  Organization’s failure to timely submit reports mandated under this 

Agreement shall be grounds for the City to suspend the remittance of further 
payments to the Organization under the Agreement.   



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 4 

 
(4) Notice.  Notice of suspension shall be sent by the City to the Organization with an 

explanation and opportunity for the Organization to cure the infraction within days.   
 
(5) Breach.  Failure to remedy the infraction within 30 days shall be grounds for the 

City to declare the Organization in breach and terminate this Agreement as 
provided herein.  

 
C. Termination.  In the event that the Organization fails to abide by any of the terms of 

this Agreement, the City may terminate the Agreement and any obligations of the City 
hereunder, as set forth herein, with absolutely no penalty or claim against the City by 
the Organization.  Notice of termination shall negate the City’s obligation to remit a 
scheduled payment (if any).  Upon termination for failure to cure the misappropriation 
of grant funds, Organization is obligated to reimburse the City for all funds 
misappropriated by the Organization in violation of this Agreement.  
 

D. Ineligibility for Future Funding.  Organization’s failure to remedy the infraction upon 
receipt of notice this Agreement may render the Organization ineligible for future 
funding by the City. 

 
E. Good Standing.  The Organization hereby represents that it is in good standing with 

the Texas Secretary of State and has no City, County, State, or Federal debts or liens 
charged against it.  Organization shall notify the City of any change in such status 
within 30 days of Organization’s receipt of notification.  

 
F. Future Appropriations.  Any future grants by the City are conditioned on 

appropriations by the City Council.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing related to 
this Agreement or the City’s stated desire to support the Organization (generally), at 
the time of execution of this Agreement, may be inferred to indicate that the City will 
provide any funds in the future.  The Organization acknowledges that funding by the 
City shall be decided on a fiscal year basis and will be determined by the City Council 
based upon its evaluation of the City’s budget and considering all fiscal needs 
confronting the City, including needs related to the proposed community services. 
 

G. Notices.  Any notice necessary or appropriate relative to this Agreement shall be 
effective when deposited in the United States mail, either certified and/or registered 
mail, postage prepaid and addressed as provided herein.  Notices to the City shall be 
sent to the City’s designated staff contact person: 

 
City of Bastrop 
Attn: Hospitality & Downtown Department  
P.O. Box 427 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 
 

Notices to the Organization shall be sent in accordance with Exhibit “C”.  
 



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 5 

H. Assignment.  No part of this Agreement may be assigned or delegated without the 
prior written consent of the other Party, and any attempted assignment of benefits or 
rights or delegation of duties or obligations shall constitute breach of this Agreement.   

 
I. Governing Law & Venue. This Agreement shall be subject to the laws of the State of 

Texas and the City of Bastrop, Texas.  Venue for any disputes arising under this 
Agreement shall rest solely in Bastrop County.  

 
J. Indemnity.  Organization agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless and defend 

the City of Bastrop, Texas, its officers, agents, representatives, consultants, and 
employees from any and all claims, losses, causes of action and damages, suits, and 
liability for the gross negligence and willful misconduct of Organization, including all 
expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney fees, for injury to or death of any 
person, or from damage to any property, arising from or in connection with the 
operations of Organization, or its officers, agents, and employees, carried out in 
furtherance of this Agreement.   
 

K. Insurance.  The Organization shall maintain comprehensive general liability 
insurance policy for its operations. The policy shall name City as an additional insured.  
The Organization shall also maintain insurance on the Organization’s personal 
property, in an amount determined sufficient by the Organization.  The Organization 
shall deliver copies of the insurance policies specified hereunder to the City within 30 
days of the Effective Date.   
 

L. Inclusiveness:  This document represents the entire understanding between the 
Parties.  This Agreement may only be amended in writing with the mutual consent of 
the Parties. 
 

M. Severability:  If any sentence, clause or portion of this Agreement is deemed 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

N. Effective Date.  The City and the Organization make and execute this Agreement to 
be effective upon the __________ day of __________________________, 2018. 

 
 
  



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 6 

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF: 
 

CITY: ORGANIZATION: 
 
by: ____________________________ by: ___________________________ 

Lynda Humble, City Manager Executive Director  
City of Bastrop Bastrop YMCA 
Date of Execution: _____________ Date of Execution: ____________ 
  

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
by: ___________________________  

Ann Franklin, City Secretary  
City of Bastrop 

 
 
 



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 7 

Exhibit “A” 
 

ORGANIZATION’S PROPOSED SERVICES 
 

The Bastrop YMCA shall provide quality recreational programs for the community in 
partnership with the City of Bastrop. The City understands the annual contribution given 
to the YMCA in this agreement as designated in the budget approved by the Bastrop City 
Council supports a much broader operating budget and other funding sources. Any major 
changes in recreation program service or special events should be brought to the City’s 
attention as soon as feasible, however the City of Bastrop doesn’t dictate what the YMCA 
does or doesn’t do. Any recreation needs identified by the City of Bastrop should be 
communicated to the YMCA so that their professional staff can evaluate and provide 
reporting back to the City on the feasibility of meeting those needs. 
 
Programs and activities should be designed to benefit and include persons of all 
backgrounds. Recognizing the YMCA is a membership organization, financial assistance 
is available to ensure programming is available to all. These programs should include but 
are not limited to: 
 

• Minimum of 6 youth sports seasons such as soccer, tennis and volleyball. 
• Various enrichment programs monthly, such as art, Youth & Government, nutrition 
• Weekly Health & Wellness programs for all ages. 
• Operate and manage the State Park Pool with aquatic activities including swim 

lessons, water fitness, open and public swim and youth job opportunities. 
 
Free events like: 
 

• Family park events, including but not limited to Safety Month, Field days, 
Halloween Bash, Happy Healthy New Year’s Bash and Movies in the Park. 

• Outreach programs such as summer programming, Pickleball, teen events, active 
older adult programs and more. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 8 

Exhibit “B” 
 

 
CITY’S MODIFIED SERVICES PLAN 

 
Recreation services and program should annually be presented to City Council and 
should be designed to meet the needs of the Bastrop community. 
 
Maintain an active social media and online digital presence. Maintain an up to date 
website, social media presence, google, yelp and similar listings online. Submit quarterly 
calendars. 
 
Develop or maintain a program user intercept survey to include data such as: how they 
discovered the YMCA. 
 
Track year-over-year participant counts, by program when possible. 
 
Participate in trainings, planning and engagement events related to Parks, Recreation, 
Community Services, Special Events, Cultural Arts etc. hosted by the City or its partners. 
 
There shall be no charge for the use of the City of Bastrop Parks System, however the 
YMCA must follow all rental and use policies and timelines set by the City.   
 
The City reserves the right to charge the YMCA as determined by the City Manager or 
their designee for other services. Those service costs may include Special event permit 
and support costs, Rental fees at City facilities other than City Parks, and labor costs to 
support special events that do not serve a need identified by the City of Bastrop.  
 
The YMCA shall schedule park usage thirty (30) days prior to the first practice or 
scheduled league game. Special Event permit applications must be submitted according 
to the timelines established wherein. Rental agreements must be made according to any 
established rental policies.  
 
The YMCA shall list the City of Bastrop as a partner on all advertising for programs or 
events in the city parks or facilities i.e. flyers, banners, websites and other promotional 
items. 
 
The YMCA agrees to manage and operate the Facility, State Park Pool, for the benefit of 
the public, including Bastrop citizens and visitors, through the provision of programs and 
services that include: open recreation, aquatic exercise, lap swimming, swimming 
instruction, group rentals, and water safety courses. 
 
The YMCA shall submit to the City a copy of the annual report presented by the YMCA 
to the TPWD for operating the State Park Pool. 
 



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 9 

The YMCA shall submit to the City a copy of the annual recreation report generated for 
the benefit of the Bastrop City Council, staff and citizens prior to funding being allocated 
for the next FY. 

 
 

  



  

_____________________________________________  
 
City of Bastrop Community Services Funding Agreement FY 2018 – 2019 
Bastrop YMCA  page 10 

Exhibit “C” 
 
 

 
NOTICE TO ORGANIZATION 

 
Notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent to the Organization as follows: 

 
 
 
Bastrop YMCA 
Attn: Terry Moore 
1112 Main Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 

 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM: 9G 
  
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-109 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, approving a Site Agreement Lease for Air Quality Monitoring with the Capital Area Council 
of Governments (CAPCOG) for a portion of  property in the City’s Mayfest Park, located at 25 
American Legion Drive, for a term of five (5) years at a total rent of One and 00/100 Dollar ($1.00); 
attached as Exhibit A; authorizing City Manager to execute all appropriate documentation; 
providing for a repealing clause;  and establishing an effective date. 

 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works and Leisure Services 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
 
The Austin-Round Rock Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which consists of Bastrop, Caldwell, 
Hays, Travis, and Williamson Counties, has air pollution levels that are close to violating the 
federal standards for ground-level ozone (O3).  The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
sets federal air quality standards at levels it considers necessary to protect human health and 
public welfare from harm.  The Austin-Round Rock MSA’s continued compliance with federal air 
quality standards is important to ensure public health, protect economic growth, and address the 
region’s transportation needs. The Austin-Round Rock MSA’s air pollution regularly reaches 
levels that the EPA considers “moderate” or “unhealthy for sensitive groups” based on its air 
quality index (AQI).   

On July 25, 2017, City Council approved Resolution R-2017-51, which authorized the City 
Manager to execute an Interlocal Agreement with CAPCOG for continuation and support of the 
CAPCOG Regional Air Quality Program.  At that time, the Central Texas Regional Air Quality 
Program was in jeopardy due to the Governor’s line item veto of the 2018-2019 “near 
nonattainment” area grant funding in the state budget. Central Texas has relied on this state 
funding for the last twenty years to support a successful and nationally acclaimed regional air 
quality program. The City has contributed to this program in both FY 2017 and FY 2018.   
 
On September 25, 2018, City Council approved Resolution R-2018-99, formally authorizing the 
City of Bastrop to participate in a new regional air quality plan for 2019-2023.  The goals of the 
new regional air quality plan are to: 1) maximize the probability of compliance with federal air 
quality standards, and 2) minimize health and environmental impacts associated with regional air 
pollution.  Controlling and reducing emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOX) and improving public 
awareness about air quality are critical to supporting the goals of the new regional air quality plan. 

POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Continuing CAPCOG’s air quality program through 2018 is important to ensure that the region 
remains in compliance with federal standards, and to ensure that we continue to collect and 



 

analyze irreplaceable air quality monitoring data. The program includes eight air quality monitoring 
stations in addition to the two stations maintained by the EPA, Environmental Protection Agency. 
Without the Air Quality Program, the Austin MSA could be declared a nonattainment area which 
would lead to increased costs for industry, permitting delays, restrictions on industry expansion in 
the area as well as increased costs for businesses and consumers, and loss of federal highway 
and transit funding 

Recently the City and Bastrop County were approached by the Capital Area Council of 
Governments (CAPCOG) to determine a site to relocate an air quality monitor close to population 
centers. An air quality monitor is currently located in McKinney Roughs, but needs to be moved 
to a more populated area and away from trees, which can interfere with the ozone measurements.   
Several locations were researched, and Mayfest Park was selected due to its location, 
accessibility, and readily available utilities.  This lease will allow the air quality monitor to be 
located in Mayfest Park for a period of five (5) years, expiring in 2023, for a total cost of One Dollar 
($1.00).   

FUNDING SOURCE: 
The lease has a direct cost of approximately thirty dollars a month for electricity 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-109 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, approving a Site Agreement Lease for Air Quality Monitoring with the Capital Area Council 
of Governments (CAPCOG) for a portion of  property in the City’s Mayfest Park, located at 25 
American Legion Drive, for a term of five (5) years at a total rent of One and 00/100 Dollar ($1.00); 
attached as Exhibit A; authorizing City Manager to execute all appropriate documentation; 
providing for a repealing clause;  and establishing an effective date. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution 
• Lease of Site for Air Quality Monitoring   



 

 
RESOLUTION R-2018-109 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BASTROP APPROVING A SITE 
AGREEMENT LEASE FOR AIR QUALITY MONITORING WITH THE CAPITAL 
AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (CAPCOG) FOR A PORTION OF 
PROPERTY IN THE CITY’S MAYFEST PARK, LOCATED AT 25 AMERICAN 
LEGION DRIVE, FOR A TERM OF FIVE (5) YEARS FOR A TOTAL RENT OF 
$1.00 (ONE DOLLAR); AS ATTACHED IN EXHIBIT A; AUTHORIZING CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTATION; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Central Texas Clean Air Coalition (CAC), of which the City of Bastrop is 
a member, is charged with the development and implementation of a clean air plan to maintain 
compliance with federal air quality standards and the development of policies and strategies to 
guide CAC members about actions that will achieve clean air in Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CAC has requested that the City of Bastrop take action to formally 

participate in a new regional air quality plan for 2019-2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) approached the City of 

Bastrop and Bastrop County to relocate an air quality monitor near a center of population; and 
 

WHEREAS, CAPCOG currently has an air quality monitor located in McKinney Roughs 
that needs to closer to a more populated area and away from trees, which can interfere with ozone 
measurements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Bastrop County researched several locations in conjunction with 

CAPCOG, and Mayfest Park was selected due to its location, accessibility, and readily available 
utilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, controlling and reducing emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOX) and improving 

public awareness about air quality are critical to supporting the goals of the new regional air quality 
plan; and 

WHEREAS, participating with CAPCOG on this project continues the policy, previously 
set by City Council, to assist other local governmental entities with projects that are mutually 
beneficial.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1: That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to enter into a Lease of 

Site Agreement with CAPCOG for a portion of property at Mayfest Park for a term of five (5) year 
at a total rent of $1.00 (One Dollar).    

 
SECTION 2: All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 

or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 



 

conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 

 
Section 3: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it 

is so resolved.  
 
 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 

13th day of November, 2018. 
 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
 
  



 

Capital Area Council of Governments 
Lease of Site for Air Quality Monitoring 

Sec. 1. Parties and Purpose 
1.1. The Capital Area Council of Governments ("CAPCOG") is a regional planning commission and 

political subdivision of the state of Texas organized and operating under the Texas Regional Planning Act 
of 1965, as amended, chapter 391 of the Local Government Code. 

1.2. The City of Bastrop (“Bastrop”) is a home rule city of the State of Texas, located in Bastrop 
County, Texas that owns land suitable for location of air quality monitoring equipment (“City Property”). 

1.3. CAPCOG has received funding from Clean Air Coalition members to monitor air quality in 
the Central Texas region. CAPCOG has acquired air quality monitoring equipment and a meteorological 
tower to carry out the grant, and CAPCOG has a contractor to operate the equipment. Bastrop has a site 
suitable for locating monitoring equipment, and CAPCOG desires to lease the site for this purpose. 

Sec. 2. Lease 
2.1. Bastrop leases to CAPCOG and CAPCOG leases from Bastrop the site which is a portion of 

City Property, shown on the Attachment “A” to this lease, generally described as: 

A 300 square foot portion of Tract situated in the Bastrop Town tract A-
11 and being part of the City of Bastrop Mayfest Park Tract, said city park 
tract being the residual of tracts C-6 and A-21 according to the city map 
recorded in cabinet 1, slide 23-A, in the City of Bastrop, Bastrop County, 
Texas, as depicted in Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference (the “Premises”). 

2.2. Bastrop agrees that CAPCOG may locate air quality monitoring equipment and a 
meteorological tower on the Premises (“Equipment”) and such is the exclusive permitted use of the 
Premises. CAPCOG agrees to pay for installation and provision of necessary utilities to the Equipment.  A 
list of the specific Equipment installed shall be attached to this Agreement as Attachment “B”.  CAPCOG 
shall provide an updated list of the name of the equipment, manufacturer and serial number and 
whether the Equipment is owned by CAPCOG or its contractor prior to installation of the equipment and 
will update the list when Equipment is replaced, or in any event, at least semi-annually on January 15 
and July 15 of each year to ensure there is adequate insurance coverage for the installed Equipment at 
all times.  The most recent updated Equipment list shall be attached as Attachment B to this Lease 
without need for a formal amendment.   

2.3. Bastrop agrees that employees of CAPCOG and CAPCOG’s contractor have access to the 
Premises during Bastrop’s normal business hours (Monday to Friday, 8 am to 5 pm, except holidays), to 
operate the monitoring equipment. CAPCOG agrees that Bastrop employees have access to the 
Premises for inspection. 

2.4. CAPCOG shall have the right to enter the City Property only to access the Premises.  
CAPCOG agrees to provide Bastrop with 24 hour written notification (email or hand-delivered notice) 



 

prior to entry into the facility of any employee of CAPCOG or CAPCOG’s contractor. CAPCOG agrees to 
provide the names and other information Bastrop may reasonably require for each employee of 
CAPCOG or CAPCOG’s contractor who will have access to the Premises.  To the extent that any 
regulatory body requires that such person(s) be licensed, a copy of the license will be provided to 
Bastrop.   

2.5. Bastrop acknowledges that CAPCOG or CAPCOG’s contractor owns the air quality 
monitoring equipment and the meteorological tower located on the Premises, as shown in Attachment 
“B”, and that this Lease does not transfer ownership of the air quality monitoring equipment or 
meteorological tower to Bastrop or create a security interest in them for Bastrop’s benefit. 

2.6. CAPCOG may not assign this Lease or sublet under this Lease without the prior written 
consent of the Bastrop City Council.  An attempted assignment or sublet in violation of this paragraph is 
void. 

2.7. Bastrop agrees to limit any request to relocate the air quality monitoring station to another 
site within the same City Property to situations which, in Bastrop’s discretion, amount to good cause to 
relocate the operation and provide at least two weeks’ advance notice before the effective date of any 
relocation.  In the event that the Equipment is located to a replacement site that is not the area 
described as the Premises, the parties shall enter into an Amendment to this Lease.   

Sec. 3. Term 
3.1. This Lease begins on the date it is executed on behalf of Bastrop and it ends on December 

31, 2023. 

3.2. When this Lease ends, CAPCOG agrees at its expense to remove the air quality monitoring 
equipment and meteorological tower (aka the Equipment) from the Premises and to restore the 
Premises to its prelease condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted. 

3.3. Either Party may terminate this contract with thirty (30) days written notice to the other 
Party. 

Sec. 4. Rent 
4.1. Total rent for lease of the Premises is $1, the receipt and adequacy of which Bastrop 

acknowledges. 

4.2 As additional consideration for this Lease, Bastrop finds that the air quality monitoring that 
is the permitted use is of municipal benefit to the citizens of Bastrop and the parties agree such public 
benefit and the rent is adequate consideration for the lease of the Premises to CAPCOG.  

Sec. 5. Insurance 
5.1.  Throughout the term of this Lease, CAPCOG shall provide or cause its contractor to provide 

and keep in force for the benefit of Bastrop and CAPCOG, at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive 
general liability insurance in an amount not less than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) 
for bodily injury for each occurrence, and for property damage, or automobile insurance in the amount of 
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) in amounts equal to the maximum liability for damages for 



 

municipalities for claims arising under governmental functions, provided for under the Texas Tort Claims 
Act, whichever is greater.  

 
CAPCOG warrants that (1) CAPCOG is insured through the Texas Municipal League 

Intergovernmental Risk Pool if CAPCOG provides any of the air quality monitoring equipment or 
meteorological tower; and (2) CAPCOG’s contractor has workers' compensation insurance covering its 
employees working on the Premises, and such comprehensive general liability and automobile liability 
insurance against death, personal injury, and property damage arising from its operations on the 
Premises, in at least the amounts set forth in Section 5.1, and Bastrop is named an additional insured on 
both liability insurance policies.  A copy of the certificate of insurance shall be delivered to Bastrop at 
least ten (10) days prior to the effective date of the insurance policy for which the certificate is issued. 

 
6.03 In the event of any construction on the Premises, CAPCOG, at its own cost and expense, shall cause 
to be made, executed, and delivered to Bastrop payment and performance bonds in compliance with 
Texas Government Code Section 2253.  

Sec. 6. Dispute Resolution 

6.1. The parties desire to resolve disputes arising under this Lease without litigation. 
Accordingly, if a dispute arises, the parties agree to attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute among 
themselves. To this end, the parties agree not to sue one another, except to enforce compliance with 
this Sec. 6, toll the statute of limitations, or seek an injunction, until they have exhausted the procedures 
set out in this Sec. 6. 

6.2. At the written request of a party, each party shall appoint a representative to negotiate 
informally and in good faith to resolve any dispute arising under this Lease. The representatives 
appointed shall determine the location, format, frequency, and duration of the negotiations within 15   
calendar days of the date of the notice. 

6.3. If the representatives cannot resolve the dispute within 30 calendar days after the first 
negotiation meeting, the parties agree to refer the dispute to the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin 
for mediation in accordance with the Center's mediation procedures by a single mediator assigned by 
the Center. Each party shall pay half the cost of the Center's mediation services. Each party shall pay half 
the cost, if any, of the procedure. 

6.4. The parties agree to continue performing their duties under this Lease, which are 
unaffected by the dispute, during the negotiation and mediation process. 

Sec. 7. Notice to Parties 
7.1. Notice to be effective under this Lease must be in writing and received by the party against 

whom it is to operate. Notice is received by a party: (1) when it is delivered to the party personally; (2) 
on the date shown on the return receipt if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the party's address specified in paragraph 7.2 and signed on behalf of the party; or (3) 
three business days after its deposit in the United States mail, with first-class postage affixed, addressed 
to the party's address specified in paragraph 7.2. 



 

7.2. CAPCOG's address is 6800 Burleson Road, Building 310, Suite 165, Austin, TX 78744, 
Attention: Betty Voights, Executive Director.  Bastrop's address is 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas 
78602, Attention:  City Manager. 

7.3. A party may change its address by providing notice of the change in accordance with 
paragraph 7.1. 

Sec. 8. Miscellaneous 
8.1. Each individual signing this Lease on behalf of a party warrants that he or she is legally 

authorized to do so and that the party is legally authorized to perform the obligations undertaken. 

8.2. This Lease is the entire agreement of the parties, and an amendment is not effective unless 
in writing and signed by all parties. 

8.3. The Attachments are part of this Lease, and integrated into this agreement as if fully set 
forth herein. 

8.4. This Lease is binding on and inures to the benefit of the parties and the parties' successors 
in interest. 

8.5. This Lease is performable in Bastrop County, Texas, and Texas law governs the 
interpretation and application of this Lease.  Venue shall lie in Bastrop County, Texas. 

8.6.  CAPCOG may not permit any liens or encumbrances upon its leasehold estate or on the 
Premises or City Property, and will promptly take action to remove any such encumbrances upon 
notification by Bastrop.   

8.7 This Lease may be executed in duplicate originals. 

 

City of Bastrop       Capital Area Council of Governments 
 
By        By      
Lynda Humble, City Manager     Betty Voights, Executive Director 
 
Date        Date    



 

Attachment “A” 
The following map shows the approximate location, outlined in red, where CAPCOG plans to locate the 
monitoring equipment, which will consist of, at a minimum, a trailer, an ozone monitor equipment, 
meteorological equipment, and communications equipment. CAPCOG may also install additional 
instruments to measure concentrations of particulate matter, nitrogen oxides, or other pollutants. Prior 
to setting up the equipment, CAPCOG will secure agreement with the facility management on the 
precise location on the Premises where the Equipment will be set and any procedures for site 
installation and access. The address of the location is Mayfest Park, 25 American Legion Dr., Bastrop, TX 
78602. 

 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: November 13, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 9H 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2018-31 amending the budget for the 
Fiscal Year 2019 in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various 
amounts herein as attached in Exhibit “A”; repealing all prior ordinances and actions in conflict 
herewith; providing for an effective date; and move to include on the November 27, 2018 City 
Council consent agenda for a second reading. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The FY2019 budget was approved by City Council on September 24, 2018. Since that approval 
there have been some unforeseen amounts that need to be addressed through an amendment. 

Opera House Carry-over: 
The Opera House requested $30,000 in restoration funds in FY2018, which City Council 
approved as a part of the budget. The Opera House only requested reimbursement and used 
$10,642.84 of this approved amount. The Bastrop Opera House has requested to carry-over 
their undistributed restoration FY2018 funds of $19,358 into FY2019. Their request and report 
are attached. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City Charter requires that when the budget is amended, that the amendment be made by 
Ordinance. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2018-31 amending the budget for the 
Fiscal Year 2019 in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various 
amounts herein as attached in Exhibit “A”; repealing all prior ordinances and actions in conflict 
herewith; providing for an effective date; and move to include on the November 27, 2018 City 
Council consent agenda for a second reading. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Ordinance 2018-31 
• Exhibit “A” 
• Backup Documentation 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-31 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH EXISTING STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS; 
APPROPRIATING THE VARIOUS AMOUNTS HEREIN; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND ACTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Bastrop has submitted to the Mayor and City 
Council proposed amendment(s) to the budget of the revenues and/or expenditures/expenses 
of conducting the affairs of said city and providing a complete financial plan for Fiscal Year 
2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have now provided for and conducted a public 
hearing on the budget as provided by law.   
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1: That the proposed budget amendment(s) for the Fiscal Year 2019, as 
submitted to the City Council by the City Manager and which budget amendment(s) are 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, are hereby adopted and approved as the amended budget of 
said city for Fiscal Year 2019. 

 
Section 2:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or 
application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable. 

 
Section 3:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted below, 

or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in accordance with the 
City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of Texas. 



 
READ and APPROVED on First Reading on the 13th day of November 2018. 
 
READ and ADOPTED on Second Reading on the 27th day of November 2018. 
 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
     ________________________________   
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
 
 



Projected Fund Balance as of 9-30-18 3,425,181   

FY 2019  Budgeted Revenues 3,571,246  

FY 2019 Budgeted Appropriations (3,909,689)  

 

10/2018 Budget Amendments (net) (19,357)

Ending Fund Balance 3,067,381
  

DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #
                                            

Increase (19,357) Bastrop Opera House 501-80-00-5566
Increase

Total Expense (19,357)
Net Change (19,357)

   

FY 2019
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
 

New Expenditures:



From: Lisa Holcomb
To: Sarah O"Brien
Subject: Restoration Hot Funds
Date: Thursday, October 4, 2018 3:24:05 PM
Attachments: Bastrop Opera House Field Conditions Reprot 2port (1).docx

Hi Sarah,

The Bastrop Opera House recently hired an engineer who is very experienced in historical
buildings to do a thorough inspection on the the Opera House to try to determine why the
inside walls of the Opera House are once again peeling.  He has completed his inspection and
we have received his report and recommendations.  He feels that there are several things that
we need to do to make sure that the inside walls don't continue to deteriorate.  I have attached
his report.

We hope to have bids in for these projects by the end of October or slightly after.  We would
like to request that any funding we still have available for historical restoration be carried over
to the new fiscal year.  This would help the Opera House tremendously if the funds are still
available.  

Thank you, Sarah.

Lisa Holcomb
Executive Director
Bastrop Opera House

WARNING EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email is from an external source. Do not click links
or open attachments without positive sender verification of purpose. Never enter Username,
Password or sensitive information on linked pages from this email. If you are unsure about
the message, please contact the IT Department for assistance.

mailto:bastropplays@bastropoperahouse.com
mailto:sobrien@cityofbastrop.org

[bookmark: _GoBack]Bastrop Opera House Field Conditions Report

 Site Trip  August  21, 2018



Scott Moore:



Kim A. Williams, AIA was commissioned to review building and site conditions related to the exterior walls paint lack of adhesion and bubbling at the interior surface.  Kim reviewed exterior site grade conditions, the attic areas, the roof, and performed limited interior surface testing.  This report is also in part an update of the similar report from 1992 by Kim.



Based on the evidence and conditions observed, it appears that recent exterior wall repair work performed by one contractor may be the main concern for the interior paint delamination.  The following analysis and predicted resolve:



Main Issues of Concern:

· Exterior brick wall repointing- the contractor ( Steve Neuhaus) repointed the East wall with a more contemporary Portland based mortar mix.  This condition also involved some historic preservation proper treatment expressed by the THC but overviewed and approved in a letter from the NPS.  Although that interaction had more to do with the structural appropriate also has a relationship to the permeability of moisture in the masonry wall – possibly trapping more moisture than the original lime based mortar.  This moisture reducing process may be causing more moisture ( both water and water vapor) movement to the cooler  / dryer interior surface.



· The east side of the building grade (soil) conditions has some negative drainage towards the façade and depressions that allow water into the foundation areas.  The soft , porous brick footers and walls soak water upwards called “rising damp”.  It is not clear how much of this problem is contributing to moist wall conditions but a positive slope away from the building must be created.  This concern was stated in the 1992 report and apparently not corrected.





· The interior wall surface was coated with a gypsum drywall leveling layer and then a coat of new paint (paint type to be determined- see next item).  As the exterior moisture / pressure moves to the interior surface, it has forced a release of the gypsum coating from the original plaster / paint surface which appears reasonably intact.  The owner and painter shall confirm the new base layer and paint type such that more correction recommendation can be made. 

·  Follow-up  information from Scott indicates the contractor’s materials as follows: Re-plaster , Type N Polypropylene Stucco mix, Sto base Coat, drywall compound, oil base primer, S-W Emerald final top coat / latex.  This total combination of system is unusual and unexplained for al the base layers.



· The historic brick is a hand or early machine pressed fabrication but not a fired glazed more water resistant face brick.  Therefore the historic brick is more porous than contemporary brick.  Additionally as masonry bearing wall there is no cavity space or other moisture protection assembly.  Coupled with the use of AC equipment and de-humidification process, the cooler dryer interior air tends to pull the moist and warm exterior air towards the interior surface.



· The roof conditions involve a relative new TPO single membrane roof system placed on a gabled form and internal butter design with the removal of the metal roof .  This roof membrane is still under both installer full warranty and the 15 year manufacturer warranty.  The roofer proposal serves as the only written documentation which does not state the actual manufacturer or detailed assembly (whether any rigid insulation was placed below the TPO).  The gable form , wood deck and lack of insulation may not be constructed to industry standards or warranty requirements.  More research and interaction with the roofer will be required to define this matter.  Additionally the roofer did not install the parapet vertical membrane with a proper detail standard of cap flashing covering the top edge.  Only a continuous compression bar with top edge caulk and screw attachment to the wall was used.  Current caulk deterioration and bar openings is allowing some water into the parapet wall which may also attribute some of the moisture into the masonry wall.





· There is also historic interior wall paint failure at the northwest corner  - balcony staircase area.  This wall surface was not treated as the East wall but rather reflects previous and possibly current moisture penetration from the roof scupper area. This area receives an extreme volume of direct water movement including half of the opera house and the adjacent (west) building that penetrates the common wall parapet and discharges one third of its roof onto this roof.  This condition was identified in the 1992 report and apparently no action to correct it was taken. 





Recommendations relative to the problem issues:



· The exterior wall repointing probably cannot be changed at this point.  As a partial moisture relief technique,  a few weep hole installation may allow the wall to breath better ; however since there is no defined airspace or moisture proofing barrier plane , this strategy may have only a minimal impact.  The porous brick state can be improved through the specific use of appropriate moisture resistance treatment of an applied siloxane penetrating chemical treatment (not a waterproofing coating such as clear silicone).  This treatment works to resist water penetration while allowing internal moisture release or breathing.  Specific recommendation is – Prosoco, Sure Clean Weather Seal, Siloxane PD.



· The east side site drainage should be corrected to create total positive drainage away from the brick façade for a distance of at least 10 ft.  Flat stone pavers can be laid at grade and façade connection and some type of impervious fill i.e. road base material used for full length of building and approximately 10’ out.





· I do not believe that the interior application of a leveling or covering  gypsum finish plus a contemporary paint  was an appropriate treatment.  Upon confirming the chemical composition of these recent materials, Kim can request expert technical representatives of Sherwin Williams Paint to visit the site and offer best recommendations for paint repair.  This process could involve the removal of the recent coatings.



·  See the first item.





· A joint meeting of the roofer , roof manufacturer , Owner and Kim should be held to review the contract installation, warranty issues, manufacturer warranty detail requirements, industry standards and corrective parapet cap detailing.  The west common wall and shared scupper drainage should be legally and technically reviewed and resolved.



· Once the west scupper is resolved and corrected, the interior wall should be fully dried (to 15% moisture content ) and then repaired and repainted.



This report has been provided as a general site review and recommendations but not necessarily as a detailed architectural restoration detailing or specifications for the actual intended work or final action plan.  If the Owner wishes to have Kim A. Williams to guide this process and next steps , he can continue on an hourly rate fee basis for additional site meetings, analysis, and admin. of the implementation process and work.



Reference attached photos and listing description in attached information.



Submitted August 27, 2018



Kim A. Williams, AIA 



Bastrop Opera House Field Conditions Report 
 Site Trip  August  21, 2018 
 
Scott Moore: 
 
Kim A. Williams, AIA was commissioned to review building and site conditions 
related to the exterior walls paint lack of adhesion and bubbling at the interior 
surface.  Kim reviewed exterior site grade conditions, the attic areas, the roof, and 
performed limited interior surface testing.  This report is also in part an update of 
the similar report from 1992 by Kim. 
 
Based on the evidence and conditions observed, it appears that recent exterior wall 
repair work performed by one contractor may be the main concern for the interior 
paint delamination.  The following analysis and predicted resolve: 
 
Main Issues of Concern: 

• Exterior brick wall repointing- the contractor ( Steve Neuhaus) repointed the 
East wall with a more contemporary Portland based mortar mix.  This 
condition also involved some historic preservation proper treatment 
expressed by the THC but overviewed and approved in a letter from the NPS.  
Although that interaction had more to do with the structural appropriate also 
has a relationship to the permeability of moisture in the masonry wall – 
possibly trapping more moisture than the original lime based mortar.  This 
moisture reducing process may be causing more moisture ( both water and 
water vapor) movement to the cooler  / dryer interior surface. 
 

• The east side of the building grade (soil) conditions has some negative 
drainage towards the façade and depressions that allow water into the 
foundation areas.  The soft , porous brick footers and walls soak water 
upwards called “rising damp”.  It is not clear how much of this problem is 
contributing to moist wall conditions but a positive slope away from the 
building must be created.  This concern was stated in the 1992 report and 
apparently not corrected. 

 
 

• The interior wall surface was coated with a gypsum drywall leveling layer 
and then a coat of new paint (paint type to be determined- see next item).  As 
the exterior moisture / pressure moves to the interior surface, it has forced a 
release of the gypsum coating from the original plaster / paint surface which 
appears reasonably intact.  The owner and painter shall confirm the new 
base layer and paint type such that more correction recommendation can be 
made.  

•  Follow-up  information from Scott indicates the contractor’s materials as 
follows: Re-plaster , Type N Polypropylene Stucco mix, Sto base Coat, drywall 



compound, oil base primer, S-W Emerald final top coat / latex.  This total 
combination of system is unusual and unexplained for al the base layers. 
 

• The historic brick is a hand or early machine pressed fabrication but not a 
fired glazed more water resistant face brick.  Therefore the historic brick is 
more porous than contemporary brick.  Additionally as masonry bearing wall 
there is no cavity space or other moisture protection assembly.  Coupled with 
the use of AC equipment and de-humidification process, the cooler dryer 
interior air tends to pull the moist and warm exterior air towards the interior 
surface. 

 
• The roof conditions involve a relative new TPO single membrane roof system 

placed on a gabled form and internal butter design with the removal of the 
metal roof .  This roof membrane is still under both installer full warranty 
and the 15 year manufacturer warranty.  The roofer proposal serves as the 
only written documentation which does not state the actual manufacturer or 
detailed assembly (whether any rigid insulation was placed below the TPO).  
The gable form , wood deck and lack of insulation may not be constructed to 
industry standards or warranty requirements.  More research and 
interaction with the roofer will be required to define this matter.  
Additionally the roofer did not install the parapet vertical membrane with a 
proper detail standard of cap flashing covering the top edge.  Only a 
continuous compression bar with top edge caulk and screw attachment to 
the wall was used.  Current caulk deterioration and bar openings is allowing 
some water into the parapet wall which may also attribute some of the 
moisture into the masonry wall. 

 
 

• There is also historic interior wall paint failure at the northwest corner  - 
balcony staircase area.  This wall surface was not treated as the East wall but 
rather reflects previous and possibly current moisture penetration from the 
roof scupper area. This area receives an extreme volume of direct water 
movement including half of the opera house and the adjacent (west) building 
that penetrates the common wall parapet and discharges one third of its roof 
onto this roof.  This condition was identified in the 1992 report and 
apparently no action to correct it was taken.  
 
 
Recommendations relative to the problem issues: 
 

• The exterior wall repointing probably cannot be changed at this point.  As a 
partial moisture relief technique,  a few weep hole installation may allow the 
wall to breath better ; however since there is no defined airspace or moisture 
proofing barrier plane , this strategy may have only a minimal impact.  The 
porous brick state can be improved through the specific use of appropriate 



moisture resistance treatment of an applied siloxane penetrating chemical 
treatment (not a waterproofing coating such as clear silicone).  This 
treatment works to resist water penetration while allowing internal 
moisture release or breathing.  Specific recommendation is – Prosoco, Sure 
Clean Weather Seal, Siloxane PD. 
 

• The east side site drainage should be corrected to create total positive 
drainage away from the brick façade for a distance of at least 10 ft.  Flat stone 
pavers can be laid at grade and façade connection and some type of 
impervious fill i.e. road base material used for full length of building and 
approximately 10’ out. 

 
 

• I do not believe that the interior application of a leveling or covering  gypsum 
finish plus a contemporary paint  was an appropriate treatment.  Upon 
confirming the chemical composition of these recent materials, Kim can 
request expert technical representatives of Sherwin Williams Paint to visit 
the site and offer best recommendations for paint repair.  This process could 
involve the removal of the recent coatings. 
 

•  See the first item. 
 

 
• A joint meeting of the roofer , roof manufacturer , Owner and Kim should be 

held to review the contract installation, warranty issues, manufacturer 
warranty detail requirements, industry standards and corrective parapet cap 
detailing.  The west common wall and shared scupper drainage should be 
legally and technically reviewed and resolved. 
 

• Once the west scupper is resolved and corrected, the interior wall should be 
fully dried (to 15% moisture content ) and then repaired and repainted. 

 
This report has been provided as a general site review and recommendations but 
not necessarily as a detailed architectural restoration detailing or specifications for 
the actual intended work or final action plan.  If the Owner wishes to have Kim A. 
Williams to guide this process and next steps , he can continue on an hourly rate fee 
basis for additional site meetings, analysis, and admin. of the implementation 
process and work. 
 
Reference attached photos and listing description in attached information. 
 
Submitted August 27, 2018 
 
Kim A. Williams, AIA  



Bastrop Opera House Field Conditions Report 
 Site Trip  August  21, 2018 
 
Scott Moore: 
 
Kim A. Williams, AIA was commissioned to review building and site conditions 
related to the exterior walls paint lack of adhesion and bubbling at the interior 
surface.  Kim reviewed exterior site grade conditions, the attic areas, the roof, and 
performed limited interior surface testing.  This report is also in part an update of 
the similar report from 1992 by Kim. 
 
Based on the evidence and conditions observed, it appears that recent exterior wall 
repair work performed by one contractor may be the main concern for the interior 
paint delamination.  The following analysis and predicted resolve: 
 
Main Issues of Concern: 

• Exterior brick wall repointing- the contractor ( Steve Neuhaus) repointed the 
East wall with a more contemporary Portland based mortar mix.  This 
condition also involved some historic preservation proper treatment 
expressed by the THC but overviewed and approved in a letter from the NPS.  
Although that interaction had more to do with the structural appropriate also 
has a relationship to the permeability of moisture in the masonry wall – 
possibly trapping more moisture than the original lime based mortar.  This 
moisture reducing process may be causing more moisture ( both water and 
water vapor) movement to the cooler  / dryer interior surface. 
 

• The east side of the building grade (soil) conditions has some negative 
drainage towards the façade and depressions that allow water into the 
foundation areas.  The soft , porous brick footers and walls soak water 
upwards called “rising damp”.  It is not clear how much of this problem is 
contributing to moist wall conditions but a positive slope away from the 
building must be created.  This concern was stated in the 1992 report and 
apparently not corrected. 

 
 

• The interior wall surface was coated with a gypsum drywall leveling layer 
and then a coat of new paint (paint type to be determined- see next item).  As 
the exterior moisture / pressure moves to the interior surface, it has forced a 
release of the gypsum coating from the original plaster / paint surface which 
appears reasonably intact.  The owner and painter shall confirm the new 
base layer and paint type such that more correction recommendation can be 
made.  

•  Follow-up  information from Scott indicates the contractor’s materials as 
follows: Re-plaster , Type N Polypropylene Stucco mix, Sto base Coat, drywall 



compound, oil base primer, S-W Emerald final top coat / latex.  This total 
combination of system is unusual and unexplained for al the base layers. 
 

• The historic brick is a hand or early machine pressed fabrication but not a 
fired glazed more water resistant face brick.  Therefore the historic brick is 
more porous than contemporary brick.  Additionally as masonry bearing wall 
there is no cavity space or other moisture protection assembly.  Coupled with 
the use of AC equipment and de-humidification process, the cooler dryer 
interior air tends to pull the moist and warm exterior air towards the interior 
surface. 

 
• The roof conditions involve a relative new TPO single membrane roof system 

placed on a gabled form and internal butter design with the removal of the 
metal roof .  This roof membrane is still under both installer full warranty 
and the 15 year manufacturer warranty.  The roofer proposal serves as the 
only written documentation which does not state the actual manufacturer or 
detailed assembly (whether any rigid insulation was placed below the TPO).  
The gable form , wood deck and lack of insulation may not be constructed to 
industry standards or warranty requirements.  More research and 
interaction with the roofer will be required to define this matter.  
Additionally the roofer did not install the parapet vertical membrane with a 
proper detail standard of cap flashing covering the top edge.  Only a 
continuous compression bar with top edge caulk and screw attachment to 
the wall was used.  Current caulk deterioration and bar openings is allowing 
some water into the parapet wall which may also attribute some of the 
moisture into the masonry wall. 

 
 

• There is also historic interior wall paint failure at the northwest corner  - 
balcony staircase area.  This wall surface was not treated as the East wall but 
rather reflects previous and possibly current moisture penetration from the 
roof scupper area. This area receives an extreme volume of direct water 
movement including half of the opera house and the adjacent (west) building 
that penetrates the common wall parapet and discharges one third of its roof 
onto this roof.  This condition was identified in the 1992 report and 
apparently no action to correct it was taken.  
 
 
Recommendations relative to the problem issues: 
 

• The exterior wall repointing probably cannot be changed at this point.  As a 
partial moisture relief technique,  a few weep hole installation may allow the 
wall to breath better ; however since there is no defined airspace or moisture 
proofing barrier plane , this strategy may have only a minimal impact.  The 
porous brick state can be improved through the specific use of appropriate 



moisture resistance treatment of an applied siloxane penetrating chemical 
treatment (not a waterproofing coating such as clear silicone).  This 
treatment works to resist water penetration while allowing internal 
moisture release or breathing.  Specific recommendation is – Prosoco, Sure 
Clean Weather Seal, Siloxane PD. 
 

• The east side site drainage should be corrected to create total positive 
drainage away from the brick façade for a distance of at least 10 ft.  Flat stone 
pavers can be laid at grade and façade connection and some type of 
impervious fill i.e. road base material used for full length of building and 
approximately 10’ out. 

 
 

• I do not believe that the interior application of a leveling or covering  gypsum 
finish plus a contemporary paint  was an appropriate treatment.  Upon 
confirming the chemical composition of these recent materials, Kim can 
request expert technical representatives of Sherwin Williams Paint to visit 
the site and offer best recommendations for paint repair.  This process could 
involve the removal of the recent coatings. 
 

•  See the first item. 
 

 
• A joint meeting of the roofer , roof manufacturer , Owner and Kim should be 

held to review the contract installation, warranty issues, manufacturer 
warranty detail requirements, industry standards and corrective parapet cap 
detailing.  The west common wall and shared scupper drainage should be 
legally and technically reviewed and resolved. 
 

• Once the west scupper is resolved and corrected, the interior wall should be 
fully dried (to 15% moisture content ) and then repaired and repainted. 

 
This report has been provided as a general site review and recommendations but 
not necessarily as a detailed architectural restoration detailing or specifications for 
the actual intended work or final action plan.  If the Owner wishes to have Kim A. 
Williams to guide this process and next steps , he can continue on an hourly rate fee 
basis for additional site meetings, analysis, and admin. of the implementation 
process and work. 
 
Reference attached photos and listing description in attached information. 
 
Submitted August 27, 2018 
 
Kim A. Williams, AIA  



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM:  9H 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-106 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas approving a Wholesale Water Service Agreement with Aqua Water Supply Corporation, 
attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents; 
providing for a severability clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works & Leisure Services 
   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Texas Water Code – Water §13.254, Revocation or Amendment of Certificate codifies SB 511, 
which created a streamlined expedited release of a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 
(CCN) for landowners with at least 25 acres, who are not receiving water and wastewater service, 
and are located in one (1) of 33 counties to petition the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) to remove their property from an existing CCN.  Bastrop is one (1) of the 33 
counties.  There is no requirement to notify the existing CCN holder or that an alternative service 
provider be available and capable of providing service.  The TCEQ is required to grant a petition 
for streamlined expedited release within 60 days, if all applicable requirements are met.  The new 
retail provider is required to compensate the incumbent utility for any property TCEQ determines 
is rendered useless or valueless.   
 
In 2017, Aqua Water Corporation worked with Representative John Cyrier to sponsor a bill to 
modify this process.  The City of Bastrop opposed the bill.  Representative Cyrier called a meeting 
with representatives from the City of Bastrop and Aqua Water Corporation and instructed both 
entities to work out some form of an agreement.  Multiple meetings have occurred over the past 
1 ½ years to reach a solution that creates a win-win scenario for both entities. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Specific goals of a mutual contract were discussed with Council at the March 24th Work Session.  
Under this contract, the City agrees to purchase water at a wholesale cost for any development 
that wishes to decertify Aqua’s water CCN under Texas Water Code – Water §13.254, Revocation 
or Amendment of Certificate and have the City of Bastrop provide water.  This contract ensures 
the following: 
 

• Aqua maintains the collateral commitment for their USDA loans by still providing water at 
a wholesale cost to the same customers that use to be in their CCN.  The City will establish 
a wholesale water rate that covers the cost of Aqua’s water, et is cheaper than a developer 
installing their own water system. 



 

• Economic development challenge is resolved regarding fire flow.  Aqua can provide fire 
flow, but a customer must buy more water (volume) that is required to pressurize the 
system.  A connection will be made at SH20 between the City of Bastrop and Aqua that 
will allow the wholesale water purchase to be pressurized in the City’s system for fire flow 
purposes, which will require less water to be purchased. 

• This agreement provides a “one-stop” shop for economic development opportunities 
regarding supplying water and wastewater services. 

• The City of Bastrop will be able to expand our Water CCN to match our Wastewater CCN 
through a long-term wholesale water agreement. 

• This agreement will provide immediate water supply redundancy that we currently do not 
have and helps manage peak demand until a new plant can be built in the Simsboro 
Aquifer. 

 
The terms of this mutual contract are as follows: 
 

• Provides a process for Aqua to apply to the Public Utility Commission (PUC) to amend 
their CCN to decertify and amend the City’s CCN to accept certification. 

• Associated costs such as Points of Service studies, connections, CCN amendments, etc. 
will be included in the City’s wholesale water agreement and paid by the customer, who 
benefits from the service. 

• Majority of the contract functions as a “Wholesale Water Purchase Agreement” and covers 
definitions, maintenance and curtailment, rates, and process for adjustment of rates. 

• City agrees to pledge revenue from wholesale water agreements to cover cost of water 
purchased from Aqua. 

• City agrees to follow Aqua’s conservation measures. 
• If there is a dispute not covered by the jurisdiction of the PUC, both parties agree to non-

binding mediation. 
• If the agreement is terminated prior the initial agreed upon term, the City agrees to pay 

Aqua’s “stranded investment.” 
• The City must notify Aqua within one year from date of expiration of written intent to not 

renew.  If no notice is given, the agreement will automatically renew based on the renewal 
period established by Council. 

 
Both Aqua Water Corporation and the City of Bastrop believe this mutual agreement is a 
precedent setting agreement for the State of Texas.  It represents a win-win-win scenario for 
Aqua, the City, and the wholesale customer. 
 
The attached mutual contract with Aqua leaves the term of the agreement blank along with 
the renewal period.  However, the Aqua Board has authorized its General Manager to 
execute the agreement once the Bastrop City Council approves the number of years 
establishing the initial term and the time of the renewal period.  Council will need to 
determine both the term and renewal period and include these time periods in the motion. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-106 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas approving a Wholesale Water Service Agreement with Aqua Water Supply Corporation, 
attached as Exhibit A; authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents; 
providing for a severability clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT:  
• Resolution 
• Mutual Contract with Aqua 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-106 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH AQUA AS ATTACHED IN EXHIBIT A; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Texas Water Code – Water §13.254, Revocation or Amendment of Certificate 
codifies SB 511, which created a streamlined expedited release of a Certificate of Convenience 
and Necessity (CCN) for landowners with at least 25 acres, who are not receiving water and 
wastewater service, and are located in one (1) of 33 counties to petition the Texas Commission 
on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) to remove their property from an existing CCN.  Bastrop is one 
(1) of the 33 counties; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2017, Aqua Water Corporation worked with Representative John Cyrier to 
sponsor a bill to modify this process.  The City of Bastrop opposed the bill.  Representative Cyrier 
called a meeting with representatives from the City of Bastrop and Aqua Water Corporation and 
instructed both entities to work out some form of an agreement; and 
 
   WHEREAS, multiple meetings have occurred over the past 1 ½ years to reach a solution 
that creates a win-win scenario for both entities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under this contract, the City agrees to purchase water at a wholesale cost for 
any development that wishes to decertify Aqua’s water CCN under Texas Water Code – Water 
§13.254, Revocation or Amendment of Certificate and have the City of Bastrop provide water; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Aqua Water Corporation maintains the collateral commitment for their USDA 
loans by still providing water at a wholesale cost to the same customers that use to be in their 
CCN.  The City will establish a wholesale water rate that covers the cost of Aqua’s water, yet is 
cheaper than a developer installing their own water system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the economic development challenge regarding fire flow is resolved through 
a connection at SH20 between the City of Bastrop and Aqua that will allow the wholesale water 
purchase to be pressurized in the City’s system for fire flow purposes, which will require less water 
to be purchased; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this agreement provides a “one-stop” shop for economic development 
opportunities regarding supplying water and wastewater services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop will be able to expand its Water CCN to match its 
Wastewater CCN through a long-term wholesale water agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this agreement will provide immediate water supply redundancy that we 
currently do not have and helps manage peak demand until a new plant can be built in the 
Simsboro Aquifer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, both Aqua Water Corporation and the City of Bastrop believe this mutual 
agreement is a precedent setting agreement for the State of Texas and represents a win-win-win 
scenario for Aqua, the City, and the wholesale customer. 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute this contract, which is 
attached as Exhibit A, as well as all other necessary documents.  

 
Section 2.  All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 

or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 
 

Section 3.  This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, and it 
is duly resolved. 

 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 13th  

day of November 2018. 
 

 
APPROVED: 

        
             
       Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 























































































































 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM:  10A 
 
TITLE:   
City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 of the 
Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney regarding legal advice related to the status 
of the 1445 Interlocal Agreement between the City of Bastrop and Bastrop County for the review 
of subdivision applications in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM:  10B 
 
TITLE:   
City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Sections 551.071 of the 
Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney seeking legal advice regarding statutory 
and home-rule charter parameters for public notices, public hearings, community engagement, 
and city council involvement in the Building Bastrop initiative. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018     AGENDA ITEM:  10C 
 
TITLE:   
City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Sections 551.071 of the 
Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney seeking legal advice regarding the 
settlement of outstanding mowing liens on property located at 1002 Church Street. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 13, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 11 
 
TITLE:   
Take any necessary or appropriate action on matters posted for consideration in closed/executive 
session 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   


	November 13 2018 Agenda - Executed
	4A - 1 Mayor's Report
	4A - 2 Mayor's Report 13Nov2018
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Planned Events�October 26 – November 13
	Slide Number 4

	4B - Councilmembers' Report
	4C- City Manager's Report
	4D - 1 Municipal Court Week Staff Report
	4D - 2 MUNICIPAL COURT WEEK PROCLAMATION 2018
	6A - 1 Bastrop Housing Authority Annual Report Presentation
	Receive presentation from Bastrop Housing Authority on their 2018 Annual Report.

	6A - 2 2018 BHA Annual Report for FYE 2017
	6A - 3 BHA Annual Audit Report for FYE 2017
	6B - 1 Update on FY 2018 Workplan
	Provide Update on FY 2018 Organizational Work Plan Accomplishments & Discuss FY 2019 Organizational Work Plan.

	6B - 2 FY 2018 Accomplishments
	6B - 3 FY 2019 Workplan
	6B - 4 Comp Plan Update
	7 - Citizen Comments
	8A - 1 Staff Report Minutes
	8A - 2 MINUTES 10-23-2018
	STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS
	7A. Receive monthly report from Visit Bastrop.
	Presentation was made by Visit Bastrop President, Susan Smith.
	7B. Receive presentation on the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending September 30, 2018.
	Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron.
	7C. Receive report from Bastrop Economic Development Corporation.
	Presentation was made by Bastrop Economic Development Corporation Director, Mike Kamerlander.

	8B - 1 Budget Amendment Staff Report
	8B - 2 Budget Amendment Ordinance 2018-30
	ORDINANCE NO. 2018-30

	8B - 3 Budget Amendment 10.2018
	8C - 1 CC Pecan Park 3F Final Plat Staff Report
	8C - 2 Resolution Pecan Park 3F Final Plat
	8C - 3 Exhibit A - Final Plat Pecan Park Section 3F
	FINAL PLAT-PECAN PARK SEC 3F SHEET 1
	FINAL PLAT-PECAN PARK SEC 3F SHEET 2

	8C - 4 Attachment 1 - Pecan Park 3F Location Map
	8C - 5 Attachment 2 - Property Owner Notification
	Notice of Pending Final Plat Approval
	City of Bastrop
	City Council

	8D - 1 Easement Abandonment Staff Report
	8D - 2 Resolution Easement Abandonment
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-112

	8D - 3 Exhibit A Easement Abandonment
	9A- Drainage Moritorium Exceptions
	9B - 1 Moratorium Extension
	9B - 2 Moratorium Extension Ordinance- Bastrop - Draft F (Nov 7 2018)
	9C - 1 CUP Staff Report 1603 SH 95
	STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:
	ITEM DETAILS:
	BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
	The applicant is applying for a Conditional Use Permit, which is required to install a Manufactured Home on a property zoned Agricultural/Open Space.  The property previously had a single-family home on the lot that was demolished in February 2018, du...
	The proposed manufactured home is 24 feet by 44 feet (1056 square feet) and includes a recessed front porch and covered parking (carport) attached to the structure.
	POLICY EXPLANATION:
	L. A manufactured home that is not being placed within a manufactured home park or subdivision shall have a gabled entry or other such break in the facade or roof line. The proposed structure has a break in the front façade for a front porch, giving t...
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:
	At the October 25, 2018 meeting, the P&Z Commission recommended by a vote of 8-1 to approve the request for a Conditional Use Permit for a manufactured home, with the conditions included by staff.
	The Commission discussed the location of the carport.  The proposed location of the carport is to the right side of the house and will not protrude in front of the front façade.  Questions were asked if the parking could be located behind the building...
	RECOMMENDATION:
	ATTACHMENTS:

	9C - 2 Ordinance 1603 SH 95 CUP
	9C - 3 Exhibit A - Location Map
	9C - 4 Exhibit B - Proposed Structure
	9C - 5 Attachments
	JCB 2 - 5 Attachments2

	9C - 6 Powerpoint CUP
	Slide Number 1
	Request	
	Location
	Zoning
	Future Land Use
	Proposed Structure
	Street Facing Façade
	Section 33.2 of the Zoning Ordinance CUP Criteria
	Section 35.4 Special and Supplemental Requirements for Manufactured Home
	Section 35.4 Special and Supplemental Requirements for Manufactured Home
	Section 35.4 Special and Supplemental Requirements for Manufactured Home
	Compliance with the Moratorium
	Planning & Zoning Commission Report
	Staff Recommendation
	Slide Number 15

	9D - 1  Staff Report Community Services Funding Agreement-Bastrop Opera House
	9D - 2  Resolution 2018-93 Bastrop Opera House
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-93

	9D - 3 Back Up #3 Community Services Funding Agreement- Bastrop Opera House
	COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT
	FY 2018 - 2019

	9D - 4  Opera House FY 19 HOT Fund Request
	9E - 1 Staff Report BCHS
	9E - 2 Resolution 2018-94- BCHS
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-94

	9E - 3 Back Up #3 Community Services Funding Agreement- Bastrop - BCHS
	COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT
	FY 2018 - 2019

	9E - 4 BCHS FY 19 HOT Fund Request
	9F - 1 Staff Report Community Services Funding Agreement- YMCA
	9F - 2 Resolution 2018-95- YMCA
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-95

	9F - 3 Back Up #3 Community Services Funding Agreement- Bastrop YMCA
	COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT
	FY 2018 - 2019

	9G - 1 Staff Report Resolution approving a lease with the Capital Area.._
	9G - 2 Resolution to Enter into a Lease of Site Agreement with the Capital Area Council of Governments for air quality monitoring
	9G - 3 Lease of SIte for Air Quality Monitoring
	Sec. 1. Parties and Purpose
	Sec. 2. Lease
	Sec. 3. Term
	Sec. 4. Rent
	Sec. 5. Insurance
	Sec. 6. Dispute Resolution
	Sec. 7. Notice to Parties
	Sec. 8. Miscellaneous
	Attachment “A”

	9H - 1Budget Amendment Opera House Staff Report
	9H - 2 Budget Amendment Opera House Ordinance 2018-
	ORDINANCE NO. 2018-31

	9H - 3 Budget Amend exhibit A
	9H - 4 Opera House FY Carry over request
	Opera House FY Carry over request
	Restoration Hot Funds.pdf
	Bastrop Opera House Field Conditions Reprot  2port (1).pdf

	Bastrop Opera House Field Conditions Reprot  2port (1)

	9I - 1 Aqua Agreement
	9I - 2 Aqua Resolution
	9I - 3 Wholesale Water Service Agreement Aqua Water Supply Corporation-City of Bastrop
	10A -  1445 Interlocal Agreement
	10B -  Building Bastrop Initiative
	10C -  Calvary Episcopal Church
	11 - Executive Session Action



